FERREERBRAF
China Eco-Farming Limited

(Continued into Bermuda with limited liability) (X BRZEEFEZ BRAT)
(Stock Code F&1A1X5%: 8166)

7 3R E

Annual Report



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) (the “Director(s)”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the Companys website at http.//www.chinaeco-farming.com and the “Latest Listed
Company Information” page of the HKEx http.//www.hkexnews.hk website for at least 7 days from the date of
its posting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Li Aiming (appointed on 10 May 2023)

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (resigned on 13 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey
Mr. Zhang Min
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (resigned on 19 July 2023)
Ms. Siu Yuk Ming
(appointed on 26 March 2024)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (resigned on 13 March 2024)
Mr. Liu Chun Fai (appointed on 13 March 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman)
(resigned on 19 July 2023)

Ms. Siu Yuk Ming (Chairman)
(appointed on 26 March 2024)

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman)
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (resigned on 19 July 2023)
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey
Ms. Siu Yuk Ming
(appointed on 26 March 2024)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman)
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (resigned on 19 July 2023)
Mr. Zhang Min
Ms. Siu Yuk Ming
(appointed on 26 March 2024)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. So David Tat Man

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (resigned on 10 May 2023)
Mr. Chan Kui Ming (appointed on 10 May 2023)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
8/F., Catic Plaza,

8 Causeway Road,

Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 707, 7/F, Capital Centre,
151 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai,

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F,

Two Chinachem Exchange Square,

338 King’s Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

GEM STOCK CODE
8166

WEBSITE ADDRESS
www.chinaeco-farming.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (“Mr. Liu”) (EZE%4%), aged 36,
is an executive Director and Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Liu was educated in Canada. Mr. Liu has over 10 years of
working experience in legal, finance and management. Mr.
Liu has been acting as a director of Blue Sky Solar Energy
Management Limited (“Blue Sky”) since November 2018, a
company mainly engaged in one-stop solar power system
installation service. Blue Sky was de-registered in April 2022.
Mr. Liu was an executive director of InvesTech Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”);
stock code: 1087) from August 2020 to April 2022 and an
executive director of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment
Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1520) from November 2016
to June 2019. Mr. Liu also acted as a director of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals from 2019 to 2021. Mr. Liu joined the
Group in February 2022.

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (“Mr. Tin") (AR %4%) , aged
47, is an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Mr. Tin holds a Bachelor’s degree of Business
Administration from Oxford Brookes University in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Tin is currently the consultant of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (“Value Convergence”) (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 821) and he was the executive director of
Value Convergence from July 2011 to September 2020.
He also acted as the executive director of Carnival Group
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 996) from
December 2020 to May 2021. Mr. Tin has over 10 years
management experience in Hong Kong listed companies.
His duties included group management, strategic planning,
investment evaluation and investor relationship. Mr. Tin
jointed the Group in February 2022.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. So David Tat Man (“Mr. So”) (BRZEX%4), aged
39, is an executive Director. Mr. So holds a bachelor degree
in surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is @ member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. So started his
career in the investment department of Savills (Hong Kong)
Limited and then worked in a company that specialized in
China property investment prior to joining the Company. He
has extensive experience in investment in China and Hong
Kong. Mr. So joined the Group in January 2014.

Mr. Li Aiming ("Mr. Li") (ZZ 8B 5% %), aged 51, is
an executive Director. Mr. LI has more than 21 years of
experience in corporate strategic planning, sales planning
and business management. Mr. Li is the founder and the
chairman of Sichuan Baofengxiang Co., Ltd* (PU)I| 8 L4t
A% {7 ABRE A &) since January 2015. He is the director of
each of Sichuan Jiu De Yuan Kang Industrial Co., Ltd* (P4Y)I|
NEITEEEER A Fand Jiu De Jiu Pin (Chengdu) Wine
Industry Co., Ltd* (FLEBRdn (B ) B BR A A) since
August 2020.

Mr. Li has been appointed as an executive director of
Basetrophy Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8460)
since 29 April 2022. Mr. Li is also serving as executive vice
president of Softbank Financial Research Institute since April
2020. Mr. Li joined the Group in May 2023.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (“Mr. Yick”) (2 EE L 4),
aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yick
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Yick graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Science degree. He
subsequently obtained the Juris Doctor degree as well as the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick was admitted to practice
law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2012. He has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since then. Mr.
Yick worked in both international and reputable local law
firms and has been working as a solicitor with emphasis on
corporate finance practice. Mr. Yick principally engages in
Hong Kong listing projects and assists in legal compliance of
Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Yick has been running his
own practice since May 2023. Mr. Yick was an independent
non-executive director of Mengke Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1629), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from November 2016 to December 2018.
Mr. Yick joined the Group in September 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang Min (“Mr. Zhang”) ([ REE % %) , aged 66, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee, members of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor of Philosophy Degree from the
Beijing Normal College and a Master of Laws Degree from
the Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang was an executive director of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 821), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from June 2018 to
December 2019.

Mr. Zhang was the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Junefield Department Store Group Limited (stock
code: 758), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from August 2016 to August 2018.

Mr. Zhang possesses over 20 years' experience in the banking
industry through his work with the China Construction Bank
Corporation Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in March
2015.

Ms. Siu Yuk Ming (“Ms. Siu”) (BBEBH &z L), aged
30, is an independent non-executive Director. She is also
the chairman of the audit committee, members of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. She has over five years' experience in the audit
profession. She worked in Robert Chui & Co CPA from
September 2015 to February 2016 with her last position as
audit junior. She worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers from
September 2016 to July 2021 with her last position as senior
associate in the risk assurance practice. Ms. Siu joined OJ
Consulting Limited in July 2021 and has been working on IT
audit assignment since then.

Ms. Siu obtained a bachelor degree in business administration
with a major in accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in September 2015. She has been a
Certified Information Systems Auditor of the Information
Systems Audit and Control Association since March 2021 and
a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since May 2021. Ms. Siu is
the independent non-executive director of King Of Catering
(Global) Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8619), which is listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) was principally
engaged in (i) the business of one-stop value chain services,
(i) property investment, (iii) distribution business, (iv)
provision of money lending services, and (v) provision of
financial services.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$26,134,000 (2021:
HK$73,267,000), representing an decrease of approximately
64.3% as compared to that of last year. Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$62,359,000 (2021: HK$51,270,000).
The basic loss per share of the Company was approximately
HK51.52 cents (2021: HK52.92 cents (restated)).

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the property
investment segment reported nil revenue (2021: HK$NIil).
No revenue was generated. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group held properties in Hong Kong for investment purpose
amounted to approximately HK$9,780,000 (2021: in PRC
and Hong Kong of HK$16,869,000).

One-stop Value Chain Services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the one-
stop value chain services segment reported a revenue
of approximately HK$2,198,000 (2021: HK$3,252,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 32.4%, as
compared to that of last year. Due to the continuation of
the COVID-19 pandemic, only a lower level of business was
generated from the gaming industry to sell gaming related
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Distribution business

During the year ended 31 December 2022, this
business segment reported a revenue of approximately
HK$23,613,000 (2021: HK$69,798,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 66.2%, as compared to the last
year. This business segment is composed of consumables
and agricultural products, as well as food and beverages.
The consumables and agricultural products include reusable
bags, resin plastics (ABS) and polyethylene (PE) recycle plastic
products and sunflower meal. Due to the continuation of the
COVID-19 pandemic in the 2022, the accordingly low level
of economic activities has adversely affected the consumables
business especially the re-usable bags including sales of tailor-
made re-usable bags, local manufactured surgical masks,
bulk commodities of relevant plastic materials like resin
plastics (ABS) and polyethylene (PE) and recycling of used
plastic products.

For the reusable bag business, the main business drop is
due to the Hong Kong Post Office order. As the internal
procurement procedures of the Hong Kong Post Office has
been changed since 2021, and now they break down the
one tender order into few separate orders quarterly. Revenue
from the recycle of used plastic products has dropped
significantly. Due to high factory overhead for the re-cycling,
the level of business cannot contribute a positive gross profit
margin of the Group.

For the food and beverage business, the Group was the
sole and exclusive distributor for the sale and distribution of
ramen and udon products under the brand of “Nittin” ( B
T ) in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. The trademark licence
agreement and the sole distributorship agreement for ramen
and udon were renewed for a period of 3 years on 25 March
2019 expiring on 4 February 2022. Details of the renewal
was disclosed in the announcement of the Company date at
25 March 2019. The agreements have expired in February
2022 and has not been renewed.

For the food and beverage business, the business dropped
mainly because of the unexpected fifth wave outbreak
of COVID-19 in Hong Kong early this year. The impact is
significantly strong as most of the market players suffered
from it in different aspects. Downstream clients request to
extend for a longer payment terms, which will eventually
tighten the Company’s cashflow and hence a slower business
cycle is resulted. Meanwhile the worsen economic also
discouraged the spending of people, which resulted a lower
demand from the customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of money lending services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
money lending services segment reported a revenue
of approximately HK$323,000 (2021: HK$217,000),
representing an increase of approximately 48.8% as
compared with the last corresponding period.

Major terms of loans granted

The total outstanding principal amount of the loans granted
in Hong Kong (the “HK Loans”) as at 31 December 2022
was HK$8.5 million bearing interest at the rate ranging from
8% to 36%, maturing from one month to one year, with
unlisted shares as collaterals. As at 31 December 2022, the
loan and interest receivables in relation to the HK Loans (the
"HK Loan Receivables”) amounted to approximately HK$1.3
million and an allowance for credit losses of the HK Loan
Receivables amounted to approximately HK$7.2 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
granted the loans to 7 individuals in the PRC (the “PRC
Loans”) with an aggregated principal amount of RMB13.9
million. The PRC Loans are unsecured and bear interest rate
ranging from 8% to 12% per annum with a term ranging
from 6 months to 36 months. As at 31 December 2022,
the net of the PRC Loans (the “PRC Loan Receivables”)
amounted to approximately RMB5.3 million and an allowance
for credit losses of the PRC Loan Receivables amounted to
approximately RMB8.6 million.

Accordingly, the aggregate of the outstanding principal
amount of the HK Loans and the PRC Loans amounted to
HK$24.1 million as at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2t 2A
EERENWR DN
BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued) EBHME (&)
Provision of money lending services (continued) B ERS (&
Details of PRC Loans HE B FE

Balance as at 31.12.2022

REZBZZHE+ZA=+-—BHHWHER
Allowance for
Principal credit losses
as at as at Net as at
Borrower 31.12.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
i R R

+=ZA=t+—-B +=ZB=+—-HB +=A=+-—8H

BERA WEE WNEEBERE HRER

RMB RMB RMB

AR¥TT AR®T AR T

Individual 1 — PRC resident 600,000 372,000 228,000
BA—FEER

Individual 2 — PRC resident 810,000 502,000 308,000
AA2—FEER

Individual 3 — PRC resident 900,000 558,000 342,000
AA3I—FEER

Individual 4 — PRC resident 800,000 496,000 304,000
BAA4—FEER

Individual 5 — PRC resident 800,000 496,000 304,000
EAS—FEER

Individual 6 — PRC resident 5,000,000 3,100,000 1,900,000
AA6—FEFER

Individual 7 — PRC resident 5,000,000 3,100,000 1,900,000
BA7T-—HEER

13,910,000 8,624,000 5,286,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of money lending services (continued)

Loan impairments

In early 2022, the Company appointed valuer to ascertain the
value for the expected credit loss of the loans for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The impairment assessment was prepared on the basis of
Expected Credit Loss in accordance with “HKFRS 9—Financial
Instruments”. The HKFRS 9 outlines a “Three-stage” general
approach (the “General Approach”) for impairment based
on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. To
determine the amount of impairment, the valuer discussed
with the management on the credit risk level on the status
of the loans (including the consideration of the default of the
loans, as at 31 December 2021, most of loans are in default
except for two loans with maturity in January 2022 which
also defaulted after the financial year ended 31 December
2021), and split the receivables into different stage of default
and then by applying the Standard ECL Formula (i.e. expected
credit loss = exposure at default (“EAD") X probability of
default ("PD") X loss given default ("LGD") X discount
factor) to come up with the allowance for credit losses.

As at 31 December 2022, an impairment loss of the HK
Loan Receivables and PRC Loan Receivables of approximately
HK$16.9 million was recognised (2021: impairment loss
of the Total Loan Receivables of approximately HK$15.55
million). The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in expected credit loss provided for the PRC Loans.

With regard to the latest repayment status, partial
repayments of the PRC Loans interests and principals
have been received by the Company during 2022 and full
repayments of the loans has been received by the Company
during 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of money lending services (continued)
Internal control system

Before granting the loans, the Group has conducted credit
assessment basically follow the Internal Control Procedures
(as defined below) of the Company including but not limited
to the background of the potential customer including its job
nature and income for their repayment abilities.

The Group has considered the factors in credit assessment
before granting the loans. In light of the economic
uncertainties, the Group would only consider granting of
loans to independent third parties with collaterals/guarantee
in the future.

Internal control procedures (“Internal Control Procedures”)
The Company will consider certain factors in credit
assessment including but not limited to (i) the background of
the potential client including its job nature and income; (ii)
the credit history such as previous loans and the repayment
durations; and (iii) the bank history in the bank statement.

Loan terms are determined with mainly reference to the
market rates, financial background of each client and value
of collaterals (if applicable).

The identity, beneficial ownership of collaterals (if applicable)
and the amount wishes to borrow of the potential customer
will be assessed. After the assessment and based on the
information provided, the application will be reviewed and
preliminary due diligence will be conducted. Upon the loan
assessment, the officer will approve the loan application and
need to ensure that the customer meet the eligibility and
approval criteria for the loan. If the applicant is considered
fail after the assessment, the application will be denied.
When the application together with the relevant results
from the credit assessment are approved, the applicant will
sign the loan agreement and the loan will be drawn to the
applicant thereafter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of money lending services (continued)
Internal control system (continued)

Internal control procedures (“Internal Control Procedures”)
(continued)

A loan register is maintained by the Group in order to keep
track of loan and interest repayments. The Group will also
remind clients before due date by telephone calls and/or
sending relevant debit notes.

If there were overdue loans, follow up telephone calls will
be made to remind clients for repayment. If clients still fail to
repay, demand letter will be issued. After a final reminder and
no response from customer, further actions included but not
limited to legal proceedings may be considered to institute to
recover the outstanding loan and interest receivable.

Provision of financial services
Due to unfavorable market conditions, no income was
generated from financial consultancy services.

Securities investments

The Group had equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in aggregate of approximately
HK$6,240,000 as at 31 December 2022, representing
approximately 3.85% of the Company’s total assets (2021:
approximately HK$16,041,000, representing approximately
6.72% of the Company’s total assets).

The Company’s investment strategy is to invest in securities
that have growth potential, with the aims to capture
capital appreciation and diversify the Company’s investment
portfolio in order to reduce concentration of investment risks
in one industry and maximise value for the Shareholders.
The composition of the investment portfolio may change
from time to time during the coming year. In order to
mitigate the possible financial risks related to the equities,
the investment portfolio will be monitored regularly and
appropriate actions would be taken whenever necessary in a
prudent manner in response to changes in market situation.
None of the securities investments with fair value exceeding
HK$10,000,000 as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board admits the responsibility to environmental
protection. Over the years, the Group has committed to
reduce waste and pollution with a view of effective and
efficient resources utilisation in the office spaces. Staff are
reminded from time to time the Group’s direction in this
respect.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
The Group's main business and operation work within
common trade practice environment and the Group
endeavours to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements. In relation to the human resources, the
Group is committed to comply with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, such as the Employment
Ordinance, ordinances in relation to discrimination, the
Privacy Ordinance and the Minimum Wage Ordinance.
The Group also values good conduct of the employees
and has set out clear guidelines to prevent bribery and to
regulate the acceptance of benefits by the employees. On
the corporate level, the Group continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (“GEM Listing Rules”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), such as disclosure
of interests, corporate governance, Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers and “Inside
Information” disclosure. The Group employs legal and
financial advisers when undergoing acquisitions or other
corporate exercises. During the year ended 31 December
2022, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and rules by the Group.

The Group recognises importance of retaining talents to
ensure the ongoing execution of business plans. The Group
has established all-rounded staff policy and guidelines for
staff welfare, provide a safe workplace, and support the
development of talent. The Group provides incentives to
its employees based on their performance. The Group
encouraged employees to update their work-related
knowledge, skill by providing training offered by external
organisations. During the year, no violation of labour law
was recorded. The key customers of the Group include the
long term trading customers and tenants of the investment
properties. The key suppliers of the Group are the suppliers
of the trading business. The Group has established long
term and solid business relationship with the suppliers which
ensures stable supply and quality products which meet
customers’ demand. During the year, there was no material
dispute between the Group and the customers/suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$26,134,000 (2021:
HK$73,267,000), representing a decrease of approximately
64.3% as compared to that of last year.

Cost of sales for the year under review was approximately
HK$30,328,000 (2021: HK$72,411,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 58.1% as compared to that of
last year. The decrease of cost of sales was mainly due to the
decrease in the distribution business.

Administrative expenses for the year under review was
approximately HK$47,516,000 (2021: HK$32,458,000),
representing an increase of approximately 46.3% as
compared to that of last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in marketing expenses,
entertainment expenses and exchange differences.

Finance costs for the year under review was approximately
HK$4,272,000 (2021: HK$6,279,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 32.0% as compared to that of last
year mainly due to less reimbursement of finance costs borne
by lenders.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company in the amount of approximately
HK$62,359,000 (2021: HK$51,270,000). Basic loss per share
of the Company decrease from HK52.92 cents (restated) for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to HK51.52 cents for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with its
internally generated resources and borrowings during the
year under review. At 31 December 2022, the bank balances
and cash of the Group was approximately HK$1,161,000
(2021: HK$2,850,000).

At 31 December 2022, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$71,934,000 (2021: HK$129,180,000) and
the net current liabilities was approximately HK$63,788,000
(2021: HK$34,643,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2022, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$90,161,000 (2021:
HK$109,533,000), which mainly comprised of trade and
other payables, contract liabilities, borrowings, margin loans
payables, financial guarantee contract, amounts due to non-
controlling interests and income tax payable. These liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United
State Dollars, Australian Dollars and New Taiwan Dollars.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$162,095,000 (2021: HK$238,713,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, turned to 0.56 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 0.46).

Segmental Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2022 by business segment is set out in note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 21 (2021: 52)
total number of full-time employees. Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 were approximately HK$12,798,000 in
total (2021: HK$18,237,000). The Group determines the
remuneration and compensation payable to its staff based
on individual performance and expertise. Apart from basic
remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group's performance as well
as individual contribution.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's issued ordinary
share capital was HK$1,300,017.31 divided into 130,001,731
shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) (2021: HK$1,059,552.64
divided into 105,955,264 shares of HK$0.01 each).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal of
investment properties

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC by additional acquisition of further
equity interests a subsidiary

On 17 July 2017, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("YWML") and Skyline Top Limited (“STL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the YWML has agreed to
sell and the STL has agreed to purchase the sale shares (the
“Sale Shares”), representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Delightful Hope Limited (the “Target Company”) for cash
consideration of HK$55,000,000. The Target Company is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is owned
as to 50% by each of YWML and STL. Following completion,
the Target Company will be wholly owned by the STL and
will become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The principal assets of the Target Company consist of
properties comprise 8 commercial units of a total gross
floor area of approximately 1,690 sg.m. in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, and a residential house in
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC of a total
gross floor area of approximately 315.23 sq.m. According
to the audited consolidated account of the Target Company,
the book value of the properties was approximately
HK$110,236,000 as at 31 December 2016.

The consideration payable by the STL to the YWML for the
Sale Shares is HK$55,000,000 and shall be satisfied by the
STL's payment in cash to the YWML or its nominee in the
following manner: (a) as to the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000, within 14 days after the date of the
Agreement; (b) as to the balance of HK$35,000,000, upon
completion.

On 31 July 2017, a supplemental agreement was entered
into between the parties that the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000 shall be paid on or before 28 August
2017 or such later date as the parties may agree in writing.
HK$20,000,000 of the above payment has been paid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal of
investment properties (continued)

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC by additional acquisition of further
equity interests a subsidiary (continued)

On 17 January 2018, the parties had entered into a second
supplemental agreement whereas the timing of payment
of the balance of HK$35,000,000 was extended from 17
January 2018 to 17 January 2019. On 19 March 2019, the
parties had entered into a third supplemental agreement
whereas the Long Stop Date has been extended from 17
January 2019 to 31 March 2020 and further extended to
30 September 2020, and payment of the remaining balance
shall be paid by one or several instalments on or before the
date of completion. As at the date of this report, the amount
of HK$13,958,249 remained outstanding.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 28 September 2022, China Agricultural Finance
Group Limited (“China AFG") as vendor, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the purchaser, pursuant to which China AFG
has conditionally agreed to sell to the purchaser, and the
purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase from China
AFG, the sales share, representing 34% of the issued capital
of Luxury Regal Limited (“Luxury Regal”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China AFG, Luxury Regal in turn is the sole legal
and beneficial owner of the entire portfolio of issued shares
in China AF Asset Management Limited (Rl 2z & EE
B AR AT (formerly known as CHINA AGRICULTURAL
CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED (R EIREHERAE]) ) ("CAAF"),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
and which is licensed and authorised by the SFC (as defined
below) to engage in Regulated Activity Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) as defined in the
SFO, at a consideration of HK$136,000.

On 15 October 2022, China AFG disposed another 33%
of the issued capital of Luxury Regal at a consideration
of HK$132,000 and on 31 October 2022, disposed the
balance of 33% of the issued capital of Luxury Regal at a
consideration of HK$132,000 to independent third parties.

Upon completion of the above transactions, Luxury Regal
and CAAF ceased to be members of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Litigation

Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang Technology Company Limited
(Shengshi Fugiang), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, has received a claim for lost of assets at the sum
of approximately RMB1,964,000. The Plaintiff commenced
civil proceedings against Shengshi Fugiang and filed a
statement that they cannot retrieve the furniture and
equipment from the premises owned by Shengshi Fugiang
and was leased to the Plaintiff, and therefore Shengshi
Fugiang should compensate for the Plaintiff’s lost. Shengshi
Fugiang has made a counterclaim against the Plaintiff for
outstanding rent and delay in deliver vacant possession at the
sum of approximately RMB980,000. The case was first heard
in Court on 26 February 2021. After second court hearing,
according to the written judgement of the court, the Plaintiff
will be responsible to pay to Shengshi Fugiang an amount
of RMB596,000 for claims and legal expense and Shengshi
Fugiang will be responsible to pay to the Plaintiff an amount
of RMB594,000 for damages and valuation fee. The Plaintiff
has made an appeal on 26 February 2022. Subsequent to
the reporting period, the Court of Appeal has dismissed the
appeal. According to the written judgement by the Court,
the responsibility of both Plaintiff and Shengshi Fugiang has
been upheld.

Charges on Group's Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the listed equity investments
listed in Hong Kong with the fair value of approximately
HK$2,161,000 (2021: HK$5,922,000) have been pledged to
financial institutions to secure the margin loans payables of
approximately HK$4,768,000 (2021: HK$6,090,000).

Further, the investment property located in Hong Kong
with the fair value of approximately HK$9,780,000 (2021:
HK$9,730,000) has been pledged to a financial institution in
Hong Kong to secure a term loan of HK$9,000,000 (2021:
HK$9,000,000).

Unlisted investments which are classified as equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income were pledged to a PRC company as to secure a 3-year
loan of RMB4,550,000 granted to a private company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

At 31 December 2022, the Group has provided financial
guarantee to Gold Wide Holdings Limited, which is classified
as an interest in associate in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, for a term loan with a principal
amount of RMB13 million, bearing interest of 8% per annum
for a period of three years up to 14 January 2022 (2021:
RMB13 million). Since the term loan has not been repaid, the
financial guarantee shall continue in force.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitment
amounting to approximately HK$43,202,000 (2021:
HK$47,628,000).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

All of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
mainly denominated either in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
or United State Dollars, Australian Dollars or New Taiwan
dollars. The Directors do not consider that the Group is
exposed to any material foreign currency exchange risk.
Therefore, no hedging devices or other alternative have been
implemented.

Events after the Reporting Period

Disposal of an investment property

An indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Success
Royal Investment Limited (”Success Royal”), has defaulted a
mortgage repayment to Delta Wealth Finance Limited (“Delta
Wealth"), a licensed money lender in Hong Kong, and
Delta Wealth filed an originating summons against Success
Royal on 21 February 2023 under Court of First Instance
Miscellaneous Proceedings No. 275 of 2023 (the “Originating
Summons”) to, inter alia, recover possession of the Property
and claim for amounts due and owing under the Mortgage.
The amount due and owing by Success Royal to Delta Wealth
was approximately HK$10,421,000 as at 21 February 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Events after the Reporting Period (continued)

Disposal of an investment property (continued)

The Court ordered, inter alia, on 6 July 2023 that Success
Royal do repay HK$10,530,000 together with interest at the
rate of 12% per annum from 8 March 2023 to the date of
the Order and thereafter at judgment rate until payment to
Delta Wealth (the “Judgment Sum”), and that Success Royal
do surrender vacant possession of the mortgaged property to
Delta Wealth by 2 August 2023. Success Royal surrendered
vacant possession of the mortgaged property to Delta Wealth
on 14 July 2023.

On 27 July 2023, Delta Wealth informed Success Royal that
Delta Wealth contemplates to dispose of the mortgaged
property at the sale price of HK$9,780,000 (the “Forced
Sale”), and net proceeds therefrom will be utilised to off-set
against the Judgment Sum.

For further details, please refer to the announcements dated
1 August 2023.

Disposal of partial of PRC properties

On 3 November 2023 and 30 December 2023, Fuyu
entered into two sale and purchase agreements with two
independent third parties to dispose of certain PRC properties
at the consideration of RMB4,250,000 (”Disposal 1”) and
RMB3,500,000 ("“Disposal II"”) respectively in which the Board
had approved and consented Fuyu to sell the PRC properties
on behalf of the Group. As at the date of this report, the
Disposal | has been completed and the Disposal Il has not
been completed.

Details are also set out in Note 54 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The Hong Kong economy is expected to be improved visibly
in the first quarter of 2023, led by the strong recovery of
inbound tourism and domestic demand. Looking forward,
inbound tourism and domestic demand will remain the major
drivers of economic growth this year. Visitor arrivals should
recover further as transportation and handling capacity
continue to catch up. The improving economic situation
and prospects should boost domestic demand, though tight
financial conditions will remain a constraint. On the other
hand, exports of goods will continue to face significant
challenges. Slower growth in the advanced economies will
continue to weigh on external demand, though the faster
recovery of the Mainland economy should provide some
relief. The recent banking sector stress in the US and Europe
also added uncertainties to the global economic outlook.

One-stop value chain services

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in the start of
2020, potential customers of the Group’s one-stop value
chain business had cut their budget on [T-related services.
The Company, in view of this situation, has been devoted
its all-out effort to the business including but not limited to
maintain good relationship and communication with current
customers and seek for new customers. The business for
selling gaming related products is simultaneously developed
during the year.

This segment has its ups and downs in the last couple
of years, the Directors believe that after the recovery of
COVID-19 pandemic, the global economy is expected to
improve, and so will be the performance of this segment.

Property investment
The Group originally has few property investments in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group is cautious of the tension
between USA and China, as well as the pessimistic global
atmosphere. The Group will carefully monitor its property
investments portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

Distribution business

The Group identifies local and overseas suppliers, mainly
including comprise manufacturers, brand owners, and
wholesalers, to sources and procures desirable food and
beverages, agricultural products and consumable, and
distribute the products in Hong Kong and the PRC.

For food and beverages, with the continuous effort of the
management of the Group in diversifying the portfolio of
food and beverages, the Group mainly offers (i) processed
seafood (e.g. crab stick, snow crab leg, scallop, fish tofu
and fish balls); (ii) fresh and frozen seafood (e.g. fish,
crab, lobster and scallops); (iii) fresh and frozen meat (e.g.
wagyu); (iv) grocery food (e.g. cereals and legumes, oilseeds,
grain and oilseed products); and (v) liquor (e.g. whisky and
wine). The food and beverage products are distributed and
marketed to a wide range of corporate customers, including
supermarkets, grocery stores, catering companies and
chained restaurants in Hong Kong. The food and beverage
products are also marketed and sold to end-customers
through online sales platforms, including the online store
on a third-party online platform (i.e. HKTVmall) and the
self-operated online store of the Group on a social media
platform (i.e. Facebook online shop).

For agricultural products, the Group mainly distributes
sunflower meals to a reputable customer, which is a Chinese
state-owned enterprise, since FY2022. Sunflower meals are
primarily used in food rations for livestock and poultry due to
its high protein content. The Group is also in the negotiation
with such enterprise in sourcing and suppling corn to it.

For consumable products, the Group mainly offers re-usable
bags to various type of customers, including government
authority (i.e. Hong Kong Post Office), corporate customers
which include companies listed on the Main Board,
educational institutions (e.g. schools, Education Bureau) and
non-governmental organisations (NGOs).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Provision of money lending services

Under the current economy environment, the Directors
believe that there will be increase demand of money lending
of individuals or corporate customers. However, at the
same time, risk of default may increase as it may be hard
for the customers to repay the loan at this difficult time.
The management will further enhance the loan approval
procedures and carefully filter and screen out customers with
high risks in order to protect the interest of the Group. The
Directors are more cautions in the development of the money
lending business. The Group will continue to maintain sound
credit control policy to balance the finance income against
credit risk from respective borrowers.

Provision of financial services

The performance of the financial services business has
not been satisfactory. The Group had an interest in a
licensed subsidiary, China AF Asset Management Limited,
a company holding Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) licences under Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC”) which was disposed in the
fourth quarter of 2022. This segment also provides financial
consultancy services but no income was generated in the
Reporting Period. The Directors have decided to scale down
the financial services business and depending on the market
conditions, reallocate its resources from the financial services
to develop other businesses that the Group expected to have
a brighter prospect.

EEEFNWR DN

RERERE

EEMKERETN EFAR AAREERTE
PzBERKESIEZIM A REHREP
RILRHEFMBABEER EOERKRAE
Em-ERERE - FRAERERIEFL
HFHREBRYLMHESAREPUNREAEE
fﬁ“%%ﬂ?@ﬂﬁ%%h%ﬂ%ﬁm%
B-AEEKEEEFRREZEEEITERR
FE R B A R E ERAZEERER

RESBARE
TRMBEEBEZRB A E-AEBR — B
BB ARPEREEEEEERAA (—
MRAESFMPESHERZES ([FE
ADT%%ﬂﬁwﬁk%uﬁﬂ&%%ﬂh
HEEER)EROARDEARERZ AR =
T _FFENFTEERE-ZoBANREHRSE
MABARYE HRREHEMEE L AR
AN BECREMBRESBMEES LRED
SR BEMBRBEEFDELERAERAE
EEHEEANR 2 EMER-

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3§

25



26

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 50 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 93 to 94 of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 8 to 25 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 303 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers accounted for approximately
54.3% (2021: 73.1%) of the Group's turnover, and the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 60.9% (2021:
68.9%) of the Group’s purchase, for the year ended 31
December 2022. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2022, any
Director or his associates or any shareholder (who owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in the above-mentioned customers or suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31 December
2022 in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 97 to 98 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF THE
RESISTER OF MEMBERS

It is proposed that the annual general meeting ("AGM") of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 will be
held on a date to be fixed by the Board. Notice of the AGM
will be published on the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkex.com.hk and the website of the Company at www.
chinaeco-farming.com as well as despatched to shareholders
in due course.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 6 May
2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The Share Option Scheme was in force for a period of 10
years from 6 May 2011 to 5 May 2021. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible participants the Directors may at its
absolute discretion select as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants include
any employee (whether full-time or part-time, including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), shareholder, customer, supplier of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest; any
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support; any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of the Group or any Invested Entity; and any
other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company. Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option. The subscription price for shares
under the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
May 2011, the Company was also authorised to issue up to
242,459,969 shares (i.e. 121,229,984 consolidated shares
upon the share consolidation effective on 11 October 2013)
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group,
being 10% of the shares in issue on 6 May 2011 (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant options
beyond the General Scheme Limit to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

On 7 December 2020, the Company granted 55,800,000
share options as to 9,300,000 share options to a director
and, 46,500,000 share options under the Share Option
Scheme to 5 consultants of the Company, who are not
directors or employees of the Group (the “Non-employee
Participants”). Exercise price of the share option was
HK$0.0554 to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.01
each of the Company. Closing price of the Shares of the
Company was HK$0.0550. These Non-employee Participants
provide consultancy services, business development support
to the Group, including but not limited to provision of advice
in relation to the business expansion in the grocery industry
and technical consultancy, and sourcing potential business
development opportunity to the Group.
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Number of Number of
Business segment Services Provided/Providing share options consultants
E 33k BRI 42 RS BREHAR BEEEE
Business development Trading of consumable products 9,300,000 1
FBER HEME Z
Business development Business expansion in the grocery market 9,300,000 * 3 3

and technical consultancy = 27,900,000

EBERE TR T 15 S R 1T 56 59 77 T Y S SR R
Administration Business Administration and legal, financial 9,300,000 1

and risk advice
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Board considered that the share options granted to
the consultants can help retaining and motivating these
Non-employee Participants to generate growth in the
Company’s value. The share options were granted to these
consultants to provide incentives to continuously make
contributions to the long term growth of the Group and to
maintain an on-going relationship with them.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules 23.09(3) that the total
number of share options available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was nil since the Share Option Scheme
lapsed on 5 May 2021, representing 0% of the issued shares
of the Company as at the date of the Annual Report, which
does not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of Shares in respect of
which options had been granted and accepted and remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was 5,614,428
after the Capital Reorganisation of the Company which
became effective on 22 October 2021 and adjusted after the
completion of the Rights Issue completed on 19 May 2022
(2021: 5,580,000 after the Capital Reorganisation and before
the Rights Issue), representing approximately 4.32% (2021:
5.27%) of the Company’s issued share capital as at that date.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Li Aiming (appointed on 10 May 2023)

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (resigned on 13 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey
Mr. Zhang Min
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (resigned on 19 July 2023)
Ms. Siu Yuk Ming
(appointed on 26 March 2024)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
(continued)

Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term of two
years and may be terminated by not less than three months
prior notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
appointment letter.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than six
months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
service agreement except for Mr. Li who has signed a service
contract with the Company for a fixed term of one year
and may be terminated by not less than one month prior
notice in writing served by either party to the other. Each of
the executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus,
the amount of which will be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion having regard to the operation results of
the Company and performance of the Directors.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr.
Zhang Min and Ms. Siu Yuk Ming, an annual confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2022.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
the Directors, were as follows:

Long position in the underlying shares in respect of the share
options of the Company (which were regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) granted under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 6 May 2011:

EE BETBRABRIENGESHAL
<=
AEEEE RS TRABRAUEEHA
THMEFBED RSN S M RRMTE12
K13 e

EERBETHRAERAQFREM
MEEBE 2 R0 HERGO R ES 2&
BEKA

N-ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H0 XARAIESE
EEITHRABRAR G SKE M EE
(EERRBHFRAEGRN ([FBHRBAEEG])
EXVER) 2 i fn - iR D REH R BRI
BHE K EIEGI EXVIEIET7 RN EBAME K
ARRAIMBRIZEZEEAR (BIEREE S
R EKRIZERNEEWEIEIRARES
ZHEEIAR)IIBEESF R EKHIZE352
BEBRAARRRFEZERMzEEKE
IRBEREEHETELFR I BB 2GEMLET
RAIES 46 EFE5.67RBEME RN T MR
FTo e RORBIT :

ERABRBARRAR T ——FHEANBAEK
M B BIR L AR R BRE (B
RIELTUED TR AITET R) AR
BRREFR

Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed as at
Exercise price asat  Granted during Exercised during during 31 December
Name Date of grant per Share  Exercisable period 1 January 2022 the year the year the year 2022
(HKS)
R=BzZf R=BzZf
SRRHG -A-H +ZB=+-H
#e RiLAH fTRE fTHEH ER:d EREH FRfTE EREN R AT
()
So David Tat Man 7 December 2020 0.5506 7 December 2020 - 930,000 - - - 935,738
BiEX “Z-ZF+-A+tH (Note) 6 December 2025 (Note)
(W) -—B-EE+-A+AZ (W)
ZZZRETZARA

AAFTMHEBRR - —FRA A+ ILEZK

At

Note: After the completion of the Rights Issue of the Company on i)
19 May 2022, the exercise price was adjusted to HK$0.5506 % TEEFAEZE055068 T RET—F
and the outstanding share options granted to a director EE 2 AT 8B AR 7 58 B £935,738
were adjusted to 935,738. e
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”
above, at no time during the Reporting Period, there
subsisted arrangements to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is a party, being arrangements whose subjects
are, or one of whose objects is, to enable any of the directors
or the chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors of the Company, their
spouse or their children under the age of 18, had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware of and having made due
enquiries, as at 31 December 2022, the following parties,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions directly or indirectly
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company:

FERR (&)
REQXARDREBARG 2HR:

Percentage of

Number of issued share
Shareholder Capacity shares capital
e &1
B R g4 BHEEHE BREAzZBDL
A 'S Investment Holdings Ltd (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,135,200 10.87%
A S Investment Holdings Ltd (Fff3£1) EnEBA
Ever Better Holdings Ltd (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 14,135,200 10.87%
Ever Better Holdings Ltd (Fff3E1) ZEGEEEE
Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes (Note 1) Beneficial owner, interest of 16,167,600 12.44%
B (k1) spouse and interest of
controlled corporation
EnlEBa A REERR
SRS EE
Mr. So Chi Ming (Note 1) (Note 2) Beneficial owner, interest of 16,167,600 12.44%
BRERRLA (MsE1) (HIEE2) spouse and interest of
controlled corporation
EnlEBA A REERR
SIS A E R
VC Brokerage Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 11,300,000 8.69%
EBEHFARAT (MFE3) EmilEA A
VC Financial Group Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 11,300,000 8.69%
ERTREEEGR AR (MFE3) 2 A E S
Value Convergence Holdings Limited Beneficial owner and interest of 12,161,600 9.35%

(Note 3)

ERERARAR (HE3)

controlled corporation

BEa A ARZIEFAE# D
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company: (continued)

Note 1: A S Investment Holdings Ltd is wholly-owned by Ever
Better Holdings Ltd (“Ever Better”). Ever Better is 50%
owned by Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes (“Ms. Yeung”) and
50% owned by Mr. So Chi Ming (“Mr. So”). Ms. Yeung
is personally interested in 342,000 ordinary shares in the
Company. Mr. So is personally interested in 1,190,400
ordinary shares in the Company. Ms. Yeung is the spouse
of Mr. So.

Note 2:  Mr. So is uncle of Mr. So David Tat Man, an executive

director of the Company.

Note 3: VC Brokerage Limited is wholly-owned by VC Financial
Group Limited (“VC Financial”). VC Financial is wholly-
owned by Value Convergence Holdings Limited (“VC
Holdings”). VC Holdings is a company listed on the main
board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and has
an interest of 861,000 shares as beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any
other person, other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company, who held interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products
On 4 February 2016, Chan Kee and Right Ocean
entered into the Sole Distributorship Agreement
whereas Chan Kee has agreed to appoint Right
Ocean as its sole and exclusive distributor for sale
and distribution of the Products within the territories
of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (the “Sale
Transactions”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and

distribution of grocery food products (continued)
The Sole Distributorship Agreement was renewed on
25 March 2019 (the “Renewed Sole Distributorship
Agreement”).
Distributorship Agreement, Chan Kee and the Right
Ocean shall jointly determine the wholesale prices for

Pursuant to the Renewed Sole

the sale of the Products to the retailers. Chan Kee
shall give the JV Company cost report summarising
the production costs of purchasing the Products
from the manufacturer/supplier of the Products
(“Production Costs”). The wholesale prices of the
Products may be adjusted and agreed in writing
between the parties from time to time with reference
to the prevailing market value of the products which
are similar in nature to the Products or the Production
Costs. Pursuant to the Renewed Sole Distributorship
Agreement, the purchase price of Products to be paid
by Right Ocean to Chan Kee shall equal to the higher
of (i) 1.06 times of the Production Costs; or (ii) the
Production Costs plus HK$11,500. Right Ocean and
Chan Kee agree and acknowledge that the Renewed
Sole Distributorship Agreement shall commence on 4
February 2019 and continue for a period of 3 years.

The Sole Distributorship Agreement has not been
further renewed upon or after its expiry on 4 February
2019.

Right Ocean is indirectly held as to 51% by the
Company and 49% by Ms. Yoo, Chan Kee (90%
held by Mr. Chan, the spouse of Ms. Yoo) is therefore
connected person at subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Sale Transactions contemplated under the Sole
Distributorship Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERXE (E)
1. Continuing Connected Transactions - sale and 1. EEBREXRS - HERSHEHRER
distribution of grocery food products (continued) (&)
The Master Agreement FTEHE
The Sole Distributorship Agreement B— S iEE i
Date: 25 March 2019
HE: —ET-NF=ZA=Z+HH
Parties: () Chan Kee
HESRE (i) CER
(i) Right Ocean
(i EUE
Duration: Commencing from 4 February 2019 and continue for a period of 3 years
FERH B-Z-NF_ANABRG FER/FIF

Subject matter:
FEEIE:

Annual Caps:

FELER:

Transaction amount:

RPEH:

The Sale Transactions
HERX S

The Sale Transactions will be subject to the following annual caps:
HERXZHHAMNE NIIFE LR :

The aggregate amounts payable by Right Ocean to Chan Kee for the Sale
Transactions shall not exceed HK$12 million, HK$15 million and HK$18
million for the years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, respectively.

HE-_ZT-—NF+A=+—H ZZEZZEF+_A=+—HERZZE
T+ A=+ -RIEFE BEREBEHERXIEN TREHESHE -
DRI HEBI2AEAETT 15ABEBTRISEES T

For the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$0.3 million
REE-_ZT-_—F+_A=1+—HIEFE H03EEBT

Terms: On normal commercial terms and at rates no less favourable from

&K independent third parties in respect of the transactions similar to the Sale
Transactions. Detailed payment terms are specified in individual contracts
governing particular transactions.
BR—REEGREEBTERBLE=ZTHHERFRUR G ELE
A HEFR BB HERZXSHERE LT ETEA -

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement FBEERARFTBRAT-NEF=

dated 25 March 2019.

AZ+HhBR R
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EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

BEXS (&)

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. EEBRENS - HERDHEERER
distribution of grocery food products (continued) (&)
Definitions E=
“Chan Kee" Chan Kee Holdings Limited

various products being packaged ramen and udon noodle
sold by Chan Kee and purchased by and to be distributed by

HREHEMAREBE R ENSEEENALSELM

Right Ocean Asia Limited

[BREC i R EEFR AT
“Products”

Right Ocean
[ZEEMm] i

EE o
“Right Ocean”
YR i B e M AR A A

“Sole Distributorship Agreement”

[ — 0 g = #

the agreement entered into between Chan Kee and
Right Ocean dated 25 March 2019 in respect of the Sale
Transactions

Rl R HEER T LN BEHR - F=H
“ThB®NHE

The above transactions have complied with the
requirements for continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole; and (iv)
have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 25 March 2019.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business or interest that
compete with the business of the Group or has or may have
any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in Note
44 1o the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no restriction against
such under the laws in Bermuda.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance practices are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BEALRS
REBE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFER
ZBABEBALIRZHBIHNGEESMBEREMN T
48

HEER
RBE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=+T—BIEFE"
RARIZEE BERBRRABSSAZHE
AT (EERGEMEMMRA BEmEE AR HAE
EEBHRBFRELRAEERNEEFE
FREMA AR FE R -

EARERFE
RREBAFTEFBEHNGE T B RERM T
44 o

BrREERE
BEOREAPILBEHEELEEE LIRS
HEZR R A] 2 2 ) 4l BI R B A ] 12 5T R B AR 1R
o

EER
BRAARRLEREARRIABENARSE

[EERERRE] —&he

RE -HEkER
BRARARR HEREARERANFRHE
RARSE RE- g RhEAHmE] —f-

R
AEEEERSRERENFHMBERIAR
RAIFMHEZEERBERE BEERENF
ﬁo

EEZNFNbARRFHEESRNEERT
BEFN AARRMKERETE

ARPDRMBRETE ERYEZERAE
REE R BT EIMFBRN EXX T
Pergst 8l — 80 KR B R M AR M E43 o
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Siu Yuk Ming (Chairman), Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (“Asian Alliance”) was
appointed as auditor of the Company on 30 November 2018
and subsequently re-appointed at the general meetings held
on 23 May 2019, 5 June 2020, 10 June 2021 and 16 June
2022. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was audited by Asian Alliance. A
resolution for the reappointment of Asian Alliance as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
Liu Chun Fai
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 May 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review except for the following deviation:

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides, among
others, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Two executive directors of the Company have been
appointed as Chairman of the board and chief executive
officer respectively, effective from 14 February 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out
in such code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

A gy
TREEARE

5IE
ARAEFE ([EFR)RERERNEE
BAEZ EEARRREF-

AR bEERRAZESERENESTS
REFZNMBEZEARSHAAARRRKRRZ
FHAEMBE -

ARARNBECBEFEAN-BEETGEMED
RAMSE T AMESAcCEERTAREEE
amE ([EEERTA) ZEA TGRS
HE N SRt 2 R BET T AR ER S -

SFRIZ SFRHGEXX A2 MGEHRE (RPaH)
ITRETRESR . ACRBED LT EHE—
ARBRE-ARBEMEBRTEST D HIE
ZEREFSEERMATRAESR BT
FoRATOBRER-

EEETRSFRD

RAB B HRMGEM L #R A 55.48 8 5.6 715 FT
B HAERESETESFR S 2BRFFHI-
KeMBEESFELARBER 2B BARA
A REBE—FE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H1t
BRFE EFBHETEHEFTHETES
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board currently comprises eight Directors, five executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Li Aiming (appointed on 10 May 2023)

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (resigned on 13 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey
Mr. Zhang Min
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (resigned on 19 July 2023)
Ms. Siu Yuk Ming
(appointed on 26 March 2024)

The Directors’ biographical information are set out on pages
5 to 7 in this report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company is committed to having a diversity of the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
Company considers that having a Board with diverse culture
would assure Directors that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment
where bias, discrimination and harassment on any matter
are not tolerated. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification
to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. One of the independent
non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualification or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules. Each independent non-executive Director has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed
term of two years and may be terminated by not less than
three months prior notice in writing served by either party to
the other or in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and have received
from each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring of
the Group's overall strategies and policies; approving of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and
overseeing the management. The Board focuses on overall
strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against its Directors and officers in the
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREARE

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
The Board meets regularly at least four times a year to review
the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Details of the attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and general meetings of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

EES2BNEEHER
EESELOEEEHBRTEAEHE UEH
REBEYBREERE -
HE_T-_—_F#+_-_A=+—"HILFE &
EERARFEETGERLIRRRGZER
FREREAT

Attendance of

HE
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Exaes BRERXE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Liu Chun Fai BEBEYE 9/9 171
Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy HRMEEE 9/9 0/1
Mr. So David Tat Man BRIEXSEE 10/10 171
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith RENGHE 10/10 11

Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SREE 9/10 171
Mr. Zhang Min RESLE 9/10 11
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REHTL 10/10 1/1

BOARD PRACTICES

Apart from the four regular Board meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Board met on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter was
required. The Directors received detailed agenda and
documents prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure that
the Directors were able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access the advice, regulatory updates on governance and
regulatory matters from professional parties if necessary.

The Company Secretary and the company secretarial team
are responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committee meetings and ensure compliance
with the procedures of the Board meetings and general
meetings of the Company. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to
the Directors at the Board meetings. Trainings conducted by
professional service provider regarding Listing Rules’ updates
on corporate governance have been provided to the Directors
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance is upheld
and that the Directors possess up-to-date information to
discharge their duties.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to the Company.

All of the Directors have either attended seminars organized
by external professionals relevant to the business or directors’
duties or read professional materials published by regulators
or professional bodies for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions and roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company should be held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Company appointed
Mr. Liu Chun Fai as an executive director and chairman of
the Company and Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy, as an executive
directors and chief executive officer of the Company,
effective on 14 February 2022.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following the
re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda in October 2007, it was re-established pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on 15 February 2008
and specific terms of reference were adopted. As at 31
December 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, all are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Ms. Yuen Wai Man and
Mr. Zhang Min. Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The role and function written in the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are no less exacting terms
than the Code. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and recommends
the Board on its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the executive Directors with reference to the Board's
corporate goal and objectives. No Directors or any of his/
her associates can be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration are
considered by the Remuneration Committee to determine
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment; or relating to
dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair, not
excessive, reasonable and appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee of the Company held one meeting to review
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management. Details of the attendance of the meeting are
as follows:
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EEXREREFER
BE_Z-__F+_A=+—HBILFE K
ARAIFHEESHBHA—NEE URAT
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Attendance
Name of members REER HE IR
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman) SREELAE (F/E) 212
Mr. Zhang Min RESLA 2/2
Ms. Yuen Wai Man RESLZ LT 22

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following
the re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
into Bermuda in October 2007, the Nomination Committee
was re-established pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Board on 15 February 2008 and specific terms of reference
were adopted. As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, of which all of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr. Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man. Mr.
Zhang Min is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
and supervising the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and senior management.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, including the independence status in the case of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the composition,
size and structure of the Board, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. Details of the
attendance of the meeting are as follows:

EEZRA (#)
EZENCERNEFEREZ TIEHBR
ETEHAEHESENESZ TN -H
o EFREEFENBZREAR SGUZIR
AETERRAEE  BREETRINMER - Fik -
XERBEER BXLERNERE i M
R RBIER WEERBARRANTHER
BEARTKNAEBFTRZ ENRKEFTEN
BERETREBREXEER ARRARR &
FeRAHE o R KR BEREZTIE
RPN = A/NCTE 3 o

o

\

ERREREER
HE_T-_—_F#+_-_A=+—HILFE &
ZREEGHRBRA—RgHE URBRNESFIZH
MK AR REE TEELERTESNE
UMegBm o HFFBOT

Attendance
Name of members REEHE HE IR
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman) RESLE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SR S 2/2
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REHLZ T 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. As at 31 December
2022, the Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man, Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min. Ms. Yuen Wai Man is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors;
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee had during the year performed
such functions and reviewed the unaudited quarterly and
interim results and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022.

reviewing the quarterly,

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
of the Company held six meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and corporate governance
and internal control review and make recommendation to the
Board on reappointment of the external auditor. They had,
in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company,
reviewed the annual results of the Group and recommended
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to the Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit EUEBTIFAEBeTEERET B
Committee of the Company was of the opinion that the ELE B HE5E -
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
Details of the attendance of the Company's Audit Committee AN EZEEeeENEEEEN T :
meetings are as follows:

Attendance
Name of members RE&B R
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman) RESZE(FE) 6/6
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey S REIE ST 6/6
Mr. Zhang Min RESTAE 5/6
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with its written terms of reference as set
out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Q) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

e) to review the Company's compliance with the
corporate governance code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$1,337,000 (2021:
approximately HK$870,000) was charged to the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2022. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company, Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,337,000
(2021: HK$870,000) for the provision of audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2022. A resolution for re-
appointment of Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Board concurs with the views of the
Audit Committee in determining the re-appointment of
auditors of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Directors are
aware of the reported loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$62,359,000 and had net cash
used in operating activities of approximately HK$24,522,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$63,788,000, in which total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$37,781,000,
while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$1,161,000 only.

These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.

MANAGEMENT’'S AND AUDIT COMMITTEE’S VIEWS ON

THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Directors have given careful consideration to future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources. The Directors have taken and are taking certain
measures to manage its liquidity needs and to improve its
financial position which include but are not limited to:

(i) Developing existing business

The Group's existing business is operating as usual
and the Company is using its best endeavours to
improve the Group's operating results and cash flow
by focusing on the existing distribution business. The
Group is in the course of negotiating with suppliers
in obtaining additional distributorship with an aim
to enhance the product mix and profitability of the
Group as a whole. On the other hand, the Group has
been actively seeking new business opportunities in
supplying its products in a long run.
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MANAGEMENT’S AND AUDIT COMMITTEE'S VIEWS ON
THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Revolving loan from Directors

The Company has entered into a revolving loan
agreement with each of the two executive Directors,
namely Mr. So David Tat Man and Mr. Liu Chun Fai,
respectively, for a total loan facility of HK$20 million
in January 2024 which will be used as working capital
of the Company, as appropriate.

Potential fund-raising activities

The Company has proactively explored additional
funding such as rights issue, placing of new shares,
issue of new shares and/or convertible bonds,
depending on the prevailing market conditions and
the development of the Group's businesses.

Repaying outstanding liabilities and collecting
account receivables

The Company is actively negotiating with relevant
parties and will use its best endeavor to repay the
outstanding liabilities. Additionally, the Company has
proactively negotiate with relevant parties in relation
to the recovering of its other receivables.

Loan capitalisation

The Company is in negotiation with the creditor(s)
of the Group in relation to potential capitalisation of
the debt. It will not only reduce the debt but will also
increase the shareholder base of the Company.

Exploring business opportunities

The Directors will continue to explore business
opportunities and implement stronger measures
aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including enhancing the over
profitability of the Group by introduction of higher
gross profit margin products, closely monitoring the
incurrence of operating expenditures and streamlining
unnecessary expenditures of the Group.

Enforcing cost-saving measures

The Company will use its best endeavours to
minimise its expenditures including but not limited to
administrative expenses as well as operating costs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan,
Keith was the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Ng has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Mr. Ng has resigned as Company
Secretary with effect on 10 May 2023 and Mr. Chan Kui
Ming has appointed as new Company Secretary of the
Company with effect on 10 May 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

The Directors, on the requisition of shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the persons making the requisition
and deposited at the registered office of the Company in
Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Right to convene special general meeting (continued)

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the persons making the requisition, may themselves convene
a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of two months from the said date.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong or the registered office
in Bermuda, or by e-mail to info@chinaeco-farming.com for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the persons making the requisition: (a) to give to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; (b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than one thousand words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the persons making the
requisition and deposited at the head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to its shareholders and investors
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Moreover, the
Board maintains close communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company through a number of formal
communication channels which include (i) the publication of
the Company’s latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars; (ii) the general
meetings providing an opportunity for the shareholders of
the Company to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; and (iii) the Company’s website providing an
effective communication platform between the Company
and its investors.

During the year of 2022, there has been no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(“Dividend Policy”) on 30 November 2018 pursuant to
E.1.5 in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules’ Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report with
effective from 1 January 2019.

The Policy sets out principles to determine the amount that
can be distributed to the Shareholders as dividend. The Policy
and the declaration and/or payment of future dividends
under the Policy are subject to the final determination of the
Board that the Policy and the declaration and/or payment of
dividends would be in the best interests of the Shareholders
and the Company. The Board will use their best endeavour to
maintain a balance between the Shareholders’ expectations
and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend

policy.

The Company has always strived to enhance the
Shareholders’ value. The Directors believe that distributing
dividends to the Shareholders is an important method to
create value for them.
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POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS (continued)

The Policy includes the following parameters/factors to be
considered by the Board for declaration of dividend from
time to time:

Circumstances under which the Shareholders may or
may not expect dividend

Il. Financial parameters/factors that shall be considered
for declaration of dividend

Ml Internal and external factors that shall be considered
for declaration of dividend

V. Utilisation of retained earnings
V. Multiple classes of Shares

The Board will review the Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing risks
rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalize
the risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system, improve the ability of
risk prevention, so as to ensure the Group is operating in a
safety and steady environment, the operation management
level could be increased and the Group's operational strategy
and target could be achieved. The current practices will be
reviewed and updated regularly to follow the latest practices
in corporate governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board resolved to delegate its responsibilities (with
relevant authorities) of risk management and internal
control to the Audit Committee. Terms of reference of
the Audit Committee included the followings: (i) review
the Group’s financial controls,
management systems; (ii) discuss the risk management
system and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control systems; and (iii) to consider major
investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings.

internal control and risk

The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control policies
and procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over
capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publication. These policies and procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary. All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in place, with understanding
enhanced by staff communications and training.

The Board has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems, at
least quarterly, through the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management
and internal control systems, executive Directors and
management would meet on monthly basis to review the
financial and operating performance of each department. The
management of the key operating subsidiaries is also required
to keep executive Directors updated of material development
of the department’s business and implementation of the
strategies and policies set by the Board on regular basis.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate
the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk
and ensures that appropriate internal control processes
are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal

control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks (continued)

The Board has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Group has engaged an
independent professional adviser (the “Internal Control
Adviser”) to conduct the annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The scope of review
included revenue and receipt cycle, expenditure cycle, cash
management and treasury cycle, and financial reporting
cycle for the Company and two of our operating subsidiary.
Internal Control Adviser has reported major findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. All
recommendations from Internal Control Adviser would be
followed up closely to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Group therefore
considered that the Group’s risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment and that
nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are inadequate.

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

An inside information disclosure policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Chun Fai
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 May 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERER/RRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The purpose of this Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report’) is not only to communicate
the sustainability strategies, management approaches
and performances of China Eco-Farming Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group” or “we")
with the stakeholders, but also strengthen the Group's
understanding towards their ongoing activities in sustainable
development of the society and the environment as a whole.
This ESG Report summarizes the efforts and achievements
made by the Group in corporate social responsibility and
sustainable development.

Sustainability Approach

We embed sustainability into the Group's core principles
by operating with transparency and integrity, fostering our
Group's culture, building a resilient business, operating
responsibly and creating shared value with our stakeholders.

Across the Group, we work proactively and diligently to
monitor and reduce our environmental footprint, to ensure
effective and ethical governance and to invest in ways that
promote sustainable economic growth. Being a responsible
corporate citizen, we strictly comply with all applicable laws,
take into account the environmental, social and governance
factors and risk management strategies in our operations and
fulfill our social responsibilities with good practical deeds.

Scope of the ESG Report

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our Hong
Kong business of trading of grocery food products, trading of
consumables and agricultural products, property investment,
provision of money lending services, one-stop value chain
services and provision of financial services for the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Standard

This ESG Report is prepared in compliance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
The four reporting principles, namely materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency, form the backbone of this ESG
Report.

For further information regarding our corporate governance,
please refer to the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” in this Annual Report.

Reporting Principles

o Materiality — Materiality assessment was conducted to
diagnose material issues during the Reporting Period.
Materiality of issues was reviewed by the board of
directors of the Company and senior management of
the Group.

° Quantitative — The standards and methodologies
used in the calculation of relevant data, as well as the
assumptions used were disclosed in this ESG Report.

o Consistency — The preparation of this ESG Report
was substantially consistent with the previous year.
Explanations were provided regarding data with
changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.

o Completeness — Covered the relevant scope and
information for material topics, for readers of this ESG
report to have a good understanding of the Group’s
sustainability performance during the Reporting
Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERER/RRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Principles (continued)

To ensure the quality of the content in this ESG Report, we
observed the principles of balance, comparability, accuracy,
timeliness, clarity and reliability. The data has been obtained
from reports generated from our internal systems and we
have relied on internal data monitoring and verification
to ensure its accuracy. The ESG data and information are
reported in good faith and have not been verified by an
independent third party.

Board Statement on ESG Governance

The Board takes the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability strategy and reporting, evaluation and
determines the Group’s ESG-related risks and ensures that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place.

Feedback

We will continue to improve and refine the content and
format of our ESG Report. We welcome your feedback and
suggestion. Please send your feedback to us via post at Room
707, 7/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We believe understanding the views and opinion of our
stakeholders is of paramount importance to the long-term
success and growth of the Group. Sustainable development
embraces not only our own ESG performance but also our
relationship with stakeholders. As such, we are devoted to
maintaining close and harmonious relationships with our
stakeholders.

It is crucial to maintain communication with our stakeholders
and obtain valuable advice. We continue to adopt the
following communication channels with stakeholders to
ensure we learn their opinions and suggestions timely
and accurately, so that our business could be improved
and developed in a continuous manner. Stakeholders
communications and expectations can be summarized as

RE #HEREREE
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follows:
Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations and concerns
B&E BEAR HERBEIEE
Employees e Internal meetings e Employees’ compensation and benefits
(== AES- BB ME &N
e Performance assessment e Health and safety working environment
A RET R EERZEZHITERE
e Company activities e Career development opportunities
NCINCED) BERERESE
e Training
=Rl
Customers e Business communication e High quality product and service
BP [ER Y3 B4 2= KRS
e Customer service hotline ¢ Protect the rights of customers
BRI EAR REZF#ER
e Email
B
Suppliers e Business communication e Fair and open procurement
R RER NFRFRE
e Visits e Win-win cooperation
Bl ERmaE
e Email
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)

Stakeholders
EHE

Communication channels

BEAR

BEQENBE (&)

Expectations and concerns
HERBEEEE

Shareholders

R

Community
DR

Government and
regulatory bodies

BT K B2 B B

Shareholders’ meetings

BERARE

Regular reports and announcements

EHRE R

Official website

B T3 A8k

Official website
EWE R
Charitable activities
HBEEE

Information submission
RRER

Email

BH
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Return on investments

®E B

Information disclosure and
transparency
ERBERERE
Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders

RIBBCR R N DT H

Involvement in communities
HES R

Business compliance

BEAR

Environmental protection awareness

BRE B

Compliance with laws and regulations
BFERROER

Promote regional economic
development and employment
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -HERERRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEMEMY

To better understand stakeholders’ opinions and expectations BT ENH TREHEHAREFSGERENE
on the Group’s ESG performance, the Group engaged its ARHE REFEEENEHET—HEE
stakeholders to conduct a materiality assessment survey. MW E - REFBUENEE RAEEN
Both internal and external stakeholders were selected based BLIKBIZE BER P& H R LI
on their influence and dependence on the Group. The NEETEEHTI AT - EENENER
selected stakeholders were invited to express their views and BRELIAEH I R EEMERENSESE
concerns on a list of sustainability issues via an online survey. FETEREYET BN AEEBRBZ
As a result, the Group was able to prioritise the issues for HEE TR EET R - BEEMTGHATER
discussion. The result from the materiality assessment survey PONIE =i e

has been mapped and presented as below.

Materiality Assessment

EE2%TE

9.00 °
22
" 8.50 ( 3 J
o 20 18
S 19
o3 800 o0 21
O I 8 623
S g 9 1024
% 7.50 ( B J [ )
S 7 2 17
R
S fP
S 700 o0
£ 1 13
g 1
= 6.50 o0 00
4 12 3 14
6.00 o °
5
15
5.50
5.00 6.00 7.00 8.00 9.00 10.00

Significance to business

HEBNEZEM
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RE - HERERRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

NUMBER
i 5%

LIST OF MATERIAL TOPICS

EEMNME (&)

EEREEE

0 N O U1 AW N =

Employee diversity and equal opportunities
Turnover rate

Occupational health and safety

Training and development

Child labour and forced labour

Employment relationship and communication
Employee remuneration and benefits

Sewage disposal

Greenhouse gas emissions

Air emissions

Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
Energy and water conservation

Natural resources (includes water and energy)
Supplier environmental and social assessment
Carbon trading system

Supplier selection process

Anti-fraud and corruption

Business continuity plan

Product and service quality

Complaints handling

Intellectual property

Customer privacy

Research and development

Community participation
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

The Group built a two-dimensional materiality analysis
matrix and prioritised the 25 issues accordingly. With
respect to this ESG Report, the Group identified quality of
work environment and product and service responsibility
as issues of the highest importance to its stakeholders and
the Group. This review has helped the Group to prioritise its
corresponding sustainability issues and highlight the material
and relevant aspects so as to align them with stakeholders’
expectations.

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT

As a responsible corporation, we are aware of the shared
responsibility to protect and preserve our planet. We
endeavor to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopts effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Due to our business nature, apart from emissions
and use of resources for electricity and water, our operation
does not have other significant impact on the environment.

Emission Management

Our greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions primarily stem
from petrol consumption from the use of vehicles (Scope
1), indirect emissions produced by externally-purchased
electricity consumed in offices (Scope 2), and indirect
emissions (Scope 3). We have implemented various initiatives
to reduce the amount of GHG emissions, as further explained
in the subsection headed “Energy Management” of this ESG
Report.

The Group’s objective is to achieve a 15% reduction of
emission per production unit by 2025 from the base year of
2020 (scope 1, 2 & 3). Accordingly, a Group Sustainability
Committee has been established aiming to manage and
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monitor the upgrade of production facilities. FHi o

2022 2021 Unit
Air emissions REHH —B-Cf T -F B
Nitrogen Oxides (“NOX") A&t (INOx ) 0.0 2.8 kg
Sulphur Oxides (“SOx") Figy ([sox]) 0.0 0.1 kg
Particulate Matter (“PM") HMRmE ([PMm]) 0.0 0.2 kg
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wE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued) SIS ()
Emission Management (continued) HEWREE (&)
2022 2021 Unit
GHG emission’ BERBHER et -2 3 Bfy
Total GHG emissions RERBHNES 7.9 35.9 Tonnes of CO,e
(Scope 1, 2 and 3) (8E1 - 283) & EE ()
Direct emission (Scope 1) EEm (BET) 42 22.1 Tonnes of CO,e
—&fvirg s (1)
Indirect emission (Scope 2) & (E[E2) 0.5 13.1 Tonnes of CO,e
—&frig s (1)
Other indirect emission? (Scope 3) EmfmEpe(EE3) 3.2 0.7 Tonnes of CO,e
—&fvigE (1)
Intensity of total GHG emissions BERBHENEE 219 0.1 kg of CO,e/m?
“EftixEE
(F=/FHK)
Energy Management e EE
The energy consumption information is shown as follow: BEFEE R R -
2022 2021 Unit
Energy consumption 223 et -3 ZTCF By
Total energy consumption BREFE 16,003.4 99,416.4 kWh
FRE
Intensity of total energy consumption Beray (5EEER) 443 297.4 KWh/m?
(per floor area) BEAKRTRE
Electricity consumption? HES 800.0 18,536.0 kWh
TRE
Petrol B 15,203.4 80,880.4 kWh
TRE
Note 1:  As the scope of total electricity consumption excluded MizE1 : HREEESEHET Eﬁ DEHTE AT

Note 2:

Note 3:

those usage in shared office rented by few subsidiaries,
which the electricity consumption data were included
in the management fee paid and unable to be obtained
for the occupied areas, the GHG emission data has not
included the electricity used by those shared office.

GHG calculation for air travel were made reference to
the International Civil Aviation Organization Carbon
Emissions Calculator.

The scope of total electricity consumption excluded
those usage in shared office rented by few subsidiaries,
which the electricity consumption data were included in
the management fee paid and unable to be obtained for
the occupied areas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Energy Management (continued)

As GHG emissions are positively correlated to electricity
and energy consumption, the Group tries to reduce the
consumption of both aspects in its daily operation through
the following specific measures:

o Adopt natural lighting where possible, while energy-
efficient light bulbs are used to reduce electricity
consumption

o Modify the set temperature of air conditioners in the
offices based on the season

o Consider with higher grading of energy efficiency
when selecting electronic devices

o Encourage our employees to switch off idle equipment
(such as computers and lighting equipment) when the
equipment is not in use or employees are getting off

work

o Office copy machines will be automatically switched
to energy saving mode when left idle for a set period
of time

o Encourage our employees to replace business travels

with telephone conference or video conference when
appropriate to reduce related GHG emissions caused
by the transportation required for business travels

o Encourage employees to schedule visits or offsite
meetings within one trip to reduce the frequency of
travel
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RE HERER/RRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Water Use and Sewage Discharge

Due to our business nature, we do not consume a large
amount of water resources or generate a large amount of
sewage in our operation. Sewage produced by the Group is
mainly generated from the daily water usage from its staffs
during working hours in office, which is further discharged
to the municipal wastewater treatment plant through the
sewage pipe work. We encourage our employees to build
up the habit of saving water through the following specific
measures:

o Post notice in office pantries and washrooms to
encourage water conservation

o Remind employees to turn off water taps when they
are not in use

o Any leakage or dripping found in office should also
be reported promptly to prevent unnecessary water
consumption

As we operated in leased office premises in Hong Kong
of which both the water supply and discharge were solely
controlled by the respective building management. Hence,
the water usage data was unable to be obtained by us as an
individual occupant. As our business is located in Hong Kong,
there is no issue in sourcing water.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the waste management principles and
strives to properly manage and dispose wastes produced
by our business activities. Our waste management practice
has been compiled with laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection. Due to the business nature, our
operations do not directly generate hazardous waste. The
non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group's operations
are mainly consist of paper and domestic garbage generated
in office. The wastes were collected and handled by building
management. The total paper waste generated during the
Reporting Period was 0.0 tonnes (2021: 0.6 tonnes) with
an intensity of 0.0 kg (2021: 2.2 kg) per square meter. We
seek opportunities to reduce resource consumption and
waste generation, reuse and recycle materials in an aim of
minimizing overall quantities of waste. As paper is mainly
consumed by the Group in its offices, the Group has adopted
the following practices to reduce the consumption:

o Encourage both-side printing and the use of recycled
paper for printing and copying

° Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via
email) as much as possible

o Provide bins and trays in offices to collect waste paper
for further recycling

o Encourage staff to reduce paper consumption and to
share tips and information on how to adopt a more
environmentally-responsible lifestyle

The Group strongly advocates green office, strengthens
daily operation and management, integrates low-carbon
environmental protection concepts into the daily work of
employees by implementing energy-saving office environment
reforms, promoting paperless office management, raises
employees’ awareness of energy conservation, and
cultivates the environmental habits of employees. With the
implementation of the measures above, we believe the
objectives of saving energy, reducing waste and preserving
the environment can be achieved.

The Group's objective is to achieve a 15% reduction of non-
hazardous wastes per production unit by 2025 from the base
year of 2020.
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RE HERER/RRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Packaging Material Use

Due to the business nature, the Group does not produce any
finished product and does not have any industrial facilities. As
the suppliers would arrange delivery to our customers directly
for the trading business, we do not consume a significant
amount of packaging materials in our daily operations.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations
related to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. The Group did not have any significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

Climate change and global warming are the major
environmental concerns in the world. Despite having no
significant impact on the Group’s businesses, the Group still
strives to put forward environmental conservation and raise
the environmental awareness of the employees.

Due to the business nature, climate change does not have
significant impacts on the business directly. With a higher
temperature in the future, the Group may need to allocate
more spending on cooling.

On the other hand, the Group may experience productivity
loss due to increased extreme weather, like typhoons and
heavy rain. The Group will review the existing measures for
adverse weather conditions and ensure the safety of the
employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Our dedicated and skilled workforce is our biggest asset. We
are committed to providing training, equal and development
opportunities for our people to enable them to reach
their potential in a healthy, safe and respectful working
environment.

Equal Opportunities

The Group believes that it is important to provide employees
with equal opportunities based on the principles of fairness
and fairness. We provide fair opportunities for recruitment,
compensation, training, transfer and promotion to our
employees regardless of their gender, ethnic, background,
religion, colour, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability or pregnancy.

In addition, the Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude
towards gender, ethnicity, disability discrimination, and
workplace harassment. We respect human rights and
prohibits discrimination, harassment, child labor and forced
labor in the workplace.

We have established whistleblowing policy, which provides
our staff a private channel to voice out any concerns
about possible discrimination or harassment. We keep the
whistleblowers and their report contents confidential, and
protect the legitimate rights and interests of whistleblowers,
thereby encouraging employees to report violation and create
a good business environment.
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RE HERER/RRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)
Employee Remuneration and Benefits

We offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to enhance our staff morale and satisfaction. In
addition, the Group conducts staff performance assessments
regularly in accordance to changes in macroeconomic factors
(e.g. national policies and price levels), market trend and the
overall effectiveness of the Group, and makes corresponding
adjustments to staff remuneration. Outstanding employees
will get promotion as reward and recognition. Apart from
competitive remuneration packages, we also grant share
options and special bonuses to eligible personnel, depending
on their performances and our financial conditions, in
order to attract and retain the most talented people. Our
employees also enjoy the statutory holidays, annual leaves,
maternity leaves and compassionate leaves regarding to
the relevant laws and regulations. Our employee handbook
outlines the standard working hours, paid leaves, rest periods
and dismissal policy in protection of the rights of our staff.
We disseminate the handbook to all our staff to keep them
well informed of our principles and policies.

Recruitment and Dismissal

To attract high-calibre candidates, the Group offers fair
remuneration and benefits based on the individuals’ past
performance, personal attributes, job experiences and career
aspiration. We follow the principles of fairness, equality,
competitive and non-discrimination to hire outstanding
talents, and devote to protect human right and privacy
of employees. We recruit employees based on a number
of factors, such as professional experience, educational
background and capabilities, and they are not discriminated
against because of their age, sex, sexual orientation, race,
disability, marital status, pregnancy, religion, political factions
and referrals, so as to maintain employment equality.

All employees of the Group have entered into written
employment contracts and such contracts include dismissal
term where the Company has the right to terminate such
contract with an employee who willfully violates local laws
and regulations and the Group's policy.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -HERERRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued) EBERSIER (&)

Recruitment and Dismissal (continued) PER#EE (&

The Group had a total number of 21 employees as at 31 HE_E-_—F#+_-_A=+—H K&EFEH
December 2022. The employee compositions by gender, age B EE MR - FEHERERE S 2

group and geographical region were as follows: BEMAKIT :
Number of Percentage of
employees as at employees as at
31.12.2022 31.12.2022
N-T== R-E=—
+Z—A=+—-HB +=ZHA=+—H
Employee Structure EBE&EE WESRE WEEB DL
Number of Employees EEBE 21 100%
Gender Male 12 57%
14 5] EeRid
Female 9 43%
i
Rank Senior Management 5 24%
B AR BREERE
Middle Management 8 38%
hREERE
General Staff 8 38%
E@mET
Age Group Under 30 years old 0 0%
Fhe A 305 A T
30 — 50 years old 15 71%
30ZE507%
Over 50 years old 6 29%
508 A £
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERER/RRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued) EBERSIER (&)
Recruitment and Dismissal (continued) PER#FEE (&
Number of
employees
resigned in Turnover
Year 2022 rates
-~
E Bt
Employee Structure EEHEE EE"AR TR =E
Gender Male 20 91%
14 5] EeRid
Female 11 76%
i
Geographical Region Hong Kong 30 91%
Hh & BB
Mainland China 0 0%
AR A3
Taiwan 1 200%
a4
Age Group Under 30 years old 5 200%
Fe 305% LA T
30 - 50 years old 11 54%
30ZE507%
Over 50 years old 15 111%
50B% A £
Promotion of work-life balance {23 TEEESEHN P&

We believe a culture of healthy work-life balance supports
us to build an energetic and more collaborative team. By
providing five-day working week and organizing a wide
variety of recreational activities for our staff, we believe it can
uphold the excellent work performance of employees and
benefit the growth of the Group.

Training and Development

We believe our sustainable growth is largely derived from
the continuous development of our staff. We place a great
emphasis on career development of talents and are dedicated
to providing our employees with abundant opportunities for
career development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -HERERRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)
Training and Development (continued)

We provide and encourage employees at all levels to
participate in various internal and external courses, including
technical and vocational training seminars, forums, on-job
and continuing training courses. We also offer educational
subsidies to our employees to attend academic and
commercial course. These not only enhance their job-
related skills and knowledge, but also provide them equal
opportunities for learning, training and promotion.

BREREIER (&)

EAERE (&)
BARESREERHLSBRFL2EITEE
MER K2 SN B RRAR - B R ST R B SR 5 )3T - AR
RE - ABEFEFIRE - HAITRA2ME
MEkEAERENEERHBEH -ZFR
HNMERS T REF R TR BRE A
NRRFRHEEE FIREFANRFHE-

Year 2022
Occupational Training Data B2 Z I8 —EC-CFEE
The percentage of employee trained by Gender Male 50%
BERBSINZIETIEAL St
Female 50%
gk
The percentage of employee trained by Rank Senior Management 100%
BERBREINZIEIEIL DRETEE
Middle Management 0%
hAREIRE
General Staff 0%
EBET
Average training hours of employees by Gender Male 0.5
BURE SN TP EEEIER St
Female 0.7
gk
Average training hours of employees by Rank Senior Management 1.0
BRI N FIIREEIGR BAREIEE
Middle Management 0.0
hAREIRE
General Staff 0.0
TBET
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RE HERER/RRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)
Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any incidents of non-compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485
of the laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group pays great attention to the physical, mental
and occupational health of its employees. We aim to offer
and maintain a safe and healthy working environment for
employees to protect them from work-related accidents or
injuries.

We are committed to achieving this goal by implementing
the measures including but not limited to:

Provide personal medical insurance and business travel
insurance for all employees

o Provide sufficient first-aid kits and personal protective
equipment at workplaces

o Prohibit smoking in all enclosed areas within our
offices without exception

o Perform regular checking and maintenance of
machines, equipment and fire extinguishers

During the Reporting Period, there is no workplace accidents.
In case the accident occurred, it will be investigated and
reported to the relevant authorities and measures have been
put in place to prevent the recurrence of the same. During
the past three years, the Group did not record any work-
related fatality of employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (continued)
Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with The Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards. We also did not receive any reports
on work-related injuries or causalities during the Reporting
Period.

LABOUR STANDARD

In strict accordance with applicable local laws and
regulations, we adopt a zero-tolerance approach to unethical
labour practice including but not limited to child labor and
forced labor. Once any breach of regulations is discovered,
the labour relationship will be terminated immediately. All
recruitment procedure and promotion are managed by the
Human Resource Department to ensure no child labour
or forced labour is employed. If use of child labour or
forced labour is discovered, the Group will terminate the
employment contract and investigate if further action is
needed.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with the Employment of
Children Regulations made under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) or other relevant laws
and regulations on preventing child or forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We value mutually beneficial and longstanding relationships
with our suppliers. Our major suppliers are suppliers of
grocery food products, consumables and agricultural
products, external business consultants and general office
supply. The selection of suppliers is based on criteria
such as quality, cost, business scale and reputation, with
preference given to potential suppliers that demonstrate their
commitment to the environment. Full compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations is a must for our suppliers.
When a supplier is found to be inconsistent with our policy
or contractual requirements, we will terminate future
cooperation until the situation got improved.
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RE HERER/RRE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)
During the Reporting Period, 7 and 5 of suppliers sourced in
China and Hong Kong, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware that
any key suppliers had any significant actual and potential
negative impact on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices, nor any of them had any
non-compliance incident in respect of human rights issues.

CARING FOR CUSTOMER

The Group attaches importance to quality, safety and
environment, and endeavors to fulfill social responsibilities
and facilitate sustainable development of the food industry.

Product Responsibility

As one of our principal business is trading of grocery food
products, we have always endeavored to provide safety
food products to our customers. We have registered as
food importer and food distributor under the Food Safety
Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of Hong Kong). We
have registered as a food importers/food distributors under
the Food Safety Ordinance. In order to demonstrate that
we are committed to selecting cooking oil suppliers with
adequate and appropriate records, we have registered
as registered supplier to the Hong Kong Cooking Oil
Registration Scheme under Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency (“HKQAA") on voluntary basis. Regarding to
product recall, we attach great importance to the food alerts
issued by Centre for Food Safety as well as related market
information. Once we noticed our product is involved with
quality and safety issues and necessary to be revoked, we
will fully collaborate with related regulatory authorities and
recall the relevant products as required. Recall arrangement
will be announced and the recalled products will be handled
appropriately. During the Reporting Period, no product recall
has been incurred.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR CUSTOMER (continued)

Privacy Protection and Intellectual Property

In accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group handles the
personal data of our customers carefully by collecting only
necessary personal data and ensures that the information
obtained is protected from unauthorised or accidental access.
Our employees are constantly reminded the importance of
respecting the privacy of personal and business data.

No significant issue related to intellectual property rights was
noted for the Reporting Period. However, the Group is aware
that relevant steps should be taken to follow all relevant
regulations in order to protect intellectual properties which
belong to itself or any other third parties.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the Consumer Goods
Safety Ordinance (Chapter 456 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Food Safety Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Food and Drugs (Composition and Labelling)
Regulations (Chapter 132W of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations that
constitutes a significant impact on the Group in relation to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We regard honesty, integrity and fair play as core values that
must be upheld by all directors and staff at all times. The
Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud or anti-money laundering.
Any misconduct related to bribery, extortion, fraud or anti-
money laundering are strictly prohibited within the Group. To
ensure full compliance with the Group’s anti-fraud and anti-
bribery policies, the Group had conducted anti-corruption
briefing and training sessions for its employees.

We have established reporting channels where employees
can report illegal and non-compliance conducts that they
have noticed by in-person, phone, email or letter. The
reporting content will be confidential and never be exposed
to third party.
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RE HERER/RRE

ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws and regulations and there was no legal cases
concerned with corrupt practices were brought against the
Group or Directors or employees.

CARING FOR SOCIETY

We are committed to participating in community events and
the improvement of community wellbeing and social services.
We support and encourage staff to actively participate in a
wide range of charitable events outside working hours, raise
awareness and concern for the community, last but not least,
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made contributions
to various charitable organization, such as The Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Groups.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

/Aﬁﬁﬁ(é%)@%ﬂiﬁ;iﬁﬁﬁﬁ AT

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ECO-FARMING LIMITED
FEEXEREERAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued into
Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 93 to 302, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In
all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AR &

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1.

Limitation of scope on the settlement in relation
to disposal of investment properties

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 6 September 2022, BEHFIRER
[ 2 8] (the "Vendor”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, had disposed of a property located in
Fujian Province, at a consideration of RMB3,425,000
(the "Consideration”) to an independent third party
(the “Purchaser “).

During the course of our audit, we have been told
by the management of the Company that part of
the Consideration, amounted to RMB3,125,000, had
been received by Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (“Mr. Tin"),
the chief executive officer and executive director
of the Company, on behalf of the Vendor, in order
to settle the taxation issue of an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in the PRC as
he was willing to travel to PRC under compulsory
guarantine requirement during the material time of
COVID-19 pandemic. On 31 October 2022, the Board
has approved Mr. Tin to keep RMB1,125,000 out of
the amount received by Mr. Tin in his personal bank
account, further details are set out in Note 25(b)iii)
to the consolidated financial statements. For the
remaining RMB2,000,000 out of the amount received
by Mr. Tin, Mr. Tin had deposited RMB100,000
into the Vendor’s bank account, and had remitted
RMB1,900,000 to the bank accounts of other
subsidiaries in Hong Kong through the remittance
company.

However, we have not been provided with the
supporting documents from the Board that would
satisfy ourselves as to the reasonableness of
authorising Mr. Tin to receive part of Consideration
on behalf of Vendor. There were no other satisfactory
audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

1.

Limitation of scope on the settlement in relation

to disposal of investment properties (continued)

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the above
matters might have significant consequential effects
on the consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and
the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated
financial statements.

Limitation of scope on deconsolidation of

Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and

its subsidiary (collectively referred as the
“Deconsolidated Subsidiaries”)

As disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, a winding-up order was made by the
High Court against Seal Eco at the hearing of the
Petition on 16 November 2022 (the “Deconsolidation
Date”). The Official Receiver of Hong Kong and
the joint and several provisional liquidators were
appointed pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The books and
records of the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries were kept
and maintained by the bankruptcy administrator,
which were not made available to the Group’s
management subsequent to the Deconsolidation Date.
Consequently, the Group had deconsolidated the
Deconsolidated Subsidiaries (the “Deconsolidation”) as
the directors considered that as the Group no longer
had the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries, the
Group's control over the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries
had been lost on the Deconsolidation Date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

2. Limitation of scope on deconsolidation of
Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and
its subsidiary (collectively referred as the
“Deconsolidated Subsidiaries”) (continued)
Under the circumstances as explained above, we
were not able to carry out procedures which we
considered necessary on the books and records of the
Deconsolidated Subsidiaries, to satisfy ourselves as to:

(i) the existence, rights and obligations,
completeness, accuracy, valuation and
classification of its total assets of approximately
HK$5,987,000, total liabilities of approximately
HK$14,629,000 and the cumulative translation
reserve of approximately HK$2,677,000 as at
the Deconsolidation Date;

(i) its loss and total comprehensive expenses for
the period of approximately HK$22,915,000
and HK$25,086,000, respectively for the period
from 1 January 2022 to the Deconsolidation
Date;

(i) the segment information of distribution
business and other related disclosure notes in
relation to the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries,
as included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022; and

(iv) the accuracy of the gain on deconsolidation of
subsidiaries of approximately HK$3,982,000, as
included in the profit or loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

There were no other satisfactory audit procedures
that we could adopt to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence in this regard.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)
Limitation of scope on deconsolidation of
Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and

2.

its subsidiary (collectively referred as the

“Deconsolidated Subsidiaries”) (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Financial information in respect of the Deconsolidated

Subsidiaries is set out below:

Income and expenses of the Deconsolidated

B AR E

TRRERZEE(R)

BHGREARBHCELRRERTR
RA((MBNEE) REMBAR (&
BBIBUEGREARMEBLE]) WEE
PR (%)
ERIBUEZEAE A ANRMBRARNIMEE
BESIT

HUB#R & ARRM B A R B A KRR :

Subsidiaries:

From 1 January
2022 to
Deconsolidation
Date
B-ET -4
—A—BEEH
fr e ABR A E
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue W s 10,389
Cost of sales 85 & XA (16,327)
Gross loss Ei8 (5,938)
Other income HAh A 304
Administrative expenses TR X (17,281)
Loss before tax R 1% A BT 18 (22,915)
Income tax expense FrigBimx -
Loss for the period HNEE (22,915)
Other comprehensive expense Hih 2 EHAX (2,171)
Total comprehensive expense for the period HRN2HEMAXEE (25,086)

Total comprehensive expense for the period JEAR BRI 2 7 2 4858

attributable to:

Owners of the Company ERAHEAA (18,778)
Non-controlling interests AR IR R = (6,308)
(25,086)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

TRRERZEE(R)

2. Limitation of scope on deconsolidation of 2. BUEGEAREBHNCELEREESR
Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and NE(BHEE])REMBAT (%K
its subsidiary (collectively referred as the BAEBEGEANENELAT]) NEE
“Deconsolidated Subsidiaries”) (continued) PR& (4&)

Assets and liabilities of the Deconsolidated BHGAANENBATINEERAG:

Subsidiaries:

As at

Deconsolidation
Date

REUH

SN A=] 1

HK$'000

FET

Plant and equipment R M 5% 323
Trade and other receivables JFEE 5T B R K2 L At JE s SR IE 3,272
Amount due from the Group Y E5EEFIE 2,173
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFE 219
Trade and other payables JRE 1~ B R B B Ath JE A< FRIR (12,798)
Loan from a shareholder REER (750)
Amount due to the Group Bt BEEEKIE (181)
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A<F 3 128 % AR BR HE 2 SR IE (900)
Net liabilities of the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries BUE#r& AR B AR & EF5E (8,642)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company & Q&% A AELERS (6,445)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR IR R (2,197)
(8,642)

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the
above amounts would affect the amounts recorded
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in respect of the
Deconsolidated Subsidiaries for the period from
1 January 2022 to the Deconsolidation Date and
consolidated statement of financial position in
respect of the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries at the
Deconsolidation Date, with a corresponding effect on
the gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries and gain
on written-off of current accounts, net for the year
ended 31 December 2022, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

2.

Limitation of scope on deconsolidation of

Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and

its subsidiary (collectively referred as the
"Deconsolidated Subsidiaries”) (continued)

Also, as at 31 December 2022, included in other
payables, was an amount of approximately
HK$2,173,000 which represented amount due to
the Deconsolidated Subsidiaries as a result of the
Deconsolidation. We are unable to obtain supporting
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the balance is free
from material misstatement. There were no other
alternative audit procedures that we could carry out
to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
to verify the accuracy, rights and obligations and
completeness of this balance as at 31 December
2022. Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
as to whether the amount due to the Deconsolidated
Subsidiaries was fairly stated.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the above
matter might have significant consequential effects
on the consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and
the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated
financial statements.

Multiple fundamental uncertainties relating to
going concern

As described in Note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$62,359,000 and had net cash used in operating
activities of approximately HK$24,522,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$63,788,000, in
which its total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$37,781,000, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$1,161,000 only.

B AR E

TRRERZEE(R)

2.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AR &

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

3.

Multiple fundamental uncertainties relating to
going concern (continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking
a number of measures to improve the Group's
liquidity and financial position as described in Note
3.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
by the directors on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends on the Group’s ability to obtain
sufficient future funding. Due to the uncertainty of
the Group’s ability to maintain adequate future cash
flows, we were unable to ascertain whether the
assumptions made by the directors in preparing the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis are proper and appropriate.

Should the going concern assumption be
inappropriate, adjustments would be necessary to
reclassify all non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities respectively, write-down the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide
for further liabilities which may arise. The consolidated
financial statements have not incorporated any
of these adjustments. However, the uncertainties
surrounding the Group's future cash flows raises
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated
financial statements concerning this situation, but we
are unable to obtain adequate evidence concerning
the Group's ability to meet any financial obligations
as and when they fall due and we consider that these
material uncertainties relating to going concern basis.

We consider the cumulative effect of the above matters on
the consolidated financial statements is so extreme that we

have disclaimed our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. However, because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Cheng Ting Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: P06598

8/F Catic Plaza

8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

31 May 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE
2022 2021
—ZE__ —EF-—4F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Pt 5t TR FHET
Revenue s 5
Goods and services 78 i X AR % 25,811 73,050
Interest under effective interest REBRNZEFENFE
method 323 217
Total revenue Fallgas 26,134 73,267
Cost of sales 8 AR (30,328) (72,411)
Gross (loss) profit £ (18) (4,194) 856
Other income, gains or losses, net H AW A~ e s 1E
R 7 2,668 1,721
Impairment losses recognised under EHREEBHERNIE THER
expected credit loss model, net BB EEE  F5E 9 (7,479) (10,629)
Loss from changes in fair value of REMEN AT EES
investment properties, net 518 F 58 18 (1,697) (1,678)
(Loss) gain from changes in fair value AT (EiF A2 Rt
of financial assets at fair value BERNTEZS (EBE)
through profit or loss W 5 (1,930) 3,019
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries HUE%R & ABRHI B A A&
Wess 45 3,982 -
(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries, H &M B AR (EiE)
net Woas - R 46 (5,305) 121
Gain on written-off of current account, MiSHASFE IR B Wz B 58
net 9,952 -
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 7 7 2 # 52 #98. (B /&5 18 19 - (725)
Impairment loss recognised on HEHE S R
deposits paid RIEEE 23 (7,219) (5,445)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R X (370) (870)
Administrative expenses ITHHX (47,516) (32,458)
Share of results of associates DB E N A EE 21 (6,326) 247
Finance costs BhE KA 8 (4,272) (6,279)
Loss before tax BRI B EE (69,706) (52,120)
Income tax credit (expenses) FrigmiEe () 10 948 (500)
Loss for the year REEZEIE 11 (68,758) (52,620)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBEERkEMEEWEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

2022 2021
—_E=2-_— —E-—4F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ks FTHET FAT
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hfth & ( 5z ) Jz
Item that will not be reclassified to T EEXSELEm
profit or loss: JEH -
Fair value loss on investments in equity %A F{ET AE M2 HE
instruments at fair value through Wz Em TERERN
other comprehensive income NEEEBE (3,935) (812)
Items that may be reclassified HEAJEN A EE B
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising on BEBIRBEEZ
translation of foreign operations E N ZE58 7,513 1,611
Release of cumulative exchange reserve EBUBAR A AR, H & &1
upon deconsolidation/disposal of XN R E N FE
foreign operations 2,677 1,043
10,190 2,654
Other comprehensive income RNEFHEMPEKE -
for the year, net of income tax BRI 6,255 1,842
Total comprehensive expense AFEEZERZBE
for the year (62,503) (50,778)
Loss for the year attributable to: (LA JE B4 -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEEZZ =N (62,359) (51,270)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR IR R AE 2 (6,399) (1,350)
(68,758) (52,620)
Total comprehensive expense EIEAFELEM B :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABIEA A (55,716) (49,819)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR IR R AE 2 (6,787) (959)
(62,503) (50,778)
(Restated)
(ge=751)
Loss per share: T EE:
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARKEE OBN) 15 (51.52) (52.92)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEPBRR R

At 31 December 2022
RZZEZZF+=-A=+—H

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FTHExT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment B & 16 112 810
Right-of-use assets ERAERE 17 - 382
Investment properties REME 18 9,780 16,869
Goodwill EES 19 - -
Intangible asset mILEE 20 758 758
Interests in associates NI 21 23,811 30,137
Equity instruments at fair value BAVEFARMEERE
through other comprehensive Wtz #m T H
income 22 2,865 7,261
Deposits paid [SENEF-& 23 98,396 108,996
135,722 165,213
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 24 = 2,716
Trade and other receivables JEURBR A & b R U sk TE 25 19,860 39,141
Loan and interest receivables W E B B 26 1,328 1,935
Loans to associates m B A BIEH B 3R 27 - 3,826
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 28 3,375 8,780
Restricted bank balance PR B R 1T 4L B 29 649 705
Cash and cash equivalents RekREF 30 1,161 2,850
26,373 59,953
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFBELENEE 31 = 13,547
26,373 73,500
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables JEREBRR N EMENRE 32 40,096 42,201
Contract liabilities BHEE 33 4,243 2,504
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 1 JE4E AR AR BR 4 25 SR IR
interests 34 2,745 3,645
Borrowings & 35 37,781 41,040
Margin loans payables EREFESER 36 4,768 6,090
Lease liabilities MEAE 37 - 506
Financial guarantee contract B IERE L 38 141 12,102
Income tax payable e PR 1S 7% 387 55
90,161 108,143
China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7 95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R &
At 31 December 2022
RZTZZF+=ZHA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MaE FET FETT
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEEE (63,788) (34,643)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERRBEME
LIABILITIES 71,934 130,570
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE 39 - 1,390
NET ASSETS EEFE 71,934 129,180
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRfFE
Share capital % 7 40 1,300 1,060
Reserves A= 34,318 87,214
Equity attributable to owners of RAGEE ANEHER
the Company 35,618 88,274
Non-controlling interests El Al s 36,316 40,906
TOTAL EQUITY AR 71,934 129,180

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 302
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 31 May 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

So David Tat Man

BEX
Director

EF

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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TMIEERBEE:

Liu Chun Fai

BEE
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAREAE AR
Investment Non-
Share  Contributed  revaluation Share options ~ Translation Special Accumulated controlling
Share capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve  Other reserve |osses Subtotal interests Total
RAEMR ki FiER
BE  RGEE  HARR G fE  AHEE  BRIEE  HbEE  ZHBR Pt RRER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TEr Thr Thr TEL TET TET TET TET TER
(Note (a)  (Note (b))
(@) (o)
At 1 January 2021 W=F=-%¥-f-8B 9,325 6,909 650,298 (31,152) 1,800 (3,865) 6,026 (1,766) (499,000) 138,575 36,560 175,135
Loss for the year AEEEER - - - - - - - - (51,270) (51,270) (1,350) (52,620)
Other comprehensive (expense) FEREMZE (%)
income for the year: e
ltem that will not be redlassified HTEEHFHZ B
to profit or loss: Fg:
Fair value loss on investments in equity ~ RAFEFAEMLZE
instruments at fair value through ez EaTARE
other comprehensive income NATEEE - - - (812) - - - - - (812) - 812)
Items that may be reclassified BEREHFHEZ Bl
subsequently to profit or loss: ER:
Exchange differences arising on BEHBNEBELL
translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - - 1,220 - - - 1,220 391 1,611
Release of cumulative exchange reserve (& 5N £ IR
upon disposal of foreign operations ZHEHGE - - - - - 1,043 - - - 1,043 - 1,043
- - - - - 2,263 - - - 2,263 391 2,654
Other comprehensive (expense) income A4 FEM 2T (%)
for the year, net of income tax g MBRFIGH - - - (812) - 2,263 - - - 1,451 391 1,842
Total comprehensive (expense) income ~ AFE2E (H%) lia
for the year k] - - - (812) - 2,263 - - (51,270) (49,819) (959) (50,778)
Placing of new shares (Note 40(a)) REFRH (M3H406)) 1270 3,048 - - - - - - - 4318 - 4318
Transaction costs attributable to REFRHERED
placing of new shares REMAE - (245) - - - - - - - (245) - (245)
Capital reorganisation (Note 40(b)) ERER (H5H400)) (9,535) (9.712) - - - - - - 19,247 - - -
Deemed disposal of partial interest RENENBRAN
in subsidiaries (Note 47) B (HiEa7) - - - - - - - (4,555) - (4,555) 5,305 750
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A
=+-A 1,060 - 650,298 (31,964) 1,800 (1,602) 6,026 (6,321) (531,023 88,274 40,906 129,180

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIZXE&EFR DA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e

ER28X

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KDARAAEE
Investment Share Non-
Share Share Contributed revaluation options  Translation Special Other Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
REEf FER
BE  RGEE HARS i BRERE REEGE HBIRE HERE  RHEE bt REER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TER TiEn TiEn TEx TER TER TER TEx TEx TEx
(Note (a)  (Note (b))
(HzE(a)  (HEzE(b)

At 1 January 2022 W-Z--F-f-R 1,060 - 650,298 (31,964) 1,800 (1,602) 6,026 (6,321)  (531,023) 88,274 40,906 129,180

Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - = = = (62359) (62,359 (6399)  (68,758)

Other comprehensive (expense) income ~ AFFEM2E (%)

for the year: W
Item that will not be reclassified to HIEEHFEZERZ
profit or foss: BA:
Fair value loss on investments in equity &2 ;Eﬁ/\ﬁ’r@@
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - - (3,935) - - - - - (3,935) - (3,935)
Items that may be reclassified bt TET Ry £ T
subsequently to profit or loss: LR
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEEL
translation of foreign operations EXER - - - - - 8,296 - - - 8,29 (783) 7513
Release of cumulative exchange reserve  BUESGA AR /L&
upon deconsolidation/disposal of HELRERER
subsidiaries ZHERRER - - - - - 2,282 - - - 2,282 395 2,677
- - - - - 10,578 - - - 10,578 (388) 10,190
Other comprehensive (expense) income ~ AEFEM 2T (F%)
for the year, net of income tax gk RAER - - = (3,935) - 10,578 - - - 6,643 (388) 6,255
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AEE 2 (H%) Iz
for the year o - - - (3,935) - 10,578 - - (62,359) (55,716) (6.787) (62,503)
Issuing of new shares upon rights issue
(Note 40(c) 20 3,607 - - - - - - - 3,847 - 3,847
Transaction costs attributable to issuing
of new shares upon rights issue - (787) - - - - - - - (787) - (787)

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (Note 45)

- - - - - - - 4,555 (4,555) - 2,197 2,197

At 31 December 2022

1,300 2,820 650,298 (35,899) 1,800 8,976 6,026 (1,766)  (597,937) 35,618 36,316 71,934

Notes: B 5 -

(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the (a) BRI IE AR A RI B A B AR (D A &
nominal amount of share and share premium of the former & mEEBEE T FRBEEHMmE
subsidiary of the Company and the nominal amount of the TORRTRMDEE CFERE-
Company’s shares issued pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 2002.

(b) The other reserve has been set up and dealt with in (b) HAafEEDRIBE N — M B R R Fra R
accordance with the accounting policies for the changes in EEBE (TSR REEGE) TR

ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss

of control. Details of changes in ownership in interests in a

subsidiary that do not result in loss of control is set out in

Note 47.

China Eco-Farming lelted FEIBELERERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—ZE__ —EF-—4F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Loss before tax B 75 Bl B 8 (69,706) (52,120)
Adjustments for: S TFIIEE EH A
Finance costs A& A AR 4,272 6,279
Depreciation for plant and equipment = R EEITE 375 990
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENE 382 557
Loss on fair value changes of WEMEATEEZEEE -
investment properties, net ikl 1,697 1,678
Loss (gain) from changes in fair value of BATEFABRZZER
financial assets at fair value through BEAFEZFHE
profit or loss (W) 1,930 (3,019)
Impairment loss, net of reversal RAEEE - IR
— goodwill —mE - 725
— right-of-use assets —EAEEE - 71
— deposits paid —BfiE® 7,219 5,445
— financial assets and other items —ceREERTEHEES
under expected credit loss model BEXATHEMIER 7,479 10,629
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBE&RE ABRWEB QA8
W s (3.982) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEHB AR
B8 () 55 5,305 (121)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment B R E k&AW - (100)
Loss on written-off of other receivables Hf B8 L B W IR 2 B 1B 242 -
Loss on settlement of loans to associates HEERBENREEERYN
B 18 - 6,303
Share of results of associates pak sy /NI 6,326 (247)
Interest income R B U A (1,211) (1,347)
Dividend income from financial assets BRAFEFABEN SR
at fair value through profit or loss BEEMRSKA - (12)
Operating cash flows before AREEESBBATZ
movements in working capital BEHSHRE (39,672) (24,289)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA () 2,716 (2,647)
Decrease (increase) in trade and JE S BR 5% K% B Ath 8 W Rk IE
other receivables B (3G ) 1,417 (332)
Decrease in loan and interest receivables JE W B 3R B M) B 140 1,753
Increase in restricted bank balance X PR SR 1T 45 BRIG N - (695)
Increase in trade and other payables JRE A5t B SRR % EL A B A SR IE
0 9,164 11,500
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEE M 1,739 1,258
China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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2022 2021
—_E=2-_— —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Cash used in operations EBFRARS (24,496) (13,452)
Income tax paid ERFTEH (26) (69)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETBHAREFH
ACTIVITIES (24,522) (13,521)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets HERAFEF ABEN
at fair value through profit or loss EREEMNFTENIA 3,475 18,633
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERATEFABRRDY
through profit or loss TREE = (4,151)
Proceeds on disposal of asset classified HESBERFELEZ
as held for sale BEMFTEHIE 7,997 -
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR MATEIE 227 -
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties &% & ¥ M FT1S A 5,020 -
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment &M E &R &5 IE - 100
Interest received B A& 19 3
Dividend income from financial assets BATER ABRES
at fair value through profit or loss TREEMNRSKA - 12
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE LHEH - (413)
Deposit paid for acquisition of further RUE—HNBRARINEZ
equity interest in a subsidiary RIEM IR S (742) -
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries H & M B A 7] 2 IR & i HH 7 F 58 - (41)
Net cash outflow from deconsolidation of BUBEGRE ARWB AR 2
subsidiaries WM FEE (219) -
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest HEMB AR D #EEA
in a subsidiary F {5 3k 18 - 750
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHELEBE ST 15,777 14,893
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Advance from non-controlling interests FE 2R AR AR R 2 O EA K - 900
New borrowing raised MERER 1,100 1,150
Repayments of borrowings BERER (2,917) (2,000)
Decrease in margin loans payables ERMRBESEFR LD (1,774) (424)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEAE (527) (602)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHRD 2 P15 ;IR - 4,318
Proceeds from issue of new shares upon R IRE TR 2 FT1S
rights issue A 3,847 -
Transaction costs attribute to placing of e & 30 B (R Y X Z A AR
new shares = (245)
Transaction costs attribute to issuing of AR 18 B2 1T R AR D FE1E BY
new shares upon rights issue R 5K A (787) -
Interest paid =R (3.335) (4,734)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE T - —"F+-A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
—E—-= —EF-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHE T
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEETHFARESFE
ACTIVITIES (4,393) (1,637)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERBESEEBL FHE
EQUIVALENTS (13,138) (265)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNzBREeRBRSZEE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,850 2,951
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  /NEE R &)~ §/& 11,449 164
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZEESRESEE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash LARITAE R B 2 51R 1,161 2,850

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

1.

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Company
Law of the Cayman Islands on 30 November 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 5 February 2002.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company re-domiciled from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda. The change of domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on
15 October 2007 and the Company was continued
into Bermuda with limited liability with effect from 29
October 2007.

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company is
Room 707, 7/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) do not consider any company to be
the ultimate holding company and parent company of
the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of one-stop value chain services, property
investment, distribution business, provision of money
lending services and provision of financial services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Other than those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and incorporated in Taiwan whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB") and New
Taiwan dollars ("NTD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is HK$.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1
January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to  Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HKFRS 3
Amendment to COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16 beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to  Property, Plant and Equipment —

Hong Kong Proceeds before Intended Use
Accounting
Standards
("HKAS") 16

Amendments to  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
HKAS 37 Contract

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group'’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

2.

RETBHERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE
EREBMEHREER ([FHBH
BE|ELEA ) 2T X
REFERFER 2EBHBREE
Bl 2B RT &
REAFEE AEEELEXERATHSE
AEMAE ([FEEMAE])MNE
HMERZTE-_—_F—A—BHBHXR
SEFEHERE AR BT R
SRR ZEFAREGE M B®RE:

EAMBHREREL HERZEL
EIW|LERT A
BEAMBHE RN —T-—F
F16H 2 EFT A NAZTREN
T B A AR B Y
HeER
BB G £ ER S E
(IBAGTEA]) —BEREA
F165 BRI A Z TS 50R

BEGFEREITHR BREAH-ET

ZIBETA BHZ AR

BAET KRS ER BET KRS ER

ZAERT AR R-ZE—N\F%
—E-FFy
FEREMNHE

BRI XHatEIN RAFEEBEER
BHREEY ZETAHRNEEBRNAKNEF
ERBEFENTBRARKRER
SR EVBBRRAEABRBEENLES
R d e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
2.

—=— —

CECCFTA=THUEFE
APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINAN

CIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

China Eco-

Impacts on application of Amendments

to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The Group has applied the amendments to
business combinations for which the acquisition
date was on or after 1 January 2022. The
amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3
Business Combinations so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the "Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued
in October 2010), add a requirement that, for
transactions and events within the scope of
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) —
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in
a business combination and add an explicit
statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments in the

current year has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Farming Limited REIBE+EFRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.2

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The Group has applied the amendments for
the first time in the current year. The annual
improvements make amendments to the
following standards:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose
of assessing whether modification of terms of
original financial liability constitutes substantial
modification under the “10 per cent” test, a
borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or
the lender on the other’s behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions,
the Group applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged as at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2022.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential
confusion.

The application of the amendments in the
current year has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

REMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE

2. FEREAUBREEN([EEY
BE|EER ) 2 BT (&)

A RN BB IR

B 45 5T 45 ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B
2.

=—F— —

EE__FF+_A=1+—BILFE
APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINAN

CIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.3

China Eco-

Change in accounting policy as a result of

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition

of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)

- Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting

mechanism in Hong Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong which are obliged to pay LSP
to employees under certain circumstances.
Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory
MPF contributions to the trustee who
administers the assets held in a trust solely
for the retirement benefits of each individual
employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived
from employers’ MPF contributions was
allowed under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of
the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes
the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially
take effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). In addition, under the Amendment
Ordinance, the last month'’s salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date (instead of the
date of termination of employment) is used to
calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.3

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition

of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
- Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong (continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published
" Accounting implications of the abolition of the
MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong”
which provides guidance for the accounting
for the offsetting mechanism and the impact
arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this,
the Group has implemented the guidance
published by the HKICPA in connection with
the LSP obligation retrospectively so as to
provide more reliable and more relevant
information about the effects of the offsetting
mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits
arising from employer MPF contributions that
have been vested with the employee and
which could be used to offset the employee’s
LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically,
the Group has been applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS
19 to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost
in the period in which the related service is
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
2.

B

TFT AT HUERFE
APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINAN

CIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

(continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.3

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition

of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
- Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong (continued)
Based on the HKICPA's guidance, as a result
of the Abolition, these contributions are
no longer considered “linked solely to the
employee’s service in that period” since
the mandatory employer MPF contributions
after the Transition Date can still be used
to offset the pre-transition LSP obligation.
Therefore, it would not be appropriate to
view the contributions as “independent of the
number of years of service” and the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is
no longer applicable. Instead, these deemed
contributions should be attributed to periods
of service in the same manner as the gross
LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS
19. Accordingly, the Group has recognised a
cumulative catch-up adjustment in profit or
loss for the service cost, interest expense and
remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial
assumptions for the year ended 31 December
2022, with corresponding adjustment to
the LSP obligation. The cumulative catch-up
adjustment is calculated as the difference at the
enactment date (16 June 2022) between the
carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated
under paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 before the
Abolition and the carrying amount of the LSP
liability calculated under paragraph 93(a) of
HKAS 19 after the Abolition.

The application of the amendments did not
have a material impact on the Group's profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the Group’s and the Company’s financial
position as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including  Insurance Contracts'
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or
HKAS 28 Joint Venture?

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
HKFRS 16
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current or
HKAS 1 Non-current and related amendments

to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
HKAS 12 arising from a Single Transaction’

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements®

Amendments to
HKAS 21

Lack of Exchangeability*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2025.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
2.

B F+ZA=t+—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”) anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation

5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIREEEER AT
Annual Report 2022 —Z = — 43§

2.

EREREMBEREER ([FEM
BHREEA]) 2 BT A (&)

EHEME N RERNFHTREBITE
B HREER (&)

BR R & B 55 R I R 2P i 22 # AT S AR
ERTRBMBREEAIN KRARES
(IE=])FEHEMAMA H AT L&
CHERCEEGE SRV IS B R
B8 maMBERRELEATE -

BEEBETEREIN (KTFX)BESE
BREBRFRBREEEEZEESH
HEET (—FE=FF) ([ZE-FFK
FTA ) REBEERER (1557F)
WERAENHREEE ([ —F==
CHENY
—E_TFBIARFEERERH
RED+ZER 2T EEEFIRHE
TERBEMERIES UKAEIBEAR
BEEIIFFRPDAGE Hb:

. MEAMAEBEZERAINERS
FEEARERERAS 2B
mTEREE AEERETRE
EEREEHRABBANES
GEHERIEIFeM T A 2
TZHEBXTAR ZZEZT T
CRNEESEARDEELIE
REEE-

. EESABEIBERARBARAN
FRDEERENHEHRE
FHEMEN -BBME ZFE
RIABREIRBRTRXIEEE
EESXHMER12BANBER
BRRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation

5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)
(continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Covenants which
are required to comply with only after the reporting
period do not affect whether that right exists at the
end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that
enables users of financial statements to understand
the risk that the liabilities could become repayable
within twelve months after the reporting period,
if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the
entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective
date of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the
2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies the
2020 Amendments for an earlier period after the issue
of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE M IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)
(continued)
Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2022, the application of the 2020 and
2022 amendments will not result in reclassification of
the Group's liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the "Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may
require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must
instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements
or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to
influence decisions made by primary users. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group reported a loss attributable to owner of
the Company of approximately HK$62,359,000
and had approximately HK$24,522,000 net
cash used in operating activities and, as of 31
December 2022, the Group’'s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$63,788,000, in which its total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$37,781,000,
while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately HK$1,161,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)
Although the Group has been continuously
incurring losses in these years, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its operating
cash flows as and when they fall due for
the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period given that:

(@  the Company is developing its existing
business by, including but not limited
to, expanding the product mix and its
number of suppliers and customers of
the Group;

(b) the Company has entered into a
revolving loan agreement with each of
the two executive Directors, namely Mr.
So David Tat Man and Mr. Liu Chun Fai,
respectively, for a total loan facility of
HK$20 million in January 2024 which
will be used as working capital of the
Company, as appropriate;

(a) the Company has proactively explored
additional funding such as rights
issue, placing of new shares, issue of
new shares and/or convertible bonds,
depending on the prevailing market
conditions and the development of the
Group's businesses;

(d)  the Company is actively negotiating
with relevant parties and will use its
best endeavor to repay the outstanding
liabilities. Additionally, the Company
has proactively negotiate with relevant
parties in relation to the recovering of its
other receivables;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

(e) The Company is in negotiation with the
creditor(s) of the Group in relation to
potential capitalisation of the debt. It
will not only reduce the debt but will
also increase the shareholder base of the

Company;

f) the Directors will continue to explore
business opportunities and implement
stronger measures aiming at improving
the working capital and cash flows of
the Group, including enhancing the over
profitability of the Group by introduction
of higher gross profit margin products,
closely monitoring the incurrence of
operating expenditures and streamlining
unnecessary expenditures of the Group;

(@@ The Company will use its best endeavours
to minimise its expenditures including but
not limited to administrative expenses as

well as operating costs.

The Directors are of the opinion that the
Group will be able to have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due
for a period of not less than the next twelve
months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements do not
provide for further liabilities which might arise,
and do not include any adjustments relating
to the carrying amount and reclassification of
assets and liabilities that might be necessary
should the Group be unable to continue as a

going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FOMERRGEREERE S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT HEE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 MREMBEBRREREE (F)
financial statements (continued)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial FemEENRATFEFEDE
asset takes into account a market participant's EMmiZ2HEEBRRABREERAR
ability to generate economic benefits by using BEERGALELIBELEETS
the asset in its highest and best use or by e BERERERZAE
selling it to another market participant that M2 EEmEELENE
would use the asset in its highest and best use. B &8
For financial instruments and investment MEATERXINEMIAR
properties which are transacted at fair value KREWMRLNBERBAREER T
and a valuation technique that unobservable ABRBABBTELNTED
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in HERMM S - A ERITE TR
subsequent periods, the valuation technique A DA b (B BT PR ) 25 B s
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the WEREERRHERE-

results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, NI BmEms A FE
fair value measurements are categorised into FERBATEFTEMH A
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which BRBEREERATFETEDN
the inputs to the fair value measurements are MAHBHHEEENEEN D
observable and the significance of the inputs BRE—N BF_RIE=H"
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, M

which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices . F-—RMABBEEER
(unadjusted) in active markets for sFE HE T ABSAHER
identical assets or liabilities that the BENBENERMISZ
entity can access at the measurement WE (CREHE)
date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than . F_RBABBEREE
quoted prices included within Level FEBEEESHEEA#
1, that are observable for the asset or R ASE (F—HA
liability, either directly or indirectly; and BRENHRERIN) &

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs . F=RABBEEED
for the asset or liability. BENTAERH A

%0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company:

o has the power over the investee;

° is exposure, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstance indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the
Group, other vote holders or other
parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
3.

B

T F T A=1+—HILFE

BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

o any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control of the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
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B
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BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

China Eco-

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”) or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs"”) (or group of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of
the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

3. HAVBBRENEEREARE

FTBUR ()

3.2 EBEXEFEE(E)
BE
RWBEESELEZBETER
WHEEXBEARTEZRA (R E
MHG TR R R RERE
(E) ABRe

BREANAME BEESEE
B BAHZHRAREREELZ
AEBEERELEM (R
ELENu]) (XBREELEEM
MR - %A B R 1 R R
KN EEIER A MmER EE
B SRR B A KRR & 7 & o

ENEEENREeESEM (3K
ReELBEMARN) SFETH

A] B 3R RUE By B SR T
AR RN o B0 ¥R AR W iR B
ENEEmME EMEOREEE
MRGEAEM (KRS ELE
248 R 70 5% & HA R AT #1708
BRI - s AT e @ & B R 70 H AR
1A - BB E B 1R & R 0 B A
PURBE A B B M BREE - AR
RiIpZEM (FRSELSEUMA
MEBREEMREEZLEN S
EHMEE-

HERBREELELIRS
ELBEMARNANTAREE
EEUR BERESEMRAL
CHEESHENEE -EAKEH
ERTELBEU (KMeELE
AARAMIRE EEEM) AR
XK HENHESRREE
MER (RREEEENM) KK
BmoReELEM (KR
ELBAAR) WL EEE -

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3}

123



124

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control of those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

China Eco-

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the
same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

Changes in the Group’s interests in associates
The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture. There is
no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in associates
(continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or
loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group)
is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale
(continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a
portion of an investment that will be disposed
of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in
relation to the portion that is classified as held
for sale from the time when the investment (or
a portion of the investment) is classified as held

for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services

that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group's performance as the Group

performs;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative
standalone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-

lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of offices that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

China Eco-

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3. HAVBBRENEEREARE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend

on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except
for investment properties measured under fair

value model.

Rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are

presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as

additional lease payments from lessees.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT

An

nual Report 2022 =& = —FF #f

3.

REMBRREUEERERS
FHBUR ()
3.2 EXEREE(HE)
HE (&
A5 B 1F 75 4 A
MEZDBERTE

REBEREHEAZHED D ER
BmENKLEHE - EHE KRR
M8 & B R AR P 8y 4B KD
7 B\ K Bl % 2 AR AR
REAIDERBMERE-TAB
HMBEED»EREEHE-

KEHEZHSBWATNREH
HEzHHAERZEZRNEBRT
R WAL RHELHERE
HEZNPEERATINERE
BEREE BZKARER
NE SRR BRI HERAF
BEEAGFENREMERIN -

KEASBHEHEXGBERENE
SWAZTNBYA -

REEERS

BB AROEERSRIEE
YR E L EIRETRE -
W B R FEEITOIRETE 7
MERRHATFEABKER
A AR EBRINMAE R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. When a fair value gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserves
(attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

|oss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a
below-market rate of interest is treated as a
government grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value
of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates.
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OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plans in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Taiwan are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from
service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the date of
grant without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payment (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Share options granted to non-employees
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with parties other than employees
are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, except where fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service. The fair values of the
services received are recognised as expenses.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
loss before tax because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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FH-A=T—HLFE
OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
Annual Report 2022 =& = ZF F 3§

3.

REMBRREUEERERS

FHBUR ()
3.2 EXEREE(HE)
#HE (&)

EEHRBAEENREER SR
SHIM R ERR AT - Y70 A RE 4
PR B G A KB 2R
BEBERIERR-

o

ELEHRBREERABNLNEER
BEREREEDHHEARNHR X
AECRERBERARCEENK
BEELDEROBRE (RBDE)

R
=T BE o
Al >

EERBREEREENTER
BR 7 R 5 HI R 7K &= [ 38 B A5 2R
KBS XNEREENRAR
REENTREZE -

A BARTFERAAEZRE
MERELEHIAMS  BRAME
ZEHERIHERNHERS
SR ] - M bt PR AR B T B AU E B
e MRBRAREMEA T A
EXYAUNEBNRERENERRE
R BB 73 B9 48 ) 2 6 5 0 08 =
(MIEBBHE) MBRNER
BARE QI ABRREHESR -

MEEAKERAEREEE
AHAEERENHEER SN
EEBAME ARBELETE
ML ESRENEREEEXH
EafE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income
Jaxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities
results in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME
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BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment at least annually and
whether there is an indication that it may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS
FINAN

OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group
of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with
the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
the CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or the CGU or a
group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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FH-A=T—HLFE
OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand
and demand deposits, excluding bank
balances that are subject to regulatory
restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of
cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises
of short-term (generally with original
maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments
rather than for investment or other
purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased
assets to their original condition, as required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, are
recognised at the date of inception of the
lease at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to restore
the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS
FINAN

FH-A=T—HLFE
OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
CIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Contingent assets/liabilities

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation
arising from past events but is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable
for an obligation, the part of the obligation
that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is
not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine
whether an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs, except
in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a settlement date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE M IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Interest/dividend income which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
are presented as revenue.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss when:

(@) the entity’s right to receive payment of
the dividend is established;

(b) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to
the entity; and

(c) the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE M IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HIFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)
In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required to
be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at

(iii)

FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in
equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in
the “other income, gains or losses, net”
line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other income, gains or
losses, net” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
Z__HF+_A=t+—RHLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

HE—T--

3.

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables, loans
to associates, restricted bank balance and cash
and cash equivalents) and financial guarantee
contract which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the
credit default swap prices for the
debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE M IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

o existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 (continued)

3.2

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

(continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a
debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low
risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when it has
an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts,
the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. For financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
FH+ZA=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

HE—T--

= ——

3.

3.2

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS

9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

(continued)

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
Annual Report 2022 =& = —F &

REMBRREUEERERS
FHBUR ()

3.2

ERETHE (&)
2HIT A (%)
EHEE (&)

wa

% B 76 3 25 S I S5 05 48

ERREMENSREENME
fb 18 B RE (%)

)

SEREBRABEZE N ()

REE S E HER AR
AEERRELSFHERE
BIMREN A RMEL R
BERIREEZFREL
RZEIRELRAN B
FOREH 2 AT E B R
B ey RSB0

ERNNTEE

RAREERREEM
5 AR Bk B 5B
KIRE ) B BN B
AR REEE (TEEAR
SEFANEAEFR)
ENEERA(BEAS
B RIXKERSEL
TENEM-

AN b At AR T a0 A - e
BMEEBHBEBOX A
REBRB/DEERY
BRIFASEESENMA
EEAEANERERE
BRHENRERERE-



BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

3.2

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS

9 (continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following

events:

(a)

(0)

(d)

(e)

significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
FH+ZA=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

HE—T--

= ——

3.

3.2

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 (continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
FH+ZA=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

HE—T--

= ——

3.

3.2

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS

9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the ECL is the present value
of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amounts that the Group expects
to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts
for which the effective interest rate
cannot be determined, the Group will
apply a discount rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are
taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

3.2

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS

9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
° Past-due status;

J Nature, size and industry of
debtors; and

J External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts,
the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception
of trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and loans to
associates where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B
3.

Eomo—

T _F+_A=t—HLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset'’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests, borrowings, margin loans payables
and lease liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
3.

T —F+-A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their
fair values. It is subsequently measured at the

higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and

o the amount initially recognised

less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the

guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the Directors, at a
particular point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
Please refer to Note 3 in relation to the going concern
assumptions adopted by the Directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
4.

B F+ZA=t+—HILEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of
discount rate, a material impairment loss or further
impairment loss may arise. Furthermore, the estimated
cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher
degree of estimation uncertainties in the current year
due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of goodwill was HK$Nil (2021: HK$Nil), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$Nil
(2021: HK$23,594,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which are
set out in Note 18.

In relying on the valuation report, the Directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including
the potential risk of any market violation, policy,
geopolitical and social changes or other unexpected
incidents as a result of change in macroeconomic
environment, travel restrictions implemented by many
countries, or other unexpected incidents would result
in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The Directors have performed internal assessment on
the risks of change in macroeconomic environment
through performing sensitivity analysis in relation to
the Group's investment properties.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
the Group’s investment properties is approximately
HK$9,780,000 (2021: HK$16,869,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
4.

B F+ZA=t+—HILEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties are stated
at costs less accumulated impairment, if any. In
determining whether a deposit paid is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the value of the underlying asset. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the potential risk
of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result
of change in macroeconomic environment, travel
restrictions implemented by many countries, or other
unexpected incidents, could materially affect the value
of the underlying asset.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
deposits paid for acquisition of properties subject
to impairment assessment were approximately
HK$52,642,000 (2021: HK$64,756,000), after taking
into account the impairment losses of HK$7,219,000
(2021: HK$5,445,000) in respect of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties that have been recognised.
Details of the impairment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties is disclosed in Note 23.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's unlisted
equity instruments amounting to approximately
HK$2,865,000 (2021: HK$7,261,000) were measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based
on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgment and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. See
Note 42(c) for further disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
EXETHABRGAHTRERE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix. The provision
rates are based on aging of debtors as groupings
of various debtors taking into consideration the
Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables are disclosed in Note 42(b).

Provision of ECL for deposits and other
receivables and loans to associates

Provision of ECL for deposits and other receivables
with significant balances and loans to associates
are assessed for ECL individually. The provision rate
are based on internal credit ratings and taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group's deposits and other receivables and loans to
associates are disclosed in Notes 42(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

4,

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables
The Group estimates the estimated loss rates of loan
and interest receivables based on historical credit loss
experience of the debtors as well as the fair value of
the collateral pledged by the borrowers to the loan
and interest receivables. At every reporting date, the
management assesses the collateral and credit quality
of each borrower based on borrower's background
information, financial position, past experience and
relevant factors.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group’s loan and interest receivables are disclosed in
Note 42(b).

Provision of ECL for financial guarantee contract
The determination of the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs requires an estimation
of discount rate. The discount rate is based on
management best estimate of the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group’s financial guarantee contract are disclosed in
Note 42(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
REVENUE 5. s
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EEAHKBNDE
with customers

One-stop value Distribution
chain services business Total
-
EEERS D EHER mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET TERT
For the year ended BE-_E—-_—%
31 December 2022 TZA=+—HLEE
Geographical markets BE WS
Hong Kong BB - 22,433 22,433
Australia BAMTE 2,198 - 2,198
PRC FE - 1,180 1,180
2,198 23,613 25,811
Timing of revenue recognition W3 FER2 K B
At point in time F AR 2,198 23,613 25,811
Sales channel/type of customer $5&ERE FFEH
Wholesale #E 2,198 23,300 25,498
Retail zE - 313 313
2,198 23,613 25,811
One-stop value Distribution
chain services business Total
— ¥
BEAERE DIHEB mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT THET
For the year ended BE-Z--%
31 December 2021 tTZA=+—-HLHFE
Geographical markets EETHE
Hong Kong B - 66,221 66,221
Australia EAFITE 3,252 - 3,252
PRC T - 3,411 3,411
Korea F#E - 166 166
3,252 69,798 73,050
Timing of revenue recognition W B K
At point in time E AR R 3,252 69,798 73,050
Sales channel/type of customer $5E&ERE FFEH
Wholesale A 3,252 69,688 72,940
Retail & - 110 110
3,252 69,798 73,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE M IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE
5. REVENUE (continued) 5.
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the
revenue from contracts with customers with the
amounts disclosed in the segment information.

Wz (&)

() FFEYWHENDE (H)

TXHINEF A O WS EDF
BERBENSENERK-

Segment revenue

7 B Uk #
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
One-stop value chain services —uh B EE R 2,198 3,252
Distribution business 7 55 E 7%
— Reusable bags —RIRE 2,716 6,397
— Recycle plastics —[B1 g 28 Rt 10,389 47,200
— Ramen and udon By =S 793 3,211
— Frozen foods and others —RRRmREAM 9,715 12,990
23,613 69,798
Revenue from contracts BEEEHWE
with customers 25,811 73,050
Interest under effective interest HERNEEFENFE
method 323 217
Total revenue Felg 26,134 73,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Provision of one-stop value chain services
The performance obligation is satisfied when
services are rendered and the credit period
granted to the customers is normally due upon
completion of the service.

Sales of reusable bags and recycle plastics

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods. The Group typically
receives a deposit on acceptance of orders and
the balance payment is generally due within
0 to 90 days from delivery. When the Group
receives a deposit before the delivery of the
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract until the goods have
been delivered to the customer.

Sales of ramen and udon

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods and payment is generally
due within 30 to 60 days from delivery.

Sales of frozen foods and others

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods and payments is generally
due within 0 to 90 days from delivery.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

All revenue contracts are for period of one
year or less. As permitted by HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
5. Wz (&)
(i) FEFEANBARY

R — v EE AR
BREBRREHRREREZSRE
T MRTEFPNEENRTEE
ARFS ST X T 21 H o

RIRBREWEHR B E

BHABRBERINERREZRE
T AEBRENEZERTERIK
IR &+ 88 T FE - SR IE /Y 3KER
— BB RTRROEIOK A - fid
AEERZNERATWEIZS -
B A IR A TR EEY)
R FEFILHENENAE-

AR S LAY 3 &
E%%W%xﬁ“m SHENE
17 M KEPRE & B T30
RE6ORNA
RERBERMEHE
BHEBRINEMRKZRE
7 MARHERE R BRI
REIOKRA o

REBEBIBEEFEHNZHT
BEREE

(iii)

FTERZEHNERRAE—F
FAT IR E B EREERE
155 2 E - WEREE D 2R
BHEHZ RSB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—
6.

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the board of Directors (the
“Board”), being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. Trading of
consumables and agricultural products and trading of
grocery food products are combined into Distribution
Business during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Prior year segments disclosure have been represented
to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

H"‘

%/'\2

Eﬁ?éﬁmﬁ&“%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi
= (g NEXBLERRE
((E2EERARE| ) RENEREE
RATR SR B m e R B AR Bl -
REBAREENA 2RO HE T2
BOREE WM AR &) E 5 EDEE
4 o

MRAFE AEBSEHARNTZ2HR
B EHHREZRDAAXNES B E
R HF+A=+—HILEE H
FmkEEREZREHRERESE
EHENHEB - CEIEFHHBHRE
ABRARFZ 2 HIREF— 2

LER K& lﬁf%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
FEREI DA 2y AT -

a. One-stop value chain services - provision of total solution services including trading,
packaging and logistics solutions
— N BEERS - REZEMAFTERD (BEES BERDRER
HTE)
b. Property investment - generated rental income from operating leases of
Group's investment properties
MERE - FAEEREVERQEMEEANHESWA
d Distribution business - processing and trading of consumables and agricultural
products, and trading of grocery food products
DIHER - HEGEKERERNIKES KiEHERES
d. Provision of money lending - provision of money lending services
services
R UG R - REHERER
e. Provision of financial services - provision of financial and investment advisory and
corporate financial services
Rt RS - REMBEREZDAANEERE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. IREELIN(48)
Segment revenues and results DI U R XA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue U T ARNEERIZT 23N E&L5IE
and results by reportable and operating segments: AL E X - i
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE—_E-_—_H+_-_B=1+—HLEE
One-stop Provision of Provision of
value chain Property Distribution  money lending financial
services investment business services services Total
= Rt Rt
EEERE NERE DHER MR SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEx TEx TEx TER TER
REVENUE L€
External sales HINAE 2,198 - 23,613 323 - 26,134
Segment loss SHEE (623) (4,067) (22,457) (3,479) (1,084) (31,710)
Unallocated corporate other gain, net APBARAMKE FE 2,668
Unallocated corporate expenses APBAAMAE (25,061)
Loss from changes in fair value of BATEFABRNER
financial assets at FVTPL BERATERZYER (1,930)
Share of results of associates HIEBENREE (6,326)
Impairment loss recognised on deposits paid HERREBANAEES (7,219)
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables, net 5t fth flE Mt SR IE R )
REEE FE (5,859)
Impairment loss reversed on financial RUBEREOHBENRESE
guarantee contract 11,326
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BB A RN R 2 /M s 3,982
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HERBARNER F8 (5,305)
Finance costs BEMK (4,272)
Loss before tax BB AT R (69,706)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - E-—4EF+-_A=+—HItEE
Provision of Provision of
One-stop value Property Distribution money lending financial
chain services investment business services services Total
—UH b b
EEERS MERE DEEB AR SRRS it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FET FET
REVENUE 6
External sales HINEE 3,252 - 69,798 217 - 73,267
Segment profit (loss) BT (F8) 85 (15,049) (6,523) 860 (2,448) (23,075)
Unallocated corporate other gain, net APRAR AU FE 1,721
Unallocated corporate expenses APBRAFAE (5,033)
Gain from changes in fair value of financial BATEFABRENER
assets at FVTPL AEDTEEDRE 3,019
Share of results of associates AEBEDRER 247
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill HEBRANAEER (725)
Impairment loss recognised on deposits paid ?ftmﬂqﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ’]m@?ﬂé (5,445)
Impairment loss recognised on loans to BB D AR B REER
associates HEEE (848)
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables REMERIERINREES (8,030)
Impairment loss recognised on financial HPBERENBRANABEEE
guarantee contract (1,490)
Loss on settlement of loans to associates HERBENTERZER (6,303)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEHBARMKE F8 121
Finance costs EEHES (6,279)
Loss before tax BB AR (52,120)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—
6.

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit
earned (loss from) by each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, directors’ emoluments,
other income, gains or losses, net, (loss) gain from
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, share
of results of associates, impairment loss recognised on
goodwill/interests in associates/deposits paid, loss on
settlement of loans to associates, certain impairment
loss reversed (recognised) on financial assets/financial
guarantee contract, net, loss on written-off of other
receivables, (loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net,
gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_T_—_F+_A=1+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. LI ()
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

LAT%ZK'EI&—J;:%&%&%“ i

liabilities by reportable and operating segments: AT EEEBESH:
2022 2021
—E__F —E - —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Segment assets TEEE
One-stop value chain services —uh B E RS 4,154 919
Property investment MERE 14,047 24,406
Distribution business DI 5,936 28,093
Provision of money lending services 12 (& RS 1,329 1,935
Total segment assets NEHEEHEE 25,466 55,353
Unallocated corporate assets AP RBIEE 136,629 169,813
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIERENEE - 13,547
Consolidated assets HREEE 162,095 238,713
Segment liabilities DHERE
One-stop value chain services — b EEH# RS 4,212 947
Property investment MERE 3,799 2,494
Distribution business DIHED 4,811 22,955
Provision of money lending services 12 (& AR 25 341
Provision of financial services eH 2 mR% 555 170
Total segment liabilities DEEELRRE 13,402 26,907
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoBLARIAE 76,759 82,626
Consolidated liabilities oLeEaE 90,161 109,533
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

Fo

B
6.

r the year ended 31 December 2022
ECTCCF+A=+—RHIFE
OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain plant and equipment, certain
right-of-use assets, goodwill, intangible asset,
interests in associates, equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income,
deposits paid, certain other receivables, loans
to associates, financial assets at FVTPL and
certain cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank balance; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables, certain
amounts due to non-controlling interests,
margin loans payables, borrowings, certain
lease liabilities, financial guarantee contract and
deferred tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2022

REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
6. R&EHH (A)
Hip oy BER
BE-B-__F+-A=t—-HLHEE

Provision
One-stop of money Provision
value chain Property  Distribution lending  of financial
services  investment business services services  Unallocated Total
—¥R Rt Rt
EEERS NERE PHER HER% SRR% ES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT TET TET TERT TET
Amounts included in the measure of 275 HIEREH D E
segment profit or loss or BERDIANSE:
segment assets:
Loss from changes in fair value of ~ REMELTFEED
investment properties, net BE 58 - (1,697) - - - - (1,697)
Depreciation of plant and equipment & KR ETE - (40) (67) - - (268) (375)
Loss on written-off of other A ERFENER
receivables - (242) - - - - (242)
Impairment loss recognised on trade i /& WSZ o &ﬁ W’i 6o
and other receivables, net - %E - - (12,479) - - (5,859) (18,338)
Impairment loss reversed on loan ?)EMSZQ KA 8 E T’%@ 1
and interest receivable, net AEEE 38 - - = (467) = = (467)
Amounts regularly provided to CODM EEEETFEEEERRE
but not included in the measure of BN Gt AD BEHHH 2
segment profit or loss or segment  BE 2 EMEE:
assets:
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREAENE - - - - - (382) (382)
Gain on deconsolidation of BEEAARNBAR
subsidiaries flka - - - - - 3,982 3,982
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net  {HEMBARMEE F8 - - - - - (5,305) (5,305)
Impairment loss recognised on RENREBANFESE
deposits paid - - - - - (7,219) (7,219)
Impairment loss reversed on financial  5L8f IR A DB EH
guarantee contract REEE - - - - - 11,326 11,326
Government grant BB - - 312 - 72 263 647
Interest income ﬂ ,% A - - - - - 1,211 121
Loss from changes in fair value of NTHE EU\E*E’]?E@
financial assets at FVTPL é“ﬁ‘aﬁ TEEYER - - - = = (1,930) (1,930)
Share of results of associates MEBERREE - - - - - (6,326) (6,326)
Finance costs BEAM A - - (186) - - (4,086) (4,272)
Interests in associates REE AR 2 BR - - - - - 23,811 23811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 0. ,,W%Q%B ( ,ﬁ,E)
Other segment information (continued) Hith &L (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_E-—F+-_A=1+—HIEE
Provision of Provision
One-stop value Property Distribution  money lending of financial
chain services investment business services services Unallocated Total
S R4 R
BERRY MER PEER HERS SRRS AHE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FET FET FET FiET
Amounts included in the measure of  REHEAFBHRAS
segment profit or loss or BERBIANGE:
segment assets:
Loss from changes in fair value of BEANELTEZYEE 38
investment properties, net - (1,678) - - - - (1,678)
Depreciation of plant and equipment  EiE RiEITE - (588) (28) - ?3) (371) (990)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE - - (98) - - (459) (557)
Impairment loss recognised on REREEERAN
right-of-use assets HEBE - 71 - - - 1)
Impairment loss recognised on trade  SEREUCR R At FE MR FE
and other receivables, net BRORESE FE - (1,073) - - (8,030) (9,103)
Impairment losses reversed on loan FERER R SREN
and interest receivable, net REBE 38 - - 24 788 - - 812
Amounts regularly provided to CODM ~~ FHRE T X ELEREE
but not included in the measure of BRGNS BBELD B
segment profit or loss or segment BEZHENGE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets (Note) ~ JEREIEEFE (M) - - 413 - - 28,289 28,702
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRIMYE - - - - - 121 121
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment (1% BB R & a0 Mas - - 100 - - - 100
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 37 B BRMFEKE - - (725) - - - (725)

Impairment loss recognised on REMEEEINHESE
deposits paid - - - - - (5,445) (5,445)
Impairment loss recognised on REBERAEHER

loans to associates REOFEEE - - - - - (848) (848)
Impairment loss recognised on REBERANEDN

financial guarantee contract REFE - - - - - (1,490) (1,490)
Loss on settlement of loans to associates & & A& A B {EHEAMER - - - - - (6,303) (6,303)
Government grant B8 - - 40 - - - 40
Interest income FEMA - - - - - 1347 1,347

Dividend income from financial assets ~ ZATEHABZZ SBEE
at FVTPL M BMA - - - - - 12 12
Gain from changes in fair value of RRATEAAEG S REE

financial assets at FVTPL ATEZHKE - - - - - 3,019 3,019
Share of results of associates okl - NGES | - - - - - 247 247
Finance costs BERA - - - - - (6,279) (6,279)
Interests in associates REEREZER - - - - - 30,137 30,137

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

fiet: FRBEETBEESBIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE

6. RK&EDH (&)

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

wEEH

AEBHEBUNEE TEIEE-

REEFERBINBE P HFTFRANE
%+Eiﬂgf5iﬁl|;i%§” °$%.3EU|L@J§

ENREEMEEZS-

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REMBEF 22U ERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--F —T-—F ZEBE-FE —T-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET THER FET
Hong Kong &5 22,756 66,438 80,215 86,057
The PRC H 1,180 3,411 52,642 71,895
Australia BA NI 2,198 3,252 - -
Korea B - 166 - -
26,134 73,267 132,857 157,952

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

fiet: JFRBEETBEEZBIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE

6.  OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. (EEHI(E)

FRIEEFHNESR
HEFERBEPZHFEAEELE
WEEBIE10% 2B RmT

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Customer A BEEA 7,193 9,996
Customer B’ X B! N/AT 3 F? 22,097
Customer C! EPC N/AT3E F? 9,999
Customer D' E D! N/AT i F? 7,536

! Revenue from distribution business. 1 KEDHEER IS -
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 2 H FE Uk 26 30 4B (AN £ B 4B 0 25

10% of the total revenue of the Group. 10% LA | o
186 China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-FT__F+-A=-+HLHFE
OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 7. HttlA - RmNESR FE
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Interest income: FEWA
— bank deposits —RITEFEXK 19 3
— other receivables — H fth FE U FRIB 1,192 964
— loans to associates — (B & N RIEH M E K - 380
Dividend income from financial assets EAFEFFABZNEMEE - 12
at FVTPL B RSB A
Management fee income EREBIRA 425 -
Sundry income MIEWA 385 222
Gain on disposal of plant and B M E k& e W - 100
equipment
Government grants (Note) BT BY (HE5E) 647 40
2,668 1,721

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recognised government grants of HK$40,000
(2021: HK$40,000) in respect of participation in
export promotion activities, which relates to SME
Export Marketing Fund provided by the Hong Kong
government.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group recognised government grants of
approximately HK$607,000 (2021: Nil) in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies, which relates to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong government.

Hix: Rz -—=—F+=-A=+—8H
EFE - AEBERS2HED Dﬁpﬁ
&) 1 R IR T # B)40,0008 T (=
— —4F 140,000/ 7T ) 'Eﬁié;‘%ﬂzﬁ
REMNFNDCEMSHEESHR -

REZE-_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—H
EFE - AEBERFTEMLEBRH
8k 7 52 IR FT # B) £9607,0007 7T ( =
T —F:F) HEBRNREEN
RELETEIEA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. Eﬂﬁﬁ}zﬂ&
2022 2021
—E-= —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Interest on borrowings ERF B 2,615 2,873
Reimbursement of finance costs borne &1 & J7 B4 2 gl & p A
by lenders (Notes 35(a) and 35(b)) (M 5E35(a)F135(b) ) 76 1,719
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 21 85
Interest on margin loans payables ERRESERFE 533 590
Interest on balancing payment for WHENBARE SR
the acquisition of further interest BT &
in subsidiaries (Note 23(a)) (FtE23(a) ) 747 861
Others HA 280 151
4,272 6,279
9.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED UNDER 9. HEHEEFEEIXEBTEIZNR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET EEE S8
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHE T
Impairment losses recognised AT SRR (D) H
(reversed), net, on: EEE FEE:
— Trade receivables —E FEINRIE 12,479 1,073
— Other receivables — E b B WK IE 5,859 8,030
— Loan and interest receivables —EREREFE 467 (812)
— Loans to associates —ABERREHER - 848
— Financial guarantee contract —BEERER (11,326) 1,490
7.479 10,629

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note

42(b).

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

10. FEH (ER)FEX

2022 2021
=== —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH
— Current tax — 2RI 5 17
— Under-provision in prior years —-BAEFEREBTR - 60
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") FR B - b 1 (R 353 -

([ ER])

358 77
Deferred tax (Note 39) EIERLIE (F7E39) (1,306) 423
(948) 500

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% from both years. No EIT is provided for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Group did
not derive any assessable profit subject to EIT.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT effective from 1
January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation
Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all income from
the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation value, with an exemption
provided for property sales of ordinary residential
properties if their appreciation values do not exceed
20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

RIBEBMNEHAOMNEHEMRES &5
REEEEEIRS.25% MM R A E
2,000,000/ 7T 48 40 Bt 18 - W 5 4216.5%
89 B 2R 45 4%92,000,0005% 7T BA _E 355 F1) &9
MIB - NFEFEH MR ERHEE
B RFBEEIZ16.5%M 5 — X
BMBE AL A EREEEERNS
7 F 15 1 5t 2,000,000 JT 2 {4 51 &
SR T M $28.25% 1 &+ 112,000,000/%
TCIA b 2 Ad T FEER B 0% 1) B 32 16.5% 5T

Ho
Ean

BEPEAREMBECEMSHE ([1
¥EMRE RTCEMRMBHRIEEBIE
Bl P BIMB A B B 2 M A F E AT
K19 /25% o AR AN & B I S IR
BN ZERTE R TR ERRRREF - 8
VWERBE-_E_—_FR T = —
+ZAZ+—BULEEFEEHRECEMS
TR o

BEE—NANANF—A—BRERS
FREE AR R £ b 1 (B R 1T R
UWEkB—ANAF—A=-+tBEE
MEy A EE A R A ME + 2 EHR T
GO ERMAAEE EREHENE
ERELMERE M ENEEYRE
BEET S — D IRAGBRN T
EZFE30% E60%H) 2 i R 440 Lt
BER  MERZEFTENEETER
IR NFIE B B F120% B e
A ER BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE
10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES (continued) 10.
The Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years. No Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income
Tax is provided for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 as the Group did not derive any assessable
profit subject to Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax.

Fres (ER)BxX (&)
BEENEXMEHEREZMESF
[E R (o 5T FE R TR M IR17% 2 B K5t
B -HRASETEREETAAMME
FIEEMESHNERTOEF - S ER
HE_T-_—_FRk=-T=-_—%+=A
=+ —BLEFEFRENEXZMEN
B o

The tax (credit) expenses for the years can be

ZEFEARIE (ER) XA KRR

reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated AERFEEHEMEEIKRFERER B ATE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive BYEEMT :
income as follows:
2022 2021
—E—- —E-—14F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss before tax Br 5 B B 18 (69,706) (52,120)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate &AM TS £ 16.5%
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (ZZEZ—%:165%)
AENNIE (11,502) (8,600)
Tax relief on 8.25% on first B2BE8BIT 2 ERBRE T &
HK$2 million of assessable profits 8.25% MR 5 s 2 (11) (27)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] #1754 7 S AR 75 2 &
for tax purpose 1,643 2,233
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMOWANREZE
for tax purpose (788) (358)
Tax effect of share of results of DR E R A EEN G2
associates 1,044 41
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAUMREFERE L
differences not recognised W2 20 72
Tax reduction M IEHUR (6) (10)
(Over-provision) Under-provision of MAFEMEHRAE
income tax expense in prior years (HBERE BETE (670) 60
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised fﬁﬁﬁm MIEEBEENH BT E 9,605 8,534
Effect of different tax rates of RE M B A R 48 = A FT B
subsidiaries operating in NEMTRERETE
other jurisdictions (283) (1,363)
Income tax (credit) expenses s (k) Ax (948) 500

China Eco-Farming lelted TEEELERERAT
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

T _Ft+-A=1+—HULFE

11. XEEEE

AEEFERRME NS BEREH

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—14F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) B2 2Me (ME12) 4,062 2,976
Other staff costs (excluding directors’  Efth § T AL A
emoluments): (TEEEFZHe)
— Salaries and other benefits —%tr/i\&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ 8,049 14,475
— Retirement benefits scheme RRRE GBI R
contributions 687 786
Total staff costs (Note (a)) 8 TAABEE (k@) 12,798 18,237
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERTN €
— Audit services —ZH R 1,337 870
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAR 2 FEKA
an expense 21,029 72,148
Depreciation of plant and equipment &= &R EITE (K 7Eb))
(Note (b)) 375 990
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHAREERE (M)
(Note (c)) 382 557
Impairment loss recognised on LR A E ERERY
right-of-use assets BB EE = 71
Loss on written-off of other receivables il $5 £ b & U Z0 I8 &5 18 242 -
Loss on settlement of loans to EEREBE AFERERS
associates 18 - 6,303
Notes: M=k
(a) Staff costs amounted to approximately (a) BTk A%2,100,000% T (=
HK$2,100,000 (2021: HK$2,950,000) and T - —4%:2,950, 000?\:-5775)&
HK$10,698,000 (2021: HK$15,287,000) have been 10,698,000 L (Z & = — %
included in cost of sales and administrative expenses 15,287,0007% 70 ) B 9 Bl ET A 38 & B
respectively. RRITRFER
(b) Depreciation of plant and equipment amounted (b) BEREETELN70008 T (ZE
to approximately HK$7,000 (2021: HK$21,000) — — 4 :21,000% 7T ) }2368,0005% 7T
and HK$368,000 (2021: HK$969,000) have been (ZZT = —4:969,000%& )2 9D 7l
included in cost of sales and administrative expenses HASEERANRITHES -
respectively.
(© Depreciation of right-of-use assets amounted to (0 {7 A 4 B B 3T B 49382,0008 7T (=

approximately HK$382,000 (2021: HK$557,000) has
been included in administrative expenses.

T~ — 4 :557,000% 5T) 25 AT
K-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022
T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

HEZ
12.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 12. EE2WM&
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven Bz -_—_Fr_FT-_—F+=_H
(2021: six) directors and the chief executive of the —t+—BlEEFEERAAG LM (ZE
Company for the years ended 31 December 2022 and T—E NN EELRESTHRAER
2021 were as follows: BE M ENBEIT
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE-—_E-_—_Ff+-—A=+—HBLE
E
Retirement
benefits
Other Waived Net other scheme
Fees |emoluments salaries | emoluments contributions Total
BAEA
re Httfe BENGS HttBeFE TEMR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TERT TER TER
(Note d)
(HizEd)
Executive directors BITEE
So David Tat Man BN - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 1,218
Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (Note j) 28 1, (FizEj) - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 1,218
Liu Chun Fai (Chairman) (Note f) Z&#8 (£ /)
ikap) - 627 (100) 527 16 543
Tin Ka Pak, Timmy ARE (THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) (MisEg)

(Note g) - 627 (100) 527 16 543
Sub-total gt - 3,854 (400) 3,454 68 3,522
Independent non-executive BIFHUTES

Directors
Zhang Min wE 180 - - - - 180
Yuen Wai Man (Note i) REG (M) 180 = = = = 180
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SERE 180 - - - - 180
Sub-total et 540 - - - - 540
Total emoluments MemE 540 3,854 (400) 3,454 68 4,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 12. EE2®ME (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEz-_E-_—F+-A=+—H8LE
E
Retirement
benefits
Other Waived Net other scheme
Fees | emoluments salaries | emoluments  contributions Total
RIKER
e Hibie HENG: | EtMeFs FEIfH R @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL FEL TAL AL AL THL
(Note d)
(PH7Ed)
Executive directors BTES
So David Tat Man BREX - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 1,218
Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (Note j) =& fL (Fi3E)) - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 1,218
Sub-total P - 2,600 (200) 2,400 36 2,436
Non-executive director EHTES
Leung Chung Hee (Note h) 2/ (izth) - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BIEHITES
directors
Zhang Min RE 180 - - - - 180
Yuen Wai Man (Note i) ZEG (M) 180 - - - - 180
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey HEE 180 - - - - 180
Sub-total NE 540 - - - - 540
Total emoluments Wemam 540 2,600 (200) 2,400 36 2,976
Notes: Bt s -
(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above (a) XA RRITEE R EE S

were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

(b) The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

(0 No chief executive of the Company was appointed
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

ARRRAEEEHEEMRERZ
AR5 S A5

EXFIRBNIEMITEEZMEH
BEEIARR ZEETMEHRZR
BT e

BE-ZT-—F+=ZRA=+—H1
FE ARAMEZERSITHRA

o

\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ma

BE—
12.

e p—

= ——

F+-A=t—BILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(d)

(e)

(i)

)

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. So David
Tat Man, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith, Mr. Liu Chun
Fai and Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy agreed to waive
their emoluments of HK$100,000, HK$100,000,
HK$100,000 and HK$100,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. So
David Tat Man and Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith agreed
to waive their emoluments of HK$100,000 and
HK$100,000 respectively.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Mr. Liu Chun Fai has been appointed as an executive
director and the chairman of the Board with effect
from 14 February 2022.

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy has been appointed as an
executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 14 February 2022.

Mr. Leung Chung Hee has retired as a non-executive
director of the Company on 10 June 2021.

Ms. Yuen Wai Man has resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 19 July
2023.

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith has resigned as an executive
director of the Company on 13 March 2024.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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EECME (#)

S

(d)

&)

HE-_Z-_—_F+=-—A=+—H1
FE BMREXGTE RELTE B
BERLENBRALEREZMER
% 5 5l 100,000 7T« 100,000/
JT * 100,000/ 7T % 100,000 7T 9 B
{i}o
HE-_Z-_—F+-F=+—HLt
FE BHREXNEERREALER
BEWEREH HIA100,000% T &
100,000/ TTHY B & -

=

RN E - E-_—FER T —F
+ZA=t+—HLEFE RXEEY
BmEEESTNEMAMESESMAR
%l&ﬁMAhzﬁ@&ﬁﬁﬁ%

kv

A

7
ﬁ

BEBRLECDEZEARVITES
rEEEFE BT -_F_A
+HABERK-

AXRMALECEZR T AERRANIT
BEENTHBR B2 -_—_F=
A+ BEEER-

RHBEEER T —EAAT
BREARAFNTES -

REBRITER=-_ZTE-_=ZF+t A
TABBEEARARGBULIERITES -

REAAECR -_ZE_WF=H
T=ZBBEARARNTES



13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included four (2021: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in Note 12. Details of
the remuneration for the years of the remaining one
(2021: three) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

SAMBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE
IuBEEHMES
FAREELUGSFHEESEN
(Z2Z—F MUL)EF RENF
BEE BN 12 - S FEWLIF AR
RAEERZBTRABZH T —%
R FZR)RaTMERZH
BHEE IS T -

2022 2021

—E-C8F —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&xT FE T

Basic salaries and allowances EAXRF & KoER, 780 4,170
Retirement benefits scheme IRORAEFFT &I

contributions 18 48

798 4,218

The number of the highest paid employees who are

FEENATHEANILIFEEHN &K

not the Directors whose remuneration fell within the SEMMES ASKDT :
following bands is as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L 22,000,000/ 7T - 2

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
highest paid individuals (including the Directors) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDEND 14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021:
Nil).

REBEEZT-__FR-_ZT=-_—F+=
A=Z+—BLEFERN AEBTER &
BFMAL (BRES)INEAMS
EAMAREE K AR Z ZE)K
ERBEBEEE -

BE

e ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIHF
ERRE AR NG S SN A =
FEEXMEMKRE . BAREHRLEIE
ERYMEMRE (- —F &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE

15. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

15.

BRER
SNDEE UN LS S B
BT ER LA T B A E

2022 2021
—E== —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss &8
Loss for the year attributable to owners 772 Rl A A (G A F[E
of the Company for the purpose of EBE (MERELRKR
basic and diluted loss per share BEEEmS) (62,359) (51,270)
(Restated)
(ge=5)
Number of shares R&OEE
Weighted average number of ordinary @& 1NiEFHE (LEK
shares for the purpose of basic and EARAREEEIEMS)
diluted loss per share 121,047,026 96,890,573

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share
has been adjusted for the share consolidation on 22
October 2021.

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic
and diluted loss per share in 2021 has been restated
due to the effect of rights issue during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Details of share consolidation and rights issue are set
out in the consolidated financial statements.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options because
the exercise price of those share options was higher
than the average market price for shares for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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AEREANEEEERMN SN E AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. MER=ZE
Computer,
Furniture, network
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and  and related Motor
improvement  machinery  equipment  equipment  vehicles Total
G -H£BR BN BER
HENEEE BERES & HRRE RE H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T THL TEL FEL THTL FEL
cosT RA
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%—-F—H 2,790 - 1,956 40 2,324 7,110
Additions NE - 375 - - 38 413
Disposals e - - - - (980) (980)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) WEMBER A ([i:Ed6) - - (72) (25) - (97)
Exchange adjustment % 2 - 25 1 - 47
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F
+ZA=1+-H 2,811 375 1,909 16 1382 6,493
Written-off i - - - - (272) (272)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries MEGAANENBLR
(Note 45) (Fi3E45) - (375) - - (38) @13)
Exchange adjustment ERAE (61) - (69) - - (130)
At 31 December 2022 W-B-—F
+-A=1+-8H 2,750 - 1,840 16 1,072 5,678
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RiHE
At 1 January 2021 N-E-—4%—-f—H 2,19 - 1,677 37 1,815 5,723
Provided for the year EREE 487 20 232 3 28 990
Eliminated on disposals R ERH - - - - (980) (980)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HENE AR (Fiide) - - (72) (25) - (97)
Exchange adjustment ERAE 21 - 25 1 - 47
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-E
+-A=1+-8H 2,702 20 1,862 16 1,083 5,683
Provided for the year EniE 148 59 8 - 160 375
Eliminated on written-off i 6 lEEE - - - - (272) (272)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries MEGAANENEAR
(Note 45) (PizE45) - (79 - - (1) (90)
Exchange adjustment 5 (100) - (30) - - (130)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z%
+ZA=1-H 2,750 - 1,840 16 960 5,566
CARRYING VALUES FHE
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z%
+ZA=+-H - - - - 112 112
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-E
+-A=1--8 109 355 47 - 299 810
China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. BER%E (&)
The above items of plant and equipment are it s BEREEER REGE
depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the T AFRREAE G EIRA TN E XS
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: o
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the HEMERE REEHNI20%
term of the leases, or (AEE E A%)
20%
Plant and machinery 20% M N 28 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% R EHEBER 20%
equipment H1E
Computer, network and 20% TR B 20%
related equipment el B
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
17.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FRAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWX
HK$'000
THETT
As at 31 December 2022 R=-=E-_=—f+=-HA=+—H
Carrying amount FRmEE -
As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE-_—F+=-HA=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 382

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Depreciation charge

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Depreciation charge
Impairment losses
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

17. EREEE (&)

2022 2021
—E-_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Expense relating to short-term leases %2 HATH & MHREI 5 2 (Fff75)
(Note) 4,027 5,362
Total cash outflow for leases HEMRERLAE 1,426 3,613

Note: Expense relating to short-term leases amounted to
approximately HK$3,825,000 (2021: HK$5,189,000)
and approximately HK$202,000 (2021: approximately
HK$173,000) have been included in cost of sales and

administrative expenses respectively.

For both years, the Company leases various offices
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 1 to 2 years (2021: 1 to 2 years),
but may have termination option as describe below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices, machinery and equipment. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

MizE: WAHEEHEBFX 453,825,000
B (=ZZF = —4:5,189,000/5 7T )
K #9202,0008 70 (=T = — & 4
173,000 70) B 2 Bl 5T ASH & B A
RATERRFAX °

RBEFE AR REEEHEZRE
MAEFUHEGHNNETHRA—
EMF(ZZE—F:—EMF) A
BB T XA a) a2 B =R - HE IR
T E R EE R - NEEHEHR &
AR ARRER  NEEE
REANBERTETES L AIHITAH
faj

RNEB TR AT W R ERERT L
RHAE R-_TE__FR-ZFT-_—F
+-_A=+—B EHAEHAAEEX
FENEHHEERI P RNEHES
HELELL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
17.

18.

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Termination option

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has termination
option in a lease for office. It is used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group's operations.

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain
not to exercise a termination option upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of
the lessee. During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, there is no such triggering event.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of
approximately HK$506,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$382,000. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the rights to sublet the
leased assets. Leased assets may not be sublet to
other person.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
the Group does not lease out any premises under
operating leases.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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17.

18.

FRAEEE (&)

RIibRERE
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H r5H
R AEROFRRER I RER-HT)
AREARENREEEAEBES
FEEANEENELT S

RERXREHRERBEREILEELEBR
RABANEHSEE AR NEBBE
THHERTAAEBRATEITHER
IHEER - BE T —FRF-—
F+ZA=+—HLEFE WREAS
HBEEM-

HERFIRZH
W_ZE-—F+-_fA=+—0 ®RAH
& B {&#9506,0007% 7T - B 6 F {5 A #E
BE#H382,0008 t-HEHELEE
MR L AHEEENERR
SN-HEBEETSOMETHMAL

REWE
BE_ZT-_—Fk=-T-__F+=HA
=t+t—BLEFE AEETEBALLS
HMEE T ERYE-

7K 55 18 30 4 1 e X T B R BEE B
SRR ARMMBENINEEER
EEMNYREERITE-HESNTES
FpEBEEEREFABAREHE
REBEMEMNEEE-



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

REWE (&)

2022 2021
—E-_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
FAIR VALUE ~E
At 1 January Hn—H—H 16,869 18,367
Disposals H&E (5,020) -
Net decrease in fair value RiEmPERNO A TE
recognised in profit or loss AR (1,697) (1,678)
Exchange adjustment PE W% (372) 180
At 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 9,780 16,869
Net unrealised gain (loss) on property st AIBZEHIESE AL
revaluation included in profit or loss Wz (E518) 558 50 (1,678)

The fair value of all of the Group's investment
properties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Valtech Valuation
Advisory Limited (“Valtech”), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group engages a third party qualified
valuer to perform the valuation. The Directors work
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

AEER-_ZTE-_—_FR-_FT-_—%F
TZA=Z+T—HZAREMERF
BIRETRRFEAERRQA ([
B BAEREYTEBENFE LA ER
BEMAEMNEEBHMMETZME
EH

REEHEBEBOEROQFER AEEE
E—R2F =T AERGEMETHE
EFHEAERIIHEMZ A EINR
HEREBENMENERERNE AR
e

BEFEMFABNEETALEZLE) -
EAZEVE 2 A FER  ZFEVER
B RREREIHEBRRRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HIFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. HBEWXE (&)
The following table gives information about how THRIEHEEWER ST - —F 5% —
the fair values of the investment properties as at E——F+-_A=+—HHA¥EZ
31 December 2022 and 2021 are determined (in BT ENER (LHEEGEAELR
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used): B A gE) :
Fair value Fair value as at
hierarchy 31 December 2022  Valuation technique and key inputs
R=B--#+-A=t-H
AHERR NATE REFERTFEGAEE
Investment property located Level 2 HK$9,780,000 Direct comparison approach — Market unit rate, taking
in Hong Kong (2021: HK$9,730,000) into account the recent transaction prices for
similar properties adjusted for nature, location and
conditions of the property
RRBBNRENE EZ 4 9,780,000 EELEE-MHBEMER LEERRNENNEE.
(ZEZ—%:97300007T) MERKRELAENEUNENTHZ5BEE
Investment properties located Level 2 RMBNIil (Equivalent to approximately  Direct comparison approach — Market unit rate, taking
in PRC HK$Nil) (2021: RMB5,830,000 into account the recent transaction prices for
(Equivalent to approximately similar properties adjusted for nature, location and
HK$7,139,000)) conditions of the property
RFE MR EME E_RA ARBZT (HEROTET) EERBE-MBEMUER CERRMENEE .
(ZF=—%: AR¥5830,000r ERMAEHAROFLUNENTBZHES
(FE#47,139,00057T) )
There was no transfer into and out of Level 3 during RERNTEE=HE|ZEAgEL -
the year.
As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties NR-_ZE-—F+_H=+—8 ¥
located in PRC with the fair value of approximately B4 A AR5 .830,0007T (HHE R4
RMB5,830,000 (equivalent to approximately 7,139,000 70 ) iz AR B 9 35 B 1)
HK$7,139,000) have been pledged to a PRC company ZOEBF—RAPEAF ([TEA])
("Entity A") to secure a 3-year loan of RMB13,000,000 LERAESLEBAR AT ([£8L]
(the “Loan B") granted to Gold Wide Holdings Limited REEH T — B2 NG R H = E 8
("Gold Wide"), an associate of the Group. Loan B B AR®13,000,0007T ([EX BJ)
is bearing an interest rate at 8% per annum and BEHBYERNKRAIUAER T - —
repayable on 14 January 2022. The term of pledge is F-—AtmBEs-EHHA AL B8
from the grant date of Loan B to the date falling three }Hm BHE#EFBAZ=F 8 (f:
years after the due date (Note 21). Gold Wide is the ) B 40 B 5E35(b) st it - £ 3L AR
lender of the interest-free unsecured other borrowing 4 H 4 L At fE 3 A R #513,000,0007T
of RMB13,000,000 as detailed in Note 35(b). Zféfjj °
China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. HBEWXE (&)
As at 31 December 2022, the investment property NR-_ZE-——F+-_H=+—H ' A¥F
located in Hong Kong with the fair value of E49/29,780,0008 7T (- —&: 4
approximately HK$9,780,000 (2021: approximately 9,730,000/ JT ) I N B A IR E Y
HK$9,730,000) has been pledged to a financial ZEHBTEEN — XD R iE LUIE
institution in Hong Kong to secure an other borrowing RAAREBEFHOEMERT  EME
granted to the Group. Details of the other borrowing RIS 5 A M sE35(d) ©
are set out in Notes 35(d).
During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain HE - ET-_—F#+-_HA=+—RHItE
investment properties located in PRC were disposed EMRPENETFEEMELET
to two independent third parties at the consideration MABIE=—HF REBESRAARK
of RMB900,000 (equivalent to HK$1,045,000) 900,0007T (*@E?Eé‘1,045,000§9§ﬁ) )54
and RMB3,425,000 (equivalent to HK$3,975,000), A R #3,425,0007T (/& 73,975,000
respectively. L) o
GOODWILL 19. HE
2022 2021
-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TETT
COST 2N
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HE+Z-ZA=+—H 23,594 23,594
IMPAIRMENT wE
At 1 January n—H—8 (23,594) (22,869)
Impairment loss recognised FRHERNBERBE
during the year - (725)
At 31 December W+—A=+—8H (23,594) (23,594)
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H - -

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
19.

ZE-F+_A=t—HIFE

GOODWILL (continued) 19.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwil
has been allocated to the CGU which comprises
one subsidiary in the trading of consumables and
agricultural products. The carrying amounts of

(&)

RETREIR HECLESEEZERS
ELBEM BENFERARRRERE
SH—RERBAR N _TE-_—F &

——F+ZA=1t—H EBoEEZ

= —

goodwill as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 allocated BANMEEEREN T :
to the unit are as follows:
2022 2021
—=E—-= —E-—4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trading of consumables and HEMMEREME
agricultural products
— Inno-Bag Limited (Note) —KERREREEAR AR
(HM$3E) - _
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2021, the W iz -—4F+—-_A=+—81+

recoverable amount of Inno-Bag Limited has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The recoverable amount is based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.89%. The cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2% growth rate. The growth rate is
based on the general inflation rate for the year 2021
and the management of the Group believe that it is
reasonable. Cash flow projections during the budget
period for Inno-Bag Limited is also based on the
budgeted sales and expected gross margins of Inno-
Bag Limited.

Based on the above basis and assumptions,
impairment loss of approximately HK$725,000
and HK$71,000 has been recognised in respect of
the goodwill and rights-of-use assets, respectively
to the extent that the carrying amounts exceeded
their recoverable amounts and the amounts were
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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PR - BASEEEEBHEEEBA
BN EBRRILEBRAANTE
HEHAMBEERETEAIRERKZE
RRJOLEBFRAANBEHER
TEHREF = -

ER M EERBREZ BEOREA
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODW.ILL (continued)
Notes: (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill has been fully impaired
and thus no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
19. EHE(#\)
BeE: (&)
BURE DT
MNo-E——&F+-A=+—0 HEOEXY
E A EEITRRE DT

200 EEEE

Licence
4
HK$'000
FET
COST RS
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and R_B_—F—A—R ZT=-—F
31 December 2022 +-A=+—BR=ZE=-=F
+=A=+—H 758
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ?i:ﬂﬁﬁ
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RZEBE-_—4F—HA—H ZZ&=-—%F
31 December 2022 +_H:+—E&_§::
+=A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_Z_F+=ZA=+—H 758
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+=-_A=+—H 758
The licence represents the licence plate which enable B ERRFTEFGENETR LS

the vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both
PRC and Hong Kong. The licence is renewable every
year at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the licence continuously
and has the ability to do so.

As a result, the licence is considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to generate economic
benefit to the Group indefinitely. The licence will not
be amortised until its useful life is determined to be
finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired.

TREEENER -ZEREFAE
H ERBE-BEFTRE AKE KR
BEMZER WAL MULITE

At AEEEEERRAZERASR
ERBNERBE ARBEFEBER
H bt /5 7K 52 [ B A AP NI 25 R R AR S

TeEmREH BEEEERBREERE
BR = MR - ﬁﬁﬂﬁti&i BEPRK
B R BE AL (B A ST L T TRVERI A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
20.

21.

Ch
An

E__F+_A=1+—BILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued) 200 B|ELEE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the REE-_ZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIt
Directors conducted a review of the carrying amount FE EEHZEBRNEREET TS
of the licence and appointed an independent & WEEB BEGHER AR (=
professional valuer, Valtech (2021: Valtech), to assist T - —F HRTH) B EEEERE
them to determine the recoverable amount of the FRAT Bl &5 - Z IR Ay AT YL Bl & 58 )
licence. The recoverable amount of the licence has BEEATFTEREEKRAE T - EEH
been determined based on its fair value less cost to HEMBZEE UWATEFERE
disposal. The Directors work closely with the valuer e EE R LA S
to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs for fair value measurement.
In estimating the fair value of the licence, the highest a2 B AL EE 2R R
and best use of the licence is to resale it. SheaEREAEBHTINEE
Direct sales comparison approach under market MEFBE NTHEEHEELEFZEAR
approach has been used to estimate the fair [HEZ B AFEE - ZERA-Z
value of the licence. The estimated fair value less o F+ - A=+—BMHEiRAFEE
cost of disposal of the licence as at 31 December W E AL A1,130,0008 L (==
2022 is approximated to HK$1,130,000 (2021: ——%:1,509,000/87T) °
HK$1,509,000).
Since the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying AR E S 2BREERE WRE
amount, no impairment loss on the licence was P E - —FE-_E-_—F+ A
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2022 S+ —HILEFETEBRZERBOR
and 2021. EEE-
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBERTZHER
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cost of unlisted investments in OB R R 2 I E IR E AR
associates 29,528 69,212
Share of post-acquisition loss and SR EREE R
other comprehensive expense H2HAX (3,098) (22,055)
26,430 47,157
Less: Accumulated impairment R REHRE (2,619) (3,474)
23,811 43,683
Reclassification as assets classified ERDBERE S ERGIELE
as held for sale (Note 31) W& E (M15E31) - (13,546)
23,811 30,137
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
S ——

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had

interests in the following associates:

S A ER e

21. E@Hﬁ“—"‘*ﬁﬁt%é(%)
KRB _FK =
z+—5'$%l%Tﬂhﬁﬂﬂ$%

——%+=A

B
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
establishment/ ~ Class of interests or participating ~ Proportion of voting
Name of entity Form of Entity  operation shares held shares held by the Group power held Principal activity
AL/ R/ rEEfGEERERR
BRAH BREEA fEny iRt ER  HSERG 2L iR RELA IEER
2022 201 2022 2021
—E-CF -3 ZBICZE -Z--£
Direct associates
ERBENR
FDC Limited (Note a) Limited liability ~ Samoa Ordinary shares 49% 49% 49% 49%  Inactive
FDC Limited ( Hi#a) BRAR BED LRR EXH
Zhonghe Huaxia (Beijing) Investment  Limited liability ~ PRC Paid up capital - 40% - 40%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.*" (“Beijing HX")
(Note b)
AEE(IR)REFAERAT BRAA HE HRBAR RERR
([EREE]) (Hzb)
Gold Wide Holdings Limited Limited liability ~ HK Ordinary shares 25% 25% 25% 25%  Investment holding
("Gold Wide")
SUEEERAR ([83L]) ERAF B LER REZR
Indirect associates
HEBELNT
Zhonghe Xinnong (Beijing) Investment  Limited liability ~ PRC Paid up capital - 2% - 22%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** ("Beijing XN") (Note b)
HAFE (LR REBRAT ARRA HE HRRA RERR
(MEREFE]) (Hith)
Fuyu Zhonghe Xinnong Market Real  Limited liability ~ PRC Paid up capital - 2% - 22%  Properties development
Estate Co., Ltd. ** ("Fuyu”) (Note b)
FAMAMETSERARAR  ARAA HE HRRA mERE

(T#&]) (HEb)
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Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3}

207



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
* English name for identification only

Sino-foreign joint venture

* Wholly domestic owned enterprise
Notes
(a) FDC Limited was inactive since its incorporation, the

carrying amount attributable to the Group is not

significant.

(b) At 31 December 2021, Konson Global Investments
Limited (“Konson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
the “Konson Group”) was expected to be sold within
twelve months at the end of the reporting period,
therefore, assets and liabilities of the Konson Group
including the interest in Beijing HX and its subsidiaries
(the "Beijing HX Group”) was reclassified as assets

classified as held for sales (Note 31).

As detailed in Note 46(a)(ii), the disposal of Konson was
completed on 22 April 2022. Accordingly, the Beijing
HX Group ceased to be associates of the Group since

22 April 2022.
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B A TREHRER
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FDC Limited & & ffff A 37 LA 2R 37 48 2%
%omALEEGERAELTELR.
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@) BB BARFEHENE
2 (PFE31) »
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of material

associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s material associates is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents

amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using

21.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_T_—_F+_A=1+—HILFE
REE QT zEm (&)
FTEBRELNRA U BENBE

AEESTER SRR ZHBHERY
ZH N T T % E R 2 15
REBVHERELERENEE QA
TSR R

REEGANBRR FEESHED

the equity method in these consolidated financial B fE AREESIA T BR
statements.
2021*
;_; _QE*
HK$'000
FAETT
Beijing HX Group TREFEE
Current assets REEE 329,019
Non-current assets IEREEE 57
Current liabilities mEaE (259,145)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3,223)
Net assets BEFE 66,708
2021+
TR
HK$'000
FETT
Revenue I %5 -
Loss and total comprehensive expense AN E B R N 2 HFH X 2%
for the year (2,320)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of material

associates (continued)

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in

associates are set out below:

21.

REE QT zEm (&)
FTEBEQNRAUBENRE (HF)

X275 ﬁ?fﬂ‘”ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁi#ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂ
29D REEZ SRS T

2021*
B —F~
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets of the Beijing HX Group IEREESEENEEFE 66,708
Non-controlling interests of Beijing EREENBEARH
HX's subsidiaries FE1E IR AR R A = (32,844)
33,864
Proportion of the Group’s 40% REERIEREERE 240%
ownership interest in Beijing P e L 1
HX Group 13,546
Goodwill RS 855
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRIEREESEZ
interest in Beijing HX Group = REE 14,401
Less: Accumulated impairment B BETEE (855)
Carrying amount of the Group'’s AEBRNIEREESEZ
interest in Beijing HX Group EmREE 13,546
* From 1 January 2021 to 30 December 2021 (date of * —E-—F-A-HEZE=-—F%
reclassification as assets classified as held for sale) T+ A=FTR(EFHDEAIEA
BIEHEMEEMNAR)
2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Gold Wide £3h
Current assets mENE E 13,827 15,572
Non-current assets IERBEE 84,653 125,322
Current liabilities iER=NE (3.238) (20,348)
Net assets BERE 95,242 120,546

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of material
associates (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the current
liabilities is the Loan B (as defined in Note 18) of
RMB13,000,000, which is bearing an interest rate
of 8% per annum, secured by the investment
properties of the Group located in PRC with the fair
value of approximately RMB5,830,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,139,000) (Note 18) and financial
guarantee provided by the Group (Note 38), and
repayable on 14 January 2022. Since Gold Wide has
breached the loan covenants, the Loan B became
repayable on demand and was therefore classified as
current liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, as the
Loan B was overdue, Entity A take legal action against
Gold Wide to recover the outstanding principal and
interest payables for Loan B. Pursuant to the Civil
Mediation Document issued by Intermediate People’s
Court of Changsha City dated 21 September 2022,
Gold Wide should repay RMB13,200,000 to Entity
A through the capital reduction in Entity A, settle
RMB730,000 in cash before 19 October 2022 and
the remaining balances of RMB2,190,000 should
be repaid before 31 December 2023. As at 31
December 2022, the outstanding balance of Loan B
of RMB2,190,000 was recorded as current liabilities in
Gold Wide's statement of financial position.

21.

REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
REE AT 2= (&)
FEBREQARAZHMBERBE (F)

R-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H EFB
(F % RK318) AR 13,000,000
FARBAE KRFE8%ITE -BHA
FEH A RES,830,0007T (HHE RH
7,139,000/ L) (FI5E18) 2 i A &
WASBEREMERAESERH 2B
BER(MHE38)ERHE BAR=-Z
T F—AtHBEE-ARSLEE
REZRHE EXRBRABIREREE
HitnEarEaE-.

BEE-_—_F+-A=+—HLILHF
E -AREMRBE B BEBAHHE S
ShEREX A 2 77 ) LA Y [ 5k B FRBFE -
MEREEASRFE - RERDT
RRAREREMHABRA T _—
FLAZT+—BHNREAHE ©5A
[ERBAEBAREMNERAEEARE
13,200,000 R—ZE_—_F+A+Hh
HAIAE € 4& 8 AR®730,0007T &
T g4 &5 #2 A R#2,190,000C ERY — &
Z=EF+ZA=1+—HABE -R=ZF
TZHF+ZR=+—H EXBEKE
2 e AR ¥52,190,0007T 74 & 54 B 75
RAKRPARIEREB BE-

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&xT FHETT

Revenue W =5 - -
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive — ZANE[E (E518) F5E &

income for the year 2HUKEAREE (25,304) 3,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma
For the
HEZ
21.

22.

Ch
An

B R M &

year ended 31 December 2022

T —F+-A=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of material
associates (continued)

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in
associates are set out below:

21.

REE QT zEm (&)

FTEBEQNRAUBENRE (HF)

L OB A R] 2 i 2 O BR (B RO B

BEMBEE RN T

2022 2021

—E2-— —ET-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Net assets of the Gold Wide M EEFE 95,242 120,546
Proportion of the Group’s 25% REBREAZ25% A

ownership interest in Gold Wide REZR LI 23,811 30,137

Goodwill & 2,619 2,619
Carrying amount of the Group's REEREAZ EHREE

interest in Gold Wide 26,430 32,756

Less: Accumulated impairment B RETRVE (2,619) (2,619)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERE A2 EHREE

interest in Gold Wide 23,811 30,137

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAFEFAHMEZEWENRE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =IH
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT FET
Unlisted investments: FELETRE:
Equity securities IR 3 5 2,865 7,261

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
RMB2,540,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,865,000) (2021: RMB5,930,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,261,000)) represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by one private
entity incorporated in the PRC.

ina Eco-Farming Limited FE|E¥ L &EFR AT
nual Report 2022 =& = = F F #f

XA ANREE2 540,000 (HE R

2,865,000 7T )

— = —
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—F AR

5,930,000t (18 & M #7,261,000/%
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAFENFAEMCEEWSNE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) BTH(E)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the unlisted RZE_—_FR_ZET-_—F+=A
equity securities were pledged to Entity A (as =+—B FLTRABECDEETE
defined in Note 18) as to secure a 3-year loan of A (TERBWE18) " EARA—FRAA
RMB4,550,000 (“Loan A") granted to a private NE ([BHANEBEF S A8 =4FK
company (“Lender A"). Loan A is bearing an interest ANE 4,550,000t EF ([ERAD)
rate at 8% per annum and repayable on 14 January BER ERANENEK AE8%  BER
2022. The term of pledge is from the grant date —E-_F—-At+NHEE-BHEEA
of Loan A to the date falling three years after the BEESART AHREEEEAK=-FY
repayment date. Lender A is an independent third H o E\ﬁm%ﬁ***—ﬁ BErAE®E
party and is also the lender of the interest-free 4 4K HR L {2 3 A R #4,550,0007T B
unsecured other borrowing of RMB4,550,000 as B 15 R M EE35(@) °
detailed in Note 35(a).
The above investments are not held for trading, BN IEAEEEMmMEE MasE
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes. HEBBEYNmMEAE EERRIBEZE
The Directors have elected to designate these Iﬂ%*%}ﬁ@ﬁ@‘gﬁ-]\;ﬁ\mﬁﬁqﬁz
instruments at FVTOCI as they believe that recognised THAERERAEZERENANFEER
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair Tg SHEZNEHESINFEANEEH
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with ERIANEBEEXERERERAER
the Group's strategy of holding these investments for EHAMERE RS-
long-term purposes and realising their performance
potential in the long run.
DEPOSITS PAID 23. 2%
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T
Deposits paid for: TN BFEZNIRE
— acquisition of further equity interest  — U & — &1 BfJ |8 2 R] A BE S
in a subsidiary (Note a) Mt (BfifsTa) 45,754 44,240
— acquisition of properties (Note b) — BB (MiEb) 64,754 70,287
Less: Accumulated impairment B BRETRVE (12,112) (5,531)
98,396 108,996
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
23.

B

= ——

F+-A=t—BILFE

DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

(a)

China Eco-

Deposit paid for additional acquisition of
further equity interests in a subsidiary

On 17 July 2017, Skyline Top Limited ("Skyline
Top"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Yardley Wealth Management
Limited (“Yardley”), the non-controlling
shareholder of Delightful Hope Limited
("Delightful Hope"”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Yardley had
agreed to sell and Skyline Top had agreed to
purchase 50 ordinary shares in Delightful Hope,
representing 50% of the entire issued share
capital of Delightful Hope, at a consideration
of HK$55,000,000 (the “DHL Acquisition”).
Upon the completion of the DHL Acquisition,
Delightful Hope will be wholly-owned by
Skyline Top and will become an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December
2018, Skyline Top and Yardley entered a
supplementary agreement pursuant to which
the balance payment of the DHL Acquisition
will accrued interest at 8% per annum. As at
31 December 2018, a non-refundable deposit
of approximately HK$35,250,000 has been
paid to Yardley.

Farming Limited REIBE+EFRA A

Annual Report 2022 =& = —FF #f
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

(a)

Deposit paid for additional acquisition

of further equity interests in a subsidiary
(continued)

On 19 March 2019, Skyline Top and Yardley
entered into another supplemental agreement,
pursuant to which the deadline of the
completion of the DHL Acquisition has been
extended from 17 January 2019 to 31 March
2020 and Skyline Top shall pay interest to
Yardley at 8% per annum on the remaining
balance payment during the period from 18
January 2018 to the date of completion.

Yardley has agreed and has no right to share
the result of Delightful Hope and its subsidiary
during the transitional period (i.e. from 1
January 2019 to the date of completion).

On 31 March 2020, Skyline Top and Yardley
entered into another supplemental agreement,
pursuant to which the deadline of the
completion of the DHL Acquisition has been
further extended from 31 March 2020 to 30
September 2020.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated
deposits of approximately HK$45,754,000
(2021: HK$44,240,000) has been paid to
Yardley and the DHL Acquisition is yet to be
completed.

The details of the DHL Acquisition were
disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 July 2017, 31 July 2017, 17
January 2018, 14 January 2019 and 31 March
2020, respectively.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

23. Bff#&e (&)
(a) FEIMKE—RMHEATHE
IREFTSIRE (1)

RZE—AF=ZA+hB KB
= B R RT3 5 — 1D e i ek
B TR R UE B 1R 2 HARR

EEBEZE-NF—-—A+tHIE
§_2_2¢7ﬂ7+*5 53
9& T\I_J//\ )\ﬁi )Ej—i—/\
Eiinﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁtﬁlﬁFﬁﬁkﬁ%T
BREE S A M A A AILE - A
R 58% o

BN BERE(B=F—NF
— A EI%?EEZEIEH)EHMH
EBESGHMLENERRD
ESR

N_ZE_EF=ZA=+—H K
mlﬂ/\/ﬁlfuu]— _Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%
B B EEETAY
HIFRHAEE T _FF=A
=t RE—¥EE_ZT_FT
FHRA=+H-

RZEBE-_—_F+=-A=+—
B BRI NEZeEHL
45,754,000 0 (ZE = —4F:
44,240,000 70) B &m B E S
TA 1 A& FEAK ©

FRKBEBEZFBERENARA
FEHA-_Z—tELtAt++t
B —Z—+tF+tA=+—8"
—E-NF—HA+ttH =%
—NE-—ATHBRE=ZZ=F
F=ZA=+—Bz2Rff-

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3}

215



216

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
FH_A=+—HILFE
DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

)
HZEZ

—_———

23.

e p—

(b)

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties

0,

Deposit paid by Chengwang
Investment Consulting (Shenzshen)
Co., Ltd.* (“Chengwang Investment”)
for acquisition of a property located
in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December
2019, Chengwang Investment, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, had
agreed to purchase and a debtor of the
Group had agreed to sell a property
located in the PRC at a consideration of
RMB13,000,000. The consideration has
been fully paid during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Due to the prolonged completion
of the acquisition, the Directors
conducted a review of the fair value
less cost of disposal of the property
as at 31 December 2021 and 2022
and appointed an independent
professional valuer, Valtech, to assist
them to determine the fair value of the
property. Since the fair value less cost of
disposal of the property exceeded the
carrying amount of the deposits paid,
no impairment loss on the deposit paid
was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, as the
legal title of the property has not
been transferred to the Group,
RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,665,000)
(2021: RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,918,000)) has
been recognised as deposit paid.

China Eco-Farming lelted TEEELERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(continued)

(i)

Deposit paid by China AF Finance
Limited (“CAFFL”) for acquisition of
properties located in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December
2020, CAFFL agreed to purchase and
three loan debtors of CAFFL has agreed
to transfer 133 properties located in
the PRC as to settled the loan and
interest receivables due from those
three loan debtors, which amounted
to approximately RMB15,455,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$17,388,000). As at the date of
settlement, the legal title of those
properties have not been transferred to
the Group and was held by the property
developer, Fuyu, and the fair value of
those properties was approximately
to RMB18,976,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,350,000). Thus, a
gain on settlement of loan and interest
receivables of RMB3,521,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,962,000) was
recognised upon the settlement.

Due to the prolonged completion
of the acquisition, the Directors
conducted a review of the fair value
less cost of disposal of the properties
as at 31 December 2021 and 2022
and appointed an independent
professional valuer, Valtech, to assist
them to determine the fair value of
the properties. Since the fair value less
cost of disposal of the properties as at
31 December 2022 was approximately
to RMB18,168,000 (equivalent to
HK$20,496,000) (2021: RMB18,976,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$23,237,000)), an impairment loss
on the deposits paid of RMB808,000
(equivalent to HK$938,000) (2021: no
impairment loss) was recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2022.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

23. Bff#&e (&)
(b) RUBYEZFZES (H)

(ii)

HEEIEHBEERL A
([FEEEMZ]) K

B R A E B3 < 1

Eifff
:+ Eﬁi&i FEE
EMHRAEHERPEE
EUBHN=2EREBA
ﬂ,w\@}uﬁuﬁf‘qﬂlﬁ’ﬂ%
BEWME - UEEREIK =%
EREBANERE K
KRB ¢BOABARE
15,455,0007T (/8 & R 49
17,388,000/ 70) - INEEE
HE ZEWENETE
RERAREE T ASEIL AR
MEREHERFB A
ZEMENRFELHAEA
R #18,976,0007C (1B &
1‘56’321 ,350,0007% 1) ° &
b EERKEREFE
Eﬁuﬂzﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%,sm,ooo
7T (#8872 #93,962,00078
L) EREERER

ERKESKERK =
ERFTE—FRE

::¢+:HE+*5
HUWENQAFECREE

MA)EFTTEE W E
B EEMHEM SR
fETMM&‘zE#E%¥Eﬁ
NEBE-BHRARZ
F+-_A=+—HHYWE
BAFE OB ERAE)
J]Z%AE?HMS 168,000
7t (48 & 17220,496,000/%
L) (ZEZ—F: AR
#18,976,000 T (HHE R
#4923,237,0008 L) ) °
WHE—_ZT-_—_F+=
A=+—BLFE®ER
ENZEeREREEA
R #3808,0007t (HHE R
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FEBREBRE) -

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
23.

B

= ——

F+-A=t—BILFE

DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(continued)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

Deposit paid by China AF Finance
Limited (“CAFFL”) for acquisition

of properties located in the PRC
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, as those
properties are still under construction
and the legal title of those properties
have not yet been transferred to the
Group, the amount paid was classified
as deposit paid and the carrying amount
of deposit paid was approximated
to RMB18,168,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$20,496,000)
(2021: RMB18,976,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,237,000)).

Deposit paid by Shenzhen Shengshi
Fugiang Technology Co., Ltd.*
(“Shengshi Fugiang”) for acquisition
of properties located in the PRC
During the year ended 31 December
2020, Shengshi Fugiang, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company,
agreed to purchase and Fuyu has
agreed to transfer a property located
in the PRC as to settle the loan and
interest receivables due from Fuyu,
which amounted to approximately
RMB3,307,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,720,000). As
at the date of settlement, the legal
title of this property have not been
transferred to the Group and the fair
value of the property was approximately
to RMB3,188,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,800,000). Thus,
a loss on settlement of loans to
associates of RMB119,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$133,000) was
recognised upon the settlement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(continued)

(iii)

Deposit paid by Shenzhen Shengshi
Fuqgiang Technology Co., Ltd.*
(“Shengshi Fugiang”) for acquisition
of properties located in the PRC
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December
2021, Shengshi Fugiang agreed to
further purchase and Fuyu has agreed
to transfer 18 properties and 23 car
parking spaces located in the PRC as to
settled the loan and interest receivables
due from Fuyu, which amounted
to approximately RMB27,465,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$33,107,000). As at the date of
settlement, the legal title of those
properties have not been transferred
to the Group and the fair value of the
those properties was approximately
to RMB22,237,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$26,804,000).
Thus, a loss on settlement of loans to
associates of RMB5,228,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,303,000) was
recognised upon the settlement.

Due to the prolonged completion of
the acquisition, the Directors conducted
a review of the fair value of the
properties as at 31 December 2021 and
2022 and appointed an independent
professional valuer, Valtech, to assist
them to determine the fair value of
the properties. Since the aggregated
fair value less cost to disposal of the
properties as at 31 December 2022
was approximated to RMB15,496,000
(equivalent to HK$17,481,000)
(2021: RMB20,908,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$25,601,000)),
an impairment loss on deposits paid
of RMB5,412,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,281,000) (2021: RMB4,517,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$5,445,000)) was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

T _Ft+-A=1+—HULFE

23. Bff#&e (&)
(b) MUWBWEIFNzEE (E)

(iii)
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EEEBEABEBET A
EB BEZEVMENRF
B4 A AR%22,237,000
7T (FH & R 426,804,000
;%7%) Eit - S B
NEMEHEROWEBAR
#5,228,0007T (FH&E A4
6,303,000 L) ERNEE
BERER o

ARWETHER K-
EER_ZTE-_—FR=
E-_—_F+-_A=+—
HEWENRFEET
TEE WEIBIEE
iy (B AD 5 72 5714 #0 Bh 1
EETETYWENRTE-
HRZZZE-_—_F+=A
=+ —HMENHQF
B ORHEEKA)BE
45 AR ¥15,496,000
7T (# & 17,481,000
T) (ZEZ—F: AR
#20,908,0007T (& R
4925,601,000/8 7T) ) »
WEEz—_ZT - —F+=
BF=Z+—BILFE®ER
ENEENRERSEAR
AR #5,412,0007T (HE
76,281,000 7T) (=
——%: AR%4,517,000
7t (A8 & 7 495,445,000/
JL) ) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

23. DEPOSITS PAID (continued) 23. EffEe (#)
(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of properties (b) RMUBYWEXXNZ2ESL (E)
(continued)
(iii)  Deposit paid by Shenzhen Shengshi Giii) FHFEMEEREER
Fugiang Technology Co., Ltd.* RE([BHERE])EHK
(“Shengshi Fuqgiang”) for acquisition B (VR B B9 ) 3 B 3% 1
of properties located in the PRC HEZ (&
(continued)
As those properties are still under ARZEYEMNMENER
construction and the legal title of ZHEZEMENET
the properties have not yet been EERMAEETAER
transferred to the Group, the amount ENEEIERENIZ
paid was classified as deposit paid and & BEfikeMERE
the carrying amount of deposit paid #) /& N R #15,496,0007T
was approximated to RMB15,496,000 (FEE R 417,481,000/
(equivalent to approximately T) (ZDE=-—F: AR
HK$17,481,000) (2021: RMB20,908,000 #20,908,0007T (#H & 7
(equivalent to approximately #925,601,0007T) ) °
HK$25,601,000)).
* English name for identification only * WX ETEEREF
24. INVENTORIES 2. =FE
2022 2021
—E-C —E=-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials and consumables MR K H RS = 1,378
Work in progress £ 85 = 530
Finished goods SR mm = 808
- 2,716

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEXE&ER DT
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
25. BEWRF R H f fE W = IE

2022 2021

—E- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Trade receivables arise from contracts BFAKELNE 5 EWFIE

with customers (Note a) (F¥zEa) 19,190 24,539
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEREE (13,312) (1,474)
5,878 23,065

Prepayments to suppliers (Note b) )4 FE R Y TE S B (P 3ED ) 4,166 1,676
Deposits bk 40 1,680
Other receivables (Note ¢) EAth FE UG I8 (B 5Ec) 24,694 21,545
24,734 23,225
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (14,918) (8,825)
9,816 14,400

19,860 39,141

Notes:

(a) As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts (@)
with customers amounted to HK$11,321,000.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on

the invoice dates:

RZE-_—F—F—H BF&Y
EERE 5 EWRIEA1,321,000
BIT e

UTEERNEZAHEINEHE
WHRBEHREEBBERENREKD
#r :

2022 2021

—E_C T —4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT AT

0 to 30 days 0%30H 5,298 3,847
31 to 90 days 31290H 563 15,429
Over 90 days @90 H 17 3,789
5,878 23,065

China Eco-Farm

ing Limited FEIBREX4EEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
T+ A=+—RHIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

e

B=
25.

(@

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's
trade receivables balance were debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,140,000 (2021: HK$20,275,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2022, HK$17,000 (2021: HK$2,550,000)
outstanding trade receivable has been past due
90 days or more and are not considered as default
by considering the ongoing business relationship,
repayment history and expected future settlement.

The amount represents the prepayments for
purchasing of seeds during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: purchasing of frozen foods
and gaming related products).

Other receivables mainly comprise the followings:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has loaned to two individuals
with an aggregated principal amount of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,919,000). The loans are unsecured
and bear interest rate of 8% per annum with
a term of two years.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB10,353,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,677,000) and an aggregated
allowance for credit losses amounted to
RMB2,259,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,766,000) has been made.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB 10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,281,000) has been past due 90 days
or more at the reporting date. The Directors
consider the credit risks of the balances
have increased and are considered as credit-
impaired, and an aggregated allowance for
credit losses amounted to approximately
RMB6,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,994,000) has been made.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
Annual Report 2022 =& = —FF #f

25.

EUWERR R HtEWRIE (&)
BisE: (48)
@) (#%&)

R-ZB-—_F€+-_A=+—8 &K
T 42 {8 #93,140,0008 T (— & — —
120,275 ooo/%x)zﬁuﬁzﬁ%m
FFAREE B S ERRIBLEE
ZIERE R AR EERE - 17\
TZF+=ZAR=+—H" 17,000
B (=& = —4%:2,550,000/8 7T)
i8] A 1B 42 FE IR BR 3 E 8 BA90K =k A
L AERINSEEEBBER ENG
PR NMTEEIRRGER  WERBEN -

ZREBEEEBEE T+ A
=S+t BLEFEEERF(ZZ
Z—F BELRRMNMIEEAAA
Efm) MTERIE

Hi fEFTA T ZEEATEIE
@) RBEE-_ZT_ZF+_-A
=t—BLEFEARN AKH

EEmZEARMAS @
B AR%10,000,0007T (17
&7 4911,919,000 ) & &

RoRFHADBRAR &
SN FIE 8 BRA
L

WoB-—F+=A=t—

H- Eii—r,%fmmiﬂazaﬁ
CRMBBEHAARE
10,353,0007C (HE R4
12,677,000 70) I E F
LTEEEBRRBREREAR
#62,259,0007C (HHE R4
2,766,000/ 7T ) °

RZEZZF+ZA=+—
H ZSEBERMAEER
S hFEBBEHOARARYE
10,000,000 T (HE R4
11,281,000 70 ) i ¥R &5 H 51
EHEHORH N L-EER
BREGHEERRE AAME
MEERABEERE LB
ELEEBEREBERBHA
R #6,200,0007T (FE R4
6,994,000/ 7T ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(o) (continued)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has loaned to five individuals
with an aggregated principal amount of
RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,840,000). The loans are unsecured and
bear interest rates of 12% per annum with a
term of six months.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB4,948,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,059,000) has been past due 90 days
or more at the reporting date. The Directors
consider the credit risks of the balances have
increased significantly and are considered
as credit-impaired, and accordingly full
impairment of the amount of approximately
RMB4,948,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,059,000) has been made.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB3,910,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,411,000) has been past due 90 days
or more at the reporting date. The Directors
consider the credit risks of the balances
are considered as credit-impaired, and an
aggregated allowance for credit losses
amounted to approximately RMB2,424,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,735,000)
has been made.

25. FEWRMRKHAMmEWRRIE (E)
MisE: (4&)
(0 (%)

(ii) HEz_Z2-_Z2F+=-A
—+—HLEFE AEEE
MARATIEHASRBES
AR #4,900,0007T 8 B &
(102 7 495,840,000 7T ) °
EHRBERUEER EFF
E12%5T B - iR A/NEA -

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
H ZSEEFHNREER
R BBENBARE
4,948,000 (HE R L
6,059,000/ L) M & A
B @ EI90H sk A F-E =
REEHNEERRKR KR
EmEkEEAEEERER
Eit - BEFRABEOAR
#4,948,0007T (HE K4

6,059,000/ 7T ) °

RZEZ=—F+=-A=+—
B ZSERMNKREER
CRMEBEHNAARE
3,910,000 (HEE R H
4,411,000/ 7T) A ¥R & A &
B HOKRE N LE-EER
BREBHEERBRER ARG
BERE WEELEEEIE
B BB AREE2,424,000
7T (& 492,735,000/

JT)°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
T+ A=+—RHIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

e

B=
25.

()

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2022, RMB1,125,000
(equivalents to HK$1,269,000) (2021: Nil)
represented the amount due from a director,
Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy and the maximum
outstanding amount was HK$1,269,000
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
The amount was non-trade in nature,
unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. Subsequent to the
reporting period, the amount has been fully
settled in year 2024.

As at 31 December 2022, RMB3,936,000
(equivalent to HK$4,440,000) (2021: Nil)
represented a loan to a former associate,
Beijing HX, which has been reclassified from
loans to associates to other receivables when
Beijing HX was no longer an associate of the
Group, upon the disposal of subsidiaries, i.e.
the Konson Group, (Notes 27 and 46 (a)(ii))
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
The amount was unsecured, interest bearing
at a fixed rate of 12% per annum and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of the loan
amounted to approximately RMB3,936,000
(equivalents to approximately HK$4,440,000)
and an aggregated allowance for credit losses
amounted to RMB3,936,000 (equivalents
to approximately HK$4,440,000) has been
made.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 42(b).
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H: AR#1,125,0007T (18
% 7W1,269,0008 L) (=
T — i'ﬁ)ﬁruﬁz%$
HRM\LERE HE
—ZF+= H*+*E¢
FE BRHEAEERES
1,269,000/ JT ° 5% 7 B & IE
EoME mEHR RERA
REREE -NMEHE Z

EEF—iiﬂixmg

4

n:lEr°
() R-Fo-FF-A=t-—
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BIEFELENE QR (A
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MEEMEWRFE L8
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12%:H 8 BAREREE-

RZEZZF+ZA=+—
H BRAEER: AL
L B AR ME3,936,000T
(¥E R #94,440,00058 7T )
WEELREEEBERELRSE
AR #3,936,0007T (% 7
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B 8 B WU 3R N AL A e MR
HEVEH BB PO B 3E42(b) ©

X IR RE RF



25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group’s trade and other receivables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

25. FEWARFR H M EWRE ()

AEEREBEEEERDETE LI
B & S 5B B 8 WUBR 3R N H At JE UK

currencies of the relevant group entities are set as BESWOT
below:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHE T
Amounts denominated in: AT B8 ERFIA -
RMB AR 7,808 8,462
United States Dollar ("USD") E7(I%EmT]) 3,701 13,650
LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 26. EWEREAE
2022 2021
=== —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE&xT FHEIT
Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables & 2 JE Uk & 7 & A &
— Secured — A 7,238 7,278
— Unsecured — 4 4K 1,277 1,377
8,515 8,655
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (7.,187) (6,720)
1,328 1,935
Analysed as: PRI
Current asset (within one year) REEE (—FR) 1,328 1,935
As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s RZZE__F+-_A=+—H &55t4

loan and interest receivables balance are debtors
with aggregate gross amount of approximately
HK$8,515,000 (2021: HK$6,163,000) which has
been past due 90 days or more at the reporting date
and considered as credit-impaired. Among those past
due more than 90 days, the Directors consider the
credit risks of the overdue balance of approximately
HK$2,219,000 (2021: HK$6,163,000) have increased
significantly and are considered as credit-impaired.

$ 58 /5498,515,0008 7L (— T~ —4F:
6,163,000 70 ) B FE W BR SRET AR & B
B W E R R T B A iR R MR R
HEBHDAHO0RKIA FEWHE A
EERE TZEFE ORI L2 FIE
FEERE BB RK2,219,000%
T (—ZF - —%:6,163,0008 1) Z 1=
ERBCBEEEMIHERAEERE:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—
26.

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE
LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. BUWERKFE (&)
Details of impairment assessment of loan and interest FEWERREAERETEEFEEHRTR
receivables are set out in Note 42(b). BT 42(b) o
The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate loan receivables == @ E B fE Uk & = AT E B B I &
to interest rate risks and their contractual maturity SR EAS AR T
dates are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—14F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Fixed-rate loan receivables: EEEWE N :

Within 1 year or repayable on demand —F R /BJE B REE 1,328 1,935
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal AREEBRKEFTNERMNE (EZRR
to contractual interest rates) on the Group's loan AHFNR) ZHEMOT
receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-_= —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Effective interest rate: BERA =

Fixed-rate loan receivables EBREKE R 8% - 36% 8% — 36%
The secured loan and interest receivables are secured EHERFREKEZLEFN EHERABNIE
by the unlisted shares of the borrowers. As at 31 FHRMDIERER R —_F+=
December 2022, the fair value of collaterals held by B=+—8B ZAEESEAENIEHELAF
the Group is minimal (2021: minimal). BEK(ZE-—F HH) -

All loan and interest receivables are dominated in FrAEEWEZEF B AETEE-
HKS$.
Loan and interest receivables, after ECL comprise: FEWEZEAMNE (HIBRTEHEZEEIE®ER)
B
Range of
Type of Securities/ interest rate
Nature of loans ~ Number of loans borrower Term guarantees (per annum) 2022 2021
ERME EREY BRAERN HAR BR/ R FREEE —B-=F _—T_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR
Personal loans 3(2021:3) Individual 1-2 years Share charge 8%-36% 1,328 1,935
(2021:1-2 (2021:
years) 8%-36%)
BAER 3(Z2=—%:3) AA —EEME RIDEA 8%-36%
(Z2-—-%: (Z2=—-%:
—EEREF) 8%-36% )
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES LEEATEHER
2022 2021
—ZE-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHE T
Unsecured fixed-rate loans ERBEEBER - 4,820
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE - (994)
- 3,826

The gross carrying amount of unsecured fixed-rate
loans to associates comprise:

B E R REL R EE T E B ERE
RHAEEE:

Interest
rate 2022 2021
) = —E_C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TAET
Beijing HX IEREE
— Principal of - KA AR
RMB2,400,000 2,400,0007T 12% - 2,939
— Interest —F B = 1,881
- 4,820
Note: BT
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had loaned to Beijing N-E-—F+—-A=+—H AEBEM@IL

HX a principal amount of RMB2,400,000 and the accrued
interest is approximately RMB1,536,000. The amount was
unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 12% per
annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2022, Beijing HX was no longer an
associate of the Group upon the disposal of subsidiaries, i.e.
the Konson Group, (Note 46 (a)(ii)), and accordingly the loan
to Beijing HX was reclassified as other receivables.

Details of impairment assessment of loans to
associates are set out in Note 42(b).

RESHEHNERAN SRR ARE2,400,000
TC FEETF B4 A AR ¥1,536,0007T © #% 3K
BB EER RETEFMNE2% 8 8
AEER(EE-

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=Z+—H #REER
PEMRBAR (BNEESE) (MF46a)i))
BIBALASEBOB A QR Eibmdt 7
EEHNEREN S EAEMERIE-

ML ANRELEER
KT EE42(b) ©

R 2R B RS RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
27.

28.

29.

ZE-F+_A=t—HIFE

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES (continued) 27. MEBEQATELER (&)
The Group’s loans to associates that are denominated N EEER B 2NN EEK
in currency other than the functional currency of the HEZAEHBRBEZS ARIEEHZER
relevant group entities is set out below: Hy T
2022 2021
—E-—F —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTAT
RMB AR - 3,826
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28. EAFEFAER ([EATES
PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVTPL") ABR)zEeREE
2022 2021
—E-_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Listed securities: EHES:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,  — & A FEYIRZ
at fair value REB L ZRARES 3,375 8,780
As at 31 December 2022, the listed equity RZEZ_ZF+=—_ABA=+—8'1
investments listed in Hong Kong with the fair value BEAELETH EWRAE éf (RF1E
of approximately HK$2,161,000 (2021: approximately #2,161,000B 0 —EE - —F: 4

HK$5,922,000) have been pledged to financial
institutions to secure the margin loans (2021:
borrowings and margin loans payables) payables
granted to the Group. Details of borrowing and
margin loans payables are set out in Notes 35(e) and
36 respectively.

For the valuation method of the financial assets at
FVTPL, please refer to Note 42(c).

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, bank
accounts of Shengshi Fugiang have been frozen by
the Shenzhen Qianhai Cooperation Zone People’s
Court as a former lessee of Shengshi Fugiang has filed
a statement of claim for compensation for their loss
against Shengshi Fugiang. As at 31 December 2022
and 2021, those bank accounts remained frozen.
Details of the litigation has been disclosed in Note
32(0).

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank
balance is set out in Note 42(b).
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MBEBEZAFTEFTABRZEREE
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include short term deposits
for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term
cash commitments, which carry interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances
are set out in Note 42(b).

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the
following amounts which are subject to foreign
exchange control regulations or not freely
transferrable:

30.

REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE
RERREEHE
RekReSEERFBARNMERER
RN AGNEBEN HRBEE
HIRITERF R Z BN KGR -

R 1T 45 B8 B0 R 1B T 1 15 B8R B A
42(b) °

A NREFARE RREEFE AXE
SNEE FDERMBRR KA B R

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Amounts denominated in: TS EEEHERKIE -
RMB AR 28 70

Under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 30 December 2021, Skyline Top Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement with an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”), whereby the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to purchase and Skyline Top
Limited has conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Konson at a consideration
of HK$8,000,000 (the "“Disposal”). The assets
attributable to Konson Group, which is expected to
be sold within twelve months, have been classified
as a disposal group held for sale and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

As at 31 December 2021, no consideration has been
received and the disposal has not been completed.

31.

RIEH B R OMNEFZEM) K &
E-EERMNEERMEE) AEEA
BBERBEEEIERT ZRITHA
RELBREMES-

PEARBELHENEE

N_E-_—F+_A=1TH XRFEHE
EEENBARARIRKESBRARHE—
BEIE=F ([ER]) T HERZ
B - BEFEREHEREBE BXES
ERAFRBEBRHRAELERENEH
BEITIA - 1B A&8,000,0008 7T ([H
EFH]) BRESEEGEEETR
+T-EAREE BENEABELNED
HEEE WERGEEMBIRAKEE

251 °

RNZEBE-Z—F+_A=+—8 FE}
BB BHEFHET RTHK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
31.

32.

ZE-F+_A=t—HIFE

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(continued)

The assets of the Konson Group which are classified

as held for sale are as follows:

TEABFEHENEE (F)

FEEESBEAFFELENEENT

2021
—E=-—4F
HK$'000
FAT

Interest in associates
Bank balances and cash

Total assets classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2022, the disposal was completed.
Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are disclosed in
Note 46 (a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITHEBR LIRS

13,546
1

DIEAFIELRENREE 13,547

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H HE=
HeK o HEME A NS RENG
& B s s R BT aE46(a)ii) °

BANERRREESRE

2022 2021

=2 —E - —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAET

Trade payables (Note a) E 5 EMFIE (Msta) 9,853 14,985
Other payables (Notes b, ¢ and d) HEib A FIA (Hitb - ckd) 30,243 27,216
40,096 42,201

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

TRSBRBEMRARBEEZZBHZS
ZESRNFRBAZ R

2022 2021

—E-_= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

0 to 30 days 3,114 3,541
31 to 90 days 2,739 5,252
Over 90 days to 1 year 0RZE—%F 1 6,192
Over 1 year 3,999 -
9,853 14,985
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(0

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranged
from O to 90 days (2021: 0 to 90 days). The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time frame.

As at 31 December 2022, included in other payables
is a professional fee payable of HK$1,565,000 (2021:
HK$614,000), which bears a default interest rate of
2% per month.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a
former lessee of Shengshi Fugiang (the “Plaintiff”)
commenced civil proceedings against Shengshi
Fugiang and filed a statement to the Court to claim
for compensation for their loss of approximately
RMB1,704,000 (equivalent to HK$2,031,000) as
they cannot retrieve the furniture and equipment
from the premises leased to them by Shengshi
Fugiang in which the aforesaid premises has been
sold out during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Shengshi Fugiang has made a counter-claim against
the Plaintiff for outstanding rent and delay in deliver
vacant possession at the sum of approximately
RMB980,000 (equivalent to HK$1,168,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Plaintiff raise the claims to RMB1,964,000
(equivalent to HK$2,405,000). According to
the written judgement of the Court issued on
30 December 2021, Shengshi Fugiang will be
responsible to compensate the Plaintiff for an
amount of approximately RMB594,000 (equivalent to
HK$727,000) for damages and valuation fee and the
Plaintiff will be responsible to compensate Shengshi
Fugiang an amount of approximately RMB596,000
(equivalent to HK$730,000) for claims and legal
expense. The Plaintiff has made an appeal to the
Court on 26 February 2022. On 26 March 2024, the
Court of Appeal has dismissed the appeal. According
to the written judgement by the Court, the
responsibility of both Plaintiff and Shengshi Fugiang
has been upheld.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group made
a provision of RMB1,964,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,216,000) (2021: RMB1,964,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,405,000)) for the
Plaintiff's claim for compensation.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE

32. ENRMEEMENRKE (F)
B & :

(a) BEEmMmZEERNF0E0A (=
T —F:0%90R) -AEERES
@H@%@ﬁﬁ'M%ﬁ%ﬁ%H

RIEREEHANES -

(b) RZEZZ=F+ZA=+—8"
AAEMENREAENSESE
F31,565,0008 L (ZF = — &
614,000 L) BABANEA
2% °

(© HE-FT-_FTF+-_A=+—HIt
iﬁ'@ﬁéﬁm—%ﬁ%EAﬁﬁ
HENHBETERRERERA I
MUEBLIRR T — (0 B RE E*%@
HERMBLRLH ARY,704,0007T (4
& 72,031,000 7T) - E A EEE
MR EREETHRENYERS
FERSZE EF Ll EDRE
EZE_TFEF_A=+—HILE
FEEL -BEERCORAIMNEAS
MEEREHRERERBARLOA
R #980,0007T (#HE 51,168,000/8
TT) °

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—H1t
FE - RERLPRARE,964,000
7T (# & 72,405,0008 7T ) * 1R &
FRR B —F+-_A=+H#
HHEmH R Bt EREEER
EHBERFEERNRSHEHA
R #594,0007t (1 & 74727,000/%8
L) MREBEBERRRREARER
B E Rt S 8 49 A R ¥596,0007T
(& 730,000 7T) s REBE R =
i——i B+ ~BrEyABR L&
MRZEZWMF=A=+8" L£F
&EE@@tﬁ BREBEEROER
FIR MR RS MRt E R E T

R—ZZE—_—F+=-A=+—8"
REERERERFENREIEE
AR #1,964,0007T (HHERL
2,216,000 ) (ZZE=—F: AR
#1,964,0007T (48 & 7 492,405,000
HBIL) ) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

31

32.

33.

Eomo—

T F T A=1+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 32. BENRIRHEMEMSTRIE (&)

Notes: (continued) MisE: (&)

(d) As at 31 December 2022, amount of approximately (d) R—ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H"
HK$9,742,000 (2021: HK$9,717,000) represented 499,742,000 T (ZFE = —F:
accrued interest for borrowings and accrued interest 9,717,000/ 7t ) A& R EFFI B &
in relation to acquisition of minority interest of a HINE-RHRB AR L EERZ B
subsidiary (Note 23(a)). B EET AR (M95E23(a)) ©

(e) As at 31 December 2022, HK$2,173,000 (2021: (e) R-_E-_—_F+=-A=+—8H"
Nil) represented amount due to Seal Eco Advance 2,173,000 0 (ZE=-—F:T) A
Limited (“Seal Eco”), which has been reclassified TERBNTELEREIRIERRE AT ([/8
to other payables when Seal Eco was no longer a Koo )FE N2 T - —
subsidiary of the Group, upon the deconsolidation +T-A=T—HIEFEBELELEA A
of subsidiaries (Note 45) during the year ended 31 BEMTB A A (M3E45) 188N &k ET
December 2022. The amount was unsecured, non- BAANEBEWRB AR ZHBEEE
interest bearing and repayable on demand. FoBEEHMENRIB - ZRIE A

MR R ERARERER-

The Group's trade and other payables that are AREBENHBEEEET2ZEEE 25

denominated in currencies other than the functional e ENENE R R EMEN R

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out TEE T

below:

2022 2021
—ZE:—— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T AT

RMB AR 3,817 5,075

usD ETT 2,997 13,630

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33. EHEE

2022 2021
—s=-= T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Current: BIER :

One-stop value chain services — R EEERYS - 947
Trading of distribution business (Note) D $5¥%Z 5 (M) 4,243 1,557
4,243 2,504

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to R-ZE-_—F—A—B AEaEAE

HK$1,246,000.

Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be
settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle, are
classified as current and non-current liabilities based
on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods to

the customers.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
33. AHAE (&)
TRITNRAFERRABLEESNA
BEEENKRR RN BTHERETHE
HEGHERAEME -

Trading of
One-stop consumables
value chain  and agricultural
services products
— X HERR
EEHERE BEMES
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FET
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-E--#+-A=+—H
EFE
Revenue recognised that was included ERERTAFIEL
in the contract liability balance at the BEAHKE
beginning of the year 947 1,557
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-_—F+=-A=+—H
FFE
Revenue recognised that was included ERRFAFIE
in the contract liability balance at the ﬁ%mnﬁﬁﬁw&m
beginning of the year 1,141 105
Note: The significant increase in contract liabilities for the Mzx: Ziz—E—-——#F#+-_A=+—81

year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly due to
increase in pre-order agreement.

FE AHNABREBEMEZETH
RIBET 195 48 o o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE

34.

35.

China Eco-Farming lelted TEEELERERAT
Annual Report 2022 =& = —F &

ZE-F+_A=t—HIFE
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 3. EfAFERBREERENE
INTERESTS
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and BBERBEDNEER £ NKEAERENKE
repayable on demand. Eo
BORROWINGS 35. f&X
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Other borrowings, unsecured Hth fE 5K MR 23,398 25,140
Other borrowings, secured EMfER A 14,383 15,900
Total borrowings EER 37,781 41,040
All the borrowings are repayable within one year. FIEBRER—FANEER-



35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-ZT-_—HF+-_A=1+—HILFE
BORROWINGS (continued) 35. fER (&)
Borrowings comprise: T
Effective
Maturity date interest rate 2022 2021
EHA RS —g¥-C —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHL
Fixed-rate borrowings:
EEER:
Interest-free unsecured other borrowing 31 December 2023 Interest-free 5,133 5,571
of RMB4,550,000 (Note a) (2021: 31 December 2021)
B2 EEREAME R —ZE-=F#+=-A=+—H 2E
AR #4,550,0007T (Fit3ta) (ZB=—F:ZF=—%
+-A=+—H)
Interest-free unsecured other borrowing 31 December 2023 Interest-free 14,665 15,919
of RMB13,000,000 (Note b) (2021: 31 December 2021)
REZEHFEMBER —Z-=F+=-RA=+—H 2E
AR #13,000,0007T (KizEb) (ZB=—F:ZF=—%
+=-A=+—8H)
15% unsecured other borrowing 28 December 2019 15% 2,500 2,500
of HK$21,500,000 (Note c)
F % B15% 2 |EIRE M ER —T-NF+ZAZ+NH
21,500,0007% 7T, (Ff#Ec)
12% secured other borrowing of 7 January 2022 12% 9,000 9,000
HK$10,000,000 (Note d)
FERB12% 2 BEAEMER —ZT-—F—H/+tH
10,000,0005% 7T (Pff3Ed)
18% secured other borrowing of 11 August 2020 18% 5,383 6,900
HK$6,900,000 (Note e)
FEB18% 2 BHEAIFHMER —ZEFEFENAT—HR
6,900,000/ 7t (Ffzte)
10% unsecured other borrowing 26 December 2021 10% - 400
of HK$400,000 (Note f)
FIEB10%,2 B H M fE3 - —F+=ZRA=+"H
400,000/ 7T, ( BT &EF)
Interest-free unsecured other borrowing 8 February 2022 Interest-free - 750
of HK$750,000 (Note g)
BEZEHFEMBER “ZE--%-ANH 2B
750,000/ 7T (FifsEg)
10% unsecured other borrowing 19 April 2023 10% 1,100 -
of HK$1,100,000 (Note h)
FEB10% 2 BEIREMER “ZE-=FWATNA
1,100,000/ 7T (FfizEh)
37,781 41,040
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIE %24 &EFR Q7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ

35.

Z__F+A=+—HIEFE

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The unsecured other borrowing was obtained from
Lender A as defined in Note 22. According to the
loan agreement, the Group has to reimburse Lender
A for its costs of financing, which includes the
interest rate of 8% per annum borne by Lender
A. Those reimbursements have been recognised as
financial costs of the Group (Note 8).

On 21 February 2022, the Group and Lender A
entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which the deadline for repayment and discharge
of the principal and the reimbursement have been
extended to 31 December 2023.

The unsecured other borrowing was obtained from
Gold Wide, an associate of the Group. According
to the loan agreement, the Group has to reimburse
Gold Wide for its costs of financing, which includes
the interest rate of 8% per annum borne by Gold
Wide (Note 21). Those reimbursements have been
recognised as financial costs of the Group (Note 8).

Pursuant to the deed of settlement dated 31
December 2019, the Group and Gold Wide
canvassed amongst themselves that, instead of the
Group repaying this borrowing to Gold Wide, the
Group shall repay to Entity A (as defined in Note 18).
Any sums paid and/or to be paid by the Group to
Gold Wide pursuant to this borrowing shall be paid
and discharged in accordance therewith.

On 21 February 2022, the Group and Gold Wide
entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which the deadline for repayment and discharge
of the principal and the reimbursement have been
extended to 31 December 2023.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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% (&)
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F‘!r

ZEEREMERDIRETA (EE
RWaE22) S - RIBE F I
SHEAENESTARERS Hh g
BRETARENFMNERE% % E
ENDRERSAEREZRERA
(PH7E8) -

RZEZZFZRA=+—H r&H
HBEFATIHAERE Bt EE
LEEAGREERBZHLAS
BREEE-_ET-_=F+-_A=+—
Ej o

ZEEREMERTINE A (KR
B — R AR RF - REER
o AREABRNEAEBERA
Hoh 84 & A&/ F 7 X /8%
(FFEE21) - FENEWERAA
SEZBERA () »

BEBHAE -_ZT—-NALF+-H
=+t BEMEERE AEELE
ShRH - AR BEA R & AEEZ
FREFEAEBEEANERBAEES
SR (E&ERME18) - AKER
BZEGREN R/ IEN 2L
EAT IR AR I S BB 1E

RZEZZF-_A=-+—H0 &%
EHS AT B EE
REEAS REEFIE 2 E B
BREREE-_ZE-_=F+=-RA=+—
Ej o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

(e)

On 25 January 2019, other payable of
HK$21,500,000 was novated to a financial institution
and reclassified as borrowings. The amount is
unsecured, carries interest at 15% per annum and
repayable in 10 installments from 28 March 2019
to 28 December 2019. Up to 31 December 2022,
HK$19,000,000 (2021: HK$19,000,000) has been
paid to settle the principal.

The secured other borrowing is obtained from a
financial institution in Hong Kong and is secured by
an investment property of the Group located in Hong
Kong with fair value of approximately HK$9,780,000
(2021: HK$9,730,000) as disclosed in Note 18.

The secured other borrowing is obtained from a
financial institution in Hong Kong and is secured by
securities account which held by a subsidiary of the
Company with fair value of approximately HK$Nil
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$2,752,000) as
disclosed in Note 28.

The unsecured other borrowing is obtained from
Darkstone Investment Group Limited. Mr. So David
Tat Man is the common director of the Company and
Darkstone Investment Group Limited. The balance
has been fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The unsecured other borrowing is obtained from
Nice Wealth Limited, a minority shareholder of the
Group. As at 31 December 2022, the borrowing
was derecognised upon the deconsolidation of
Seal Eco and its subsidiary (collectively referred as
the “Deconsolidated Subsidiaries”). Details of the
deconsolidation has been disclosed in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The unsecured other borrowing is obtained from
a private company. The loan bears interest at fixed
rate of 10% per annum and is repayable on 19 April
2023.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
35. fER (&)
MeE: (&)

(0

(f)

R_ZE—hNhF—A-+HA Hit
JE <+ % IE21,500,0008 T B FHE
CREET SN DAL R ZR
BB R ENE15%5T LA
R-ZE—hAhFEF=ZA-_F+NHEEZ
E-NE+-_A=-+N\BHTHE
CHE_ER_—_FF+A=+—
"B X 119,000,0008 0 (=&
—%:19,000,000/8 7T ) A 45 E K

|1 m fE

o

FAOPT EEI8AT B B 2 B A E A
BRIDREZCBEBEIE B
REBMREBMNREYEERM -
H N F{EA 49,780,000 L (=&
——%:9,730,000/ 7T ) °

AN 28T TR - 52 B IR E b
BRDIRESSBREEEIG B
KRl —HNBARRBENESKE
FERF EAFER =T
+-—A=+—BHATEL(=Z
——%:2,752,000/7T) °

2 3 E th f5 30 8 Darkstone
Investment Group Limited# 15 -
BR3E X 5T A /AN 2 F] K Darkstone
Investment Group Limited&) £ 7 &
BHE_T__F+_A="1—
HILFE ZEREEREES -

RERFEMERTEAEERD
BREBHRARARERS - R_Z
&+ -—A=+—8 EHE&KSE
ABRBHEERENE QT (5418
A ([BUHEERAARMBAR])#ME
HECHBER -BUHGRAANEZFHE
E R G B 5 R M sE 45 15 5% o

ZEBFEMERTE —RALERQ
BIEB-ERITI0%H FEF =X
FETER-ZZE_=FMA+IH

BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

35.

36.

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

35.

&= (4&)
AEBEAEBEEEEERDETEE 25
MESFHEMEREINDAT

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&x FHIT

RMB AR #& 19,798 21,490

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
the following undrawn credit facilities:

RBEHR AEBBEHRRIEE
BEEMT

2022 2021
—E-—= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Fixed rate [& E Fl| =
— expiring within one year —R—FRNIH - 75,000
— expiring beyond one year ——F LA EEIE 75,000 -
MARGIN LOANS PAYABLES 36. ERRBELEN

As at 31 December 2022, the margin loans payables
were secured by the listed equity securities placed in
financial institutions under the margin accounts as
disclosed in Note 28, with fair value of approximately
HK$2,161,000 (2021: HK$5,922,000).

The margin loans payables were repayable on demand
as they were subject to margin call from the financial
institutions and interest rates at 10% per annum
(2021: 10% per annum).

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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RZFZZF+ZA=+—H B
FCEREATRIE2EENS &
BENRESEPHN LETMRAZSFE
- QP ELHAE2,161,0008 T (=F
——%:5,922,000/#7T) °

HRAEMNRESERE S MKBER
MRBL RESKEREEZ BF
MERHI0% (ZEBE-—F :FH XA
10% ) °



37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HE&®E
2022 2021
—E=-= =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Amount due for settlement within RRESEBEER TR
12 months shown under RT @ ARNBE4EE
current liabilities Z FIE
Lease liabilities payable: ENEERE:
Within one year —FR = 506

The weighted average borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 10.87% to 12.53%.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group issued
financial guarantee to Entity A (as defined in Note
18) as to secure the Loan B granted to Gold Wide,
an associate of the Group. The term of the financial
guarantee contract is from the grant date of Loan
B to the date falling three years after the due date
(Note 21). Gold Wide is the lender of the interest-
free unsecured other borrowing of RMB13,000,000 as
detailed in Note 35(b).

If the guarantees were called upon in entirety, the
aggregate amounts that could be required to be paid
the principal and the accrued interest in aggregate
of RMB2,190,000 (2021: RMB16,065,000). As at 31
December 2022, the outstanding balance of Loan B
was RMB2,190,000 (2021: RMB16,065,000). As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the financial guarantee
have not been utilised by Gold Wide.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, expected
credit loss of approximately RMB125,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$141,000) (2021: approximately
RMB9,883,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,102,000)) has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Details of
the loss allowance for financial guarantee contract are
set out in Note 42(b).

38.

EAREE A& INEFIERFE
N F10.87%%12.53% °

BBEREY
KRB _FRER_ZFTE-—F+=A

=t—B AEEREBA(EERW
1) EITHMBER AR TR CK

SEZHBE NG )N E RBIEEE-

MBERGANER A EXRBEN

ZHRZIHHARB=F2H (K
21) el AR BEEEBEMERAR

%13,000,0007321573 B R MR

35(b) ©

HIER 2SR - RIPT aEH (T8 58

B4 K fET | 2 4858 A R #2,190,000
T(ZZ - —%: AR#¥16,065,000

L) R-_E-_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
BHBHAREELE S A ARK2,190,000

ﬁ(_E:—E-AEMMﬁ%pm
L) RZEBEZ—FR_F-_—F+=
A=1t—HB & Ak ERZTBE
R o

BHE-ZT-_—_F+-A=1T—HI1tF
E-EHEEEELHARK1250005T
(HERH141,00087) (ZT=—
&4 AR #9,883,0007T (HHE RN
12,102,000 7T) ) E R &R & B B AR R
KPR VMBEREAOEBRE 2F
B EH AT TE42(0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE

39. DEFERRED TAXATION 39. EZEBIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities T ARREEARE L BAERSHEE
recognised and movements thereon during the current BOMAEEHRBEBEBE LR AR
and prior reporting periods:

Fair value
changes of
investment

properties
REMEN
NEEZE

HK$'000

FET
At 1 January 2021 RZE——F—H—H 934
Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) BB (MEE10) 423
Exchange differences arising from the balances B &84 E £ E K =58 33
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+-HA=+—H 1,390
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) srAEZ (MIFE10) (1,306)
Exchange differences arising from the balances B #5848 4 H)[E i, = 48 (84)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZZH+-A=+—H -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has REEHKR NEBEA T 41K 34
unused tax losses of approximately HK$280,896,000 AEGANH Y REARBEBEIEY
(2021: HK$229,160,000) available for offset against 280,896,000 0 (=& - — F:
future profits. No deferred tax has been recognised 229,160,000 7T ) ° B3 F R B2 78 8 7k 3k
in respect of such losses (2021: Nil) due to the SRR M ERERIEE R EEIS
unpredictability of future profit streams. TUBR(ZZE_—F:F)-
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has MNEREEI R REBO NG =
deductible temporary differences of approximately 549429 317,000 T (8- —4:
HK$9,317,000 (2021: HK$9,196,000). No deferred 9,196,000/ 7T ) ° BN K Al 62 A FE R
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such ROHEF AT 8B LA S A FN R T RS = 58
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable WM EG ARG EREERELER
that taxable profit will be available against which the BEE-
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. BRA
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE RO EE k2]
HK$ HK$'000
BT THET
Authorised ordinary shares: ETEEBR
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—A—H 0.01  18,260,869,570 182,609
Share consolidation (Note b (i) Bt a6t (FEEED () N/A TR (16,434,782,613) -
Share sub-division (Note b (iii) B H48 (FEED Gil)) NATER  16,434,782,613 -
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—F+ZA
31 December 2022 “+—HRZBZZF%
+=-B=+-H 0.01 18,260,869,570 182,609
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: ~ BE{TREMR LR :
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—%—A—H 0.01 932,552,430 9,325
Placing of new shares (Note a) BEH R (Mta) 0.01 127,000,000 1,270
Share consolidation (Note b (i) B4 BF (HT=Eb () N/A 7 i (953,597,187) -
Capital reduction (Note b (ii)) WA (D Gi)) N/A i F - (9,535)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—%+_H
=+—H 0.01 105,955,243 1,060
Issue new shares upon rights PR 18 EATET R D
issue (Note ¢) (PiEEc) 0.01 24,046,488 240
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-ZF+=8
=+—H 0.01 130,001,731 1,300
Authorised convertible preference ETEARRE LR
shares:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December RZZ-_—%—H—H"
2021 and 31 December 2022 ZEC 4R
“t+-HRZBEZZF
+=-A=t-H 0.1 173,913,043 17,391
Issued and fully paid convertible EETREMRHAHRE
preference shares: BERK:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December n-—Z-—-F—-A—8:
2021 and 31 December 2022 R —$+-A=+-H
KZB-Zf+ZH
=+-H 0.1 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ

40.

= ——

F+-A=t—BILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@

On 2 September 2021, the Company and Cheong
Lee Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered
into the placing agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to allot and issue and
has appointed the Placing Agent to procure, on a
best effort basis, subscribe for placing shares up to
186,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
placing price of HK$0.034 per placing share (the
“Placing”).

The completion of the Placing took place on 28
September 2021 and 127,000,000 placing shares
have been allotted. The gross proceeds from the
Placing were approximately HK$4,318,000. The net
proceeds after deducting the placing commission
and other related expenses were approximately
HK$4,073,000. Further details of the Placing are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 2
September 2021 and 28 September 2021.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the special
general meeting held on 20 October 2021, the
Company proceed with the capital reorganisation
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving, among
others, the following:

(i) share consolidation whereby every ten shares
of the Company’s issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.01 per share have
been consolidated into one share with par
value of HK$0.1 (the “Consolidation Share”).
The Consolidated Shares rank pari passu in
all respects with each other;

(ii) capital reduction whereby the issued share
capital of the Company will be reduced by
cancelling the paid up capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the then
issued Consolidated Shares such that the par
value of each issued Consolidated Share will
be reduced from HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 (the
"Capital Reduction”);

(iii) share sub-division whereby each of the

authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares

will be divided into ten adjusted shares of

HK$0.01 each;

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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BAZIRERBEZ AARQ A
186,500,0000% & i A= B Bl & Ix 17 -
fl & & A S RS IR 1D0.0347 7T
(MRE=EE]) -

ffEeEEBEMRA_ZET-_—FLAZ-+N
B 5 Rk © E B 2127,000,0000% fig &
D -BRE BB AMBRIBAELY
£4,318,0008 Lo E MK EE A e
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D EREEBHRIE T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@}

(continued)

(iv) share premium reduction whereby the entire
amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account will be reduced to nil;

(v) transfer of all the credits arising from the
capital reduction and the share premium
reduction to the contributed surplus account
of the Company; and

(vi) the credit arising from the capital reduction
and the share premium reduction be applied
to set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Further details of the Capital Reorganisation are set
out in the Company's Circular dated 16 September
2021.

Implementation of the Capital Reorganisation will
not, of itself, alter the underlying assets, business
operations, management or financial position of
the Company or the proportionate interests of the
shareholders, except for the payment of the related
expenses.

On 20 October 2021, all the conditions precedent
of the implementation of the Capital Reorganisation
had been fulfilled and the Capital Reorganisation
had become effective on 22 October 2021.

On 3 March 2022, the Company announced a rights
issue on the basis of one rights share for every two
existing shares held by shareholders of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$0.16 per rights share.
The rights issue was completed and 24,046,488
ordinary shares was issued on 19 May 2022. The
net proceeds from the rights issue is approximately
HK$3,060,000. Details of the rights issue were
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
25 April 2022.

All new shares rank pari passu with other shares in issue in
all respects.

RETBHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

40. BRA ()

B aE - (48)

(iv) B ER D B RO E
BT AR 2 8B 58 AR

e R

v) EORLE Ko e fn i (B A EE A
ZHABERERERRAIN
BABBER: K&

vy  HERBRDEERIELEZ
ERGARBHEARRZR
FHER-

FHRERABEANEZHBIARAER
ARAMAR T -_—FAATREH
HBEK ©

EMERNBALRGEIGHELRR
AABEE XHKLE BEIMB
AR A R B B ) MR S S AR
b

RZEZ—F+A=+H EEE
RNEHENFTA FRIEHFH B EX
BEEAEHER -_ZT=-_—F1+A
- BE R

(©) RZE-_—_F=ZA=H ARAIET
5 DA B IR 4 AR % 150,167 T YRR B8
{8 1A A8 R B A% 3R A 5 /R AL 3E A 1D
W —RERR D EITERRRER
ER_E-_—_FHRATABRTRK
A 3 1724,046,4880% i A A% (5 ©
A% B 13 3R B 58 49 53,060,00078
TR EBERARRBEH A=
T _FNA-+HHZERER
R EE o

FRAEFEME T EAREMD HITRN =
BHERBMAL

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3}

243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
a1.

42,

T _F+-_A=+—HILtFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes amounts due to non-controlling
interests, borrowings, margin loans payables and
lease liabilities as disclosed in Notes 34, 35, 36 and
37 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@) Categories of financial instruments

41.

42.

EXEmEE

AEBEREERI RBERASEE
BEIHELE WEBEBCEKERK
A& BRRERERAR R KAEE
ZEBREEEFELIDER T E -

REEBZEARBHERFHE(BED
BBt 5534 ~ 35 ~ 36 2374 & &Y fE It
R RERKIE B EHRE
SEFULREEERE) (HBRRERR
SEEUREAARBE ABEEZ &
BEBHITRARGE)EX-

EETHRIEEARE B Z
HP—HnREFEEESKANE
ERECBHEBZER REEFZ
WEER AREHERBITHRNE
TTHEER  BEBEEER M FEH
EREARE-

EWMITR
() E&MIAZER

2022 2021
—E-C8F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IZE KA EZ S RIEE 18,832 46,781
Financial assets mandatorily Bl AT EFABRE
measured at FVTPL ZEMEE
— held-for-trading —FHEEE 3,375 8,780
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFAHMEE KR
ZHEERTH 2,865 7,261
Financial liabilities ERERE
Amortised cost )N 85,390 93,482
Financial guarantee contract BB IERE D 141 12,102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables,
loans to associates, financial assets at FVTPL,
restricted bank balance, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, borrowings,
margin loans payables, lease liabilities and
financial guarantee contract. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Directors manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

() Currency risk
The Group has certain subsidiaries
operate in the PRC and Taiwan, and the
functional currency of these subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Taiwan are
RMB and NTD respectively. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.

RETBHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
42. £®IA (&)
(b) EEEREEBERBE

AEENTESMTABRER
N EF AR M 2 W a2
7T A - YRR Ko H i & IR
B REREREMNE RBER
AELER RATFEF ABR
MEMEE KRHRITHEER
RekReFE BHERKXEHE
i A SRR - AN FR IR B R
@R B BNRERER
HERBMMBERAN -BH
TRMTANFBERERABN
e HEZETR T EMEMEZER
BREMERAR (EERR X
R EEAMERRR) FEER
B MRBE TR B - AR
CHEFRB BRIV T -E
EHRERBETEERER.
NHEREEBERMEREE 2
Rk

5 [

)  BEEER
AEBEAETHERRR
TERGERE MZE
WA B K & R S RO Y
REIZNEEED HI/A
RERHFa®E AREDT
EEERABRKEME-
AW REF B A S
PEEIBGRA) M (HEE-
EERNEERRE)
AEEA B BERERS
SMNERS 2 RITHARE
SR EMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. @I A (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEEMREEBZREE(E)

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) mEE R ()

(1) Currency risk (continued) (i) B (&)
The Group currently does not have REE B gl EHNE S
a foreign currency hedging policy. WA NEE TR
However, management of the Group EBeERINERKR T
monitors foreign exchange exposure and REZEREZEHHEK
will consider hedging significant foreign GNP o

currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group have foreign currency bank K& E G RITINE 4554
balances, loan and interest receivables, U B K R B - ([ B 2
loan to associates and borrowings which NEMER B E R A& K
expose the Group to foreign currency SAREBAZINER K
risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's NEF PINESHE R I
foreign currency denominated monetary MEEREEMEBERR
assets and monetary liabilities at the end ESHAR VEEmMEWN T :

of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
=R EE
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-_-F ~-—ZET-—-F ZE--f —-—T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTET TER FTEL

RMB ARE 23,615 26,565 7,808 12,288
usb ey 2,997 13,630 3,761 13,707
Australian dollar (“AUD") Bt (MR)) - - - 20
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, AEFBFEMBRARE.
USD and AUD. E T RORTH R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

42. £®IA (#E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEEMREEBEZREE(E)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) mEE R (E)
Currency risk (continued) (i) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The following table details the Group's TRV AEREETTH
sensitivity to a 5% (2021: 5%) change PR INEE B PE R E E)5%
in HK$ against the respective foreign ZEZ—F 5% B
currencies. 5% (2021: 5%) is the BeoiZs% (ZEZ—4F:
sensitivity rate used when reporting 5% )7‘)32 &) Ty [\ 5 E A
foreign currency risk internally to key WEZEE ABERINE
management personnel and represents Mﬁqﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ RIS E L
management’'s assessment of the - WRKREREHINE
reasonably possible change in foreign FEXRAEHIRABEEN
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis Lo REDITESE
includes only outstanding foreign AN B Z BRI NE
currency denominated monetary items, I H WG R
and adjusts their translation at the end LA SNEE [ R B H)5% (=
of the reporting period for a 5% (2021: T~ —F:5%)/EE K
5%) change in foreign currency rates. o N IFEIBE F R
A positive number below indicates T H B AN R B &
a decrease in post-tax loss where g BB A2 A o ki
HK$ weaken against the respective TTHAABEENERAE
foreign currencies. For a 5% (2021: 5% (T = —%:5%)"
5%) strengthening of HK$ against the A& Hp iR EEEKE
relevant currency, there would be an éé&m&m%g‘ il
equal and opposite impact on the post- ERise sAaE-
tax loss and the balances below would
be negative.
RMB impact USD impact AUD impact
ARBZE ey Ange
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E--f -—Z--% ZB-ZE —E--F ZB--E —ZT--%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR T THR TET THR THET
Decrease (increase) 714 B 1835
in post-tax loss (1m) (660) (596) 32 3 - 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
42.

ZE-F+_A=t—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(17) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate other receivables,
interest receivables, loans to associates,
borrowings, margin loan payables and
lease liabilities, as set out in Notes 25,
26, 27, 35, 36 and 37 respectively.
The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate restricted bank balance
and bank balances as detailed in Notes
29 and 30. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management
considers that the exposure of cash
flows interest rate risk arising from
variable rate balances is insignificant.

(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL and
FVTOCI. For equity securities measured
at FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure
by maintaining the investments with
appropriate level. In addition, the
Group also invested in certain unquoted
equity securities of which the investee
is operating in tourism industry sector
for long-term strategic purposes which
has been designated as FVTOCI. The
Group has monitored the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure

should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Other price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk at the reporting date.
Sensitivity analyses for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in Note 42(c).

If the price of respective equity
instruments held had been 10%
(2021: 10%) higher/lower, post-
tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$282,000
(2021: HK$733,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held for trading
investments.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables, loans
to associates, restricted bank balance, bank
balances and financial guarantee contract. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risk
associated with its financial assets and financial
guarantee contract, except that the credit risks
associated with loans and interest receivables
are mitigated because they are secured over
properties/securities.

REMBRKRME
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BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

42. £®IA (&)
(b) =2HEREEEEREX (&)

TSRk (&)

(i)  EHuaEEER (&)
BURRE 5 #T
BRE D ITEN RS B 5
BAEBRRARETE A F
B EBAFZ=RBRER
ERTEHFNERE DT
HERHIEE42(0) ©

WA AEREET A
B LR/ TH10% (=
T —F:10%) BRE
ﬁgé&ﬁzﬂﬁﬁﬁ

T WMAFERBE
BB BRI AY
282,000 L (=& = —
4F 1 733,000/ 7T) ©

=B R R s 8 A1
EERBEAKEZXZHFIE
REHNBEBEYAEHEELES
BEENER NEENEER
@ 0 RN EWERS )SZ/H\
ﬂﬂfﬂﬁz KIE - MR R e B
ﬁEﬁ*M“ fEH &% xﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂi
R RITEBREMBERS
Z’J AREBITEREESREE
LB BEREVBEBENEER
eRAEEMERRIEMEER
1ok MESR R E SR F B AR
MEERRAIEER RESH
S BSEER

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3}

249



250

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
42.

B

FINAN
(b)

China Eco-

FH_A=+—HILFE

CIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Hong Kong,
which accounted for 100% (2021: 100%) of
the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2022.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 27% (2021: 23%) and 54% (2021: 90%)
of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers respectively, all within distribution
business.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances collectively based on provision
matrix. Trade receivables are grouped under
a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the historical observed
default rates adjusted by forward looking
estimates. Impairment loss, net of reversal,
of approximately HK$12,479,000 (2021:
HK$1,073,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the
Directors make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information.
Except for amounts that the Directors believe
there are significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on lifetime ECL, the
Directors believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of other receivables since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. Impairment
loss, net of reversal, of approximately
HK$5,859,000 (2021: HK$8,030,000) was
recognised during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in
this note.

Loan and interest receivables

The Group’s management manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of their
new and existing borrowers before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. The
management assesses the collateral and credit
quality of each borrower based on borrower’s
background information, financial position, past
experience and relevant factors. The Group also
reviews from time to time the financial position
of the borrowers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

e

BE—
42.

e p—

T F T A=1+—HILFE

FINAN
(b)

CIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loan and interest receivables (continued)

The Directors estimate the estimated loss
rates of loan and interest receivables based on
historical credit loss experience of the debtors
as well as the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the borrowers to the loan and
interest receivables. Impairment loss, net
of reversal, of approximately HK$467,000
(2021: reversal of impairment loss, net of
impairment loss approximately HK$812,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in
this note.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
63% (2021: 55%) of the total loan and interest
receivables as at 31 December 2022 was due
from the Group's largest borrower.

Loans to associates

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates. The Group's
credit risks in these balances are mitigated
through the value of the assets held by these
entities and the power to participate in the
relevant activities of these entities. Except for
loans to associates that the Directors believe
there are significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on lifetime
ECL, the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. Impairment loss, net of reversal,
of approximately HK$Nil (2021: HK$848,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in
this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Restricted bank balance and bank balances
Credit risk on restricted bank balance and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for restricted bank balance
and bank balances by reference to information
relating to probability of default and loss given
default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external rating agencies. The 12m
ECL on restricted bank balance and bank balances
is considered to be insignificant and therefore no
loss allowance was recognised.

Financial guarantee contract

For financial guarantee contract, the maximum
amount that the Group has guaranteed under
the guarantee contract was the principal
amount of RMB13,000,000 plus the accrued
interest.

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors have
performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly,
the loss allowance for financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired). Impairment loss of approximately
HK$1,490,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors have
performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that the credit risk of the guarantee
has been decreased and accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group is measured at an amount
equal to 12m ECL. Reversal of impairment
loss of approximately HK$11,326,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2022.

RETBHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
42. £®IA (&)
(b) =2HEREEEEREX (&)

= BB R E G (&

KR HIIRTTAEER R IRTT A8 AR

HRYF T SEREEFREE
RYTRSEEFRZEERY
ROSRTT - U R B SR1T A5 88 S iR
THEBEERRER AEE2
RES AR EBEMNE S
ERAMESFEMNEOR X ME
MBREABENEHNE IR
RITHEBLIRTTHEEHNI2(E A
BHEEBRETIGE HER
HERITHEBNRITERBEN
NREAEMEEBEERERT
BER ESI SRR A

HEERER

M BERAEOMS  AEER
BERENTERNESSER
Re A KH13,000,0007T 5 00 f&E
AHAE -

RZFE_—F+=ZHA=+—8"
EECDETRENN YEHTEE
S ERE OVIRERAREER
Rt @EEm- At ~EE
BOIMMBEREONBERE
NDREREHBEHEEESE (E
ERE)NEBIFE-REBEEC
T - —4F+-_A=+—HItF
[ - B HERRIEE1E 491,490,000
I o

RZEBZ—_F+=—A=+—8H"
EE0ETRENG TEHTEE
ROEERRE TR Bt &
EEBITHMEEREONES
BEDZRSERNEAEHEES
BReBiE - REE-E—_—
F+-_A=Z+—BLEFEE B
SRR B B 1B B14911,326,0007%
5% o

China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
Annual Report 2022 =% = ZF F 3}

253



254

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=-+—HLFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Financial guarantee contract (continued)
Details of the financial guarantee contract and
quantitative disclosures are set out in Note 38

and this note.

The Group's internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

TR T A (&)

TREREERERBE (H)

=B E R ET G (F)

HEERER (B)

ERYBERA

HRELEE

B R B B P SE38 M AN 3 o

AEENAREER
D HR

HERETID

B & A RE

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
REBEEFR EiL EE T L HttemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
el RPEFNENERREATECNANEE 2HRACEHE- NEARHREEER
BiEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually ~ Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
settle in full credit-impaired
BREE EHEALERRES EBZSTHER PHEREERE- NEAARHEEEE
EEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
R ABEESREBRENERBEREER PHREGERE- 2HRHCERE-
MR EBEZEM BEERE BiEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired impaired
BA REBBEREECHBREERE rPHEHEERE- 2HEEGERR-
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written-off  Amount is written-off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
fifl 34 REBBETEBARABENBRELASE SBEMH SHECHE

BRAARERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

=

(b)

The table below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group's financial assets and financial

guarantee contract,

which are subject to ECL

T

T _F+-A=1+—HItFE
42. €RI A (&)
CRERETEEERBRE (&)

= BB R E G (&

TRFANAEEFETEBAGE
EBEFE 2R EERME
ERAENZEERR-

assessment.
External Internal 2022 2021
Notes creditrating  credit rating  12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount (Gross carrying amount
MEE RBEE  ToEAS2EES ka3 ZZ-E
fis i FEER AR BEgE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR TR Tn
Financial assets at amortised costs
RESHATIRNEREE
Restricted bank balance 29 Baa3 N/A 12mECL 649 705
RBHETHS 29 Ba TR NERRBRERE
Bank balances 30 Aa2-Baa3 NA 12mECL 1,125 2811
RiTER 0 b3 TEA NERRARERSR
Trade receivables 25 NA (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (Provision matrix) 19,190 24539
2HRYE 5 NER (W) 2EEBEEEE (REER)
Deposits and other receivables 25 NA Low risk 12m ECL 2,355 4,489
ReRAMRUTE 5 NEA EER NERRBEERE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 2,47 12,677
RE 2MRBEEER (REEWE)
Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 20,132 2,734 6,059 23205
Bk 2HRBEEER (FENE)
Loan and interest receivables 2% NA Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 249
EHEHRHE % TER RE PHMRBEEER (BRERE)
Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 8,515 8,515 6,163 8,655
Bk PHEBEEER-FENE
Loans to associates 2 NA Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 42820
REERAELER 7 TER RE PHURBEEER (BRERE)
Other item
EfoER
Financial quarantee contracts (Note 1) 33 NA Low risk 12mECL 241 -
SRERSH (M) LIS [ERg NERRBEEESE
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) - 19,672
B 2EEBEERE (RERA)
China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
42.

ZE-F+_A=t—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Notes:

1) For financial guarantee contract, the gross
carrying amount represents the maximum
amount the Group has guaranteed under the

guarantee contract.

2) For trade receivables, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL on
these items on a collective basis by using a
provision matrix, grouped based on past due

status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk
management, the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers in
relation to its businesses of one-stop value
chain services, distribution business and
provision of financial services operation. Their
customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed based on provision matrix
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

RETBHERME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE
42. £®IA (&)
(b) =REREEBZERBCK (#)

=B R R ETFE (F)

B : (4&)

2) (continued) 2) (&)
Gross carrying amount BRE A
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F
Estimated Trade Estimated Trade
loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
&t EHEK EHS Z 5N
[ EES B BEX HHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Distribution business DHER
Current to 30 days past due B E =@ E30H 10.13% 5,895 1.71% 16,717
31 to 90 days past due BH3IAZ90A 35.02% 866 9.33% 4,504
90 days to 1 year past due AH0HZE—4F 61.57% 43 23.15% 3,318
Over 1 year BB —F 100.00% 12,386 - -
19,190 24,539

The estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default
rates (2021: historical observed default
rates) over the expected life with
forward looking adjustment that is
available without undue cost or effort
and empirical study on loss given default
rate.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
provided approximately HK$13,312,000
(2021: HK$1,474,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on
the provision matrix.

BET BB R HER
TEHFHRNBEIEERS
PR A S5 DB A] AR FE &2
BEHOXR(ZEZ—F R
SEHE) (EHATEMS
AER)REBHNBRENE
BT 0

RZE-_—_F+ = A
=+—H AEERER
E BT E 5 WG IRE
it 4913,312,0005%8 7T ( —
T~ — 411,474,000
T0) KRB B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HIFE
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, €@T A (E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) L£HREMETEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREEBRBETFE (&)
(continued)
The following table shows the reconciliation TxXB LU E HEWTIEEDR
of loss allowance that has been recognised for BB HEE -
trade receivables.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
HENEEER 2HEHEERR
(BEEHE) (EERE) -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THET
As at 1 January 2021 RZZ=—-%—f—H 401 - 401
Changes due to financial instruments RZZ--F-H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2021: BRERIEMLRE
- Impairment losses reversed -REREESR (401) - (401)
New financial assets originated FENTEREE 1474 - 1474
As at 31 December 2021 R-E_—-%+t-A=t-H 1474 - 1474
Changes due to financial instruments RZZ__F-A-AEALR
recognised as at 1 January 2022: IAMURES:
- Deconsolidation of subsidiaries AR AEHBAR (641) - (641)
— Transfer to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) -BRTHRBEESR
(E&HME) (568) 568 -
~ Impairment losses reversed - REREER (265) - (265)
— Impairment losses recognised -BRRERE = 11,817 11,817
New financial assets originated RENNEBEE 927 - 927
As at 31 December 2022 R=B--%+-A=t+-H 927 12,385 13312
China Eco-Farming lelted TEEELERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

42.
(b)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

TR T A (&)
(b)

42.

TREREERFERBE (&)

= BB R E G (&

(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade BT IBNEERE S
receivables are mainly due to: FEHN:
2022 2022
—EB-CF —EB-CF
(Decrease) increase  (Decrease) increase
in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
2HEBEE 2HEBEE
B8 Of4) Em B8 Ofd) & m
(BEERE) (FERE)
HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TERT
Settlement in full of trade debtors B EEREHEA10,852,000 T
with a gross carrying amount of fE SRR
HK$10,852,000 (265) -
New trade receivables with gross R 48 € /36,804,00078 7T
carrying amount of HK$6,804,000 HIHTE SR 927 -
Trade debtors with a gross carrying AR 48 {E/512,386,000/8 LK)
amount of HK$12,386,000 defaulted BB HEN - 11,817
2021 2021
—T-—F —T-—F
(Decrease) increase  (Decrease) increase
in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
SHEHEE FHIEHEE
E518 OR ) s m B8 CR2) s m
(BEEERE) (EEHE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAET
Settlement in full of trade debtors BHEEIREBER1,722,0008 T
with a gross carrying amount of K8 SRR
HK$11,722,000 (401) -
New trade receivables with gross carrying  BR T 4 (& £24,539,00078 T &
amount of HK$24,539,000 W8 SR 1,474 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, €@T A (E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of

loss allowances that has been recognised for
deposits and other receivables:

TREREERERBE (H)

=B R E G (&

TRATRBERERES MEME
YRR TR R w2 R B B S B

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HEH 2HEH
12EAEH FEBE FEFR
FEEE (BEEHE) (EEHE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEx TiEx
As at 1 January 2021 RZT=Z—%—-f—H 651 - - 651
Changes due to financial instruments W= = —%— A — BH#R
recognised as at 1 January 2021: SRMIAMPREY:
— Transfer to lifetime ECL -BREZZHEHEERSE
(not credit-impaired) (BEEERME) (358) 358 - -
— Transfer to lifetime ECL ~ERELHENEERE
(credit-impaired) (EERE) (293) - 293 -
— Impairment losses recognised —BRRERE - 2,361 5,669 8,030
Exchange adjustments EHRAE - 47 97 144
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—%+-A=+-H - 2,766 6,059 8,825
Changes due to financial instruments RN =T - ~F—F—HHER
recognised as at 1 January 2022: SRTAMPRE
— Reclassify from loans to —BREE R EEHER
associates EX Pk - 994 - 994
— Transfer to lifetime ECL -BRZZHESEERSE
(credit-impaired) (EERE) - (3,760) 3,760 -
— Impairment losses reversed —HEREFE - - (2,930) (2,930)
— Impairment lossesrecognised —-BRREEE - 706 8,020 8,726
New financial assets originated RENFEREE 11 52 - 63
Exchange adjustments ERRAE - (25) (735) (760)
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZ£+ZA=+-H 1 733 14,174 14,918
260 China Eco-Farming Limited FE|RZ£ £ & ER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) £RTH (&)

42.

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) LHREMETEEERBRE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREEBRBETE (&)
(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for deposits and 1o N H b e Uk 3k 08 B 18 B
other receivables are mainly due to: BEIBIIRA:
2022
—EC-CE
Increase in  (Decrease) increase
lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
2HBEMEE 2HRABEE
BRI B8 Ofd) & m
(BEERHE) (EERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT
Settlement of deposits and other receivables & ¥ & I H b JE U1 0E - (2,930)
Reclassify from loans to associates BEREEARELERENHE 994 =
New deposit and other receivables IRE#(ER1,788,000/% T
with gross carrying amount of (ZE-—5 T8
HK$1,788,000 (2021: HK$Nil) wiRe R E B RER 52 =
Change in parameters 2H% 706 8,020
2021
—E-—F
Increase in Increase in
lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
2HEHREE 2HEREE
BRI BRI M
(BEEHAE) (EERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAET
Change in parameters 2HEE) 2,361 5,669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—ET——

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

F+-A=t—BILFE

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss

allowances that has been recognised for loan

and interest receivables:

42.
(b)

E®MTA (&)
CREABREEERREE (H)

=B E R ET G (F)

TRATRSHERERENE

ERMERREYER:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)  (credit-impaired) Total
2HEHEEFE 2HEBEEFE
(BEERE) (EEHE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET
As at 1 January 2021 NE-—F—f—H 95 7,437 7,532
Changes due to financial instruments ~ RZT=—F—H—H®ER
recognised as at 1 January 2021: SRIAMEHREE:
~ Impairment losses reversed —REREER (23) (1.274) (1,297)
— Impairment losses recognised ~BRAEBE 485 - 485
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-A=1+—H 557 6,163 6,720
Changes due to financial instruments ~ R-ZE=—F—F—HER
recognised as at 1 January 2022: SRIAMEHRE
- Transfer to lifetime ECL - EREHEREEEE
(credit-impaired) (EEHE) (557) 557 -
— Impairment losses reversed ~-RORESE - (585) (585)
— Impairment losses recognised ~-HAREBE - 1,052 1,052
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZ%+ZA=1+-H - 7,187 7,187
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42,

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

T A (&)
(b) SRMEAREEEEREE (#)

=B R R ETFE (F)

(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for loan and FEWE R LA B EEREED
interest receivables are mainly due to: TEEHR:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
(Decrease) increase Decrease in
in lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
EHRHBEE 2HEREE
&8 R4 ) 58 BERY
(EERE) (EERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Settlement of loan and interest receivables & EEWEF L FIE (585) (1,274)
Change in parameters 288 1,052 -

The following tables show reconciliation of loss

TRARBHARZ R BMED

allowances that has been recognised for loans BERER Y HEBEYE:
to associates:
Lifetime ECL
12m ECL  (not credit-impaired) Total
NEREYE 2HEHEEER
FEFR (BREEEHE) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FTET
As at 1 January 2021 w_ZE-Z—4%—H—H 109 1,036 1,145
Changes due to financial instruments ~ R =T -—%F—F—HER
recognised as at 1 January 2021: SRIAMLRES:
- Write-offs —H 54 (109) (901) (1,010)
— Impairment losses recognised - BRRAEEE - 848 848
Exchange adjustments I ES - 11 11
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—%+-A=t—H - 994 994
Changes due to financial instruments ~ RZZE-ZZF—H—H#ER
recognised as at 1 January 2022: SRMIAMERES:
- Redlassify to deposits and -BHOEERER
other receivables H i el A - (994) (994)
As at 31 December 2022 RZEB-ZF+-A=t-H - - -
China Eco-Farming Limited FER2 £ £ REER Q7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
42.

=

= ——

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and

(b)

F+-A=t—BILFE

policies (continued)

42.
(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

TR T A (&)

TREREERERBE (H)

=B E R ET G (F)

(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for loans to [ Bt N B EE B 3 B 48 13
associates are mainly due to: BB T EII RPN
2022
—EB-CF
Decrease in
lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)
2HREBEE
BERD
(BEERE)
HK$'000
TERT
Reclassify to other receivable BN BEHMERTR (994)
2021
—E—F
(Decrease) increase
Decrease in in lifetime ECL
12m ECL (not credit-impaired)
1218 R rHESEE
BHEE BB OB Em
BERD (EEERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEX TER
Net realistic prospect of recovery B 787 R Y (21 ) LAt FE Lk 5 OE
of other receivables (109) (901)
2% - 848

Change in parameters

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIREEEER AT
Annual Report 2022 =& = —F &




(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, €@T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and (b) LHREMETEEERBRE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREEBRBETE (&)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of TEMTADHHBIERS Y
loss allowances that has been recognised for T2 N TS 18 BB 1 O 1 BE -
financial guarantee contract:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HES 2HES
FEBE FEEE
(BEERE) (FERE) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT AT FET
As at 1 January 2021 W-E-—%—H—H - 10,306 10,306
Changes due to financial instruments R-ZB_—5-A—-HH#ER2E

recognised as at 1 January 2021: TEMERES:

— Impairment losses recognised ~-HERRESE - 1,490 1,490
Exchange adjustments ok - 306 306
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE-—%+-A=1+—-H - 12,102 12,102
Changes due to financial instruments R-B__§-A—-HH#ER2E

recognised as at 1 January 2022: TEMERES:

— Impairment losses reversed - BOREEE - (11,326) (11,326)
Exchange adjustments R - (635) (635)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-ZH+-A=1-H - 141 141

Changes in the loss allowance for financial

BT R A 0 ¢ 59 7

guarantee contract are mainly due to: TEEHRR:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Decrease Increase
in lifetime in lifetime
ECL (credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired)
2HIFERGEE 2HEEEE
EBiERE > B 1815 N
(E8RE) (EERE)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Change in parameters 2EE F) (11,326) 1,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
42.

B

T F T A=1+—HILFE

FINAN
(b)

CIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
Directors to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had continuously incurring operating
losses. The liquidity of the Group primarily
depends on the future funding being available
and the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Details of
the Group's undrawn credit facilities which are
set out in Note 35.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
margin loans payables with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of
the financial institutions choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other
nonderivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates.
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(b)

TREREERERBE (H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-__F+-_A=t+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. £®TIA (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEREMREEEEZEREEK(H)

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TmEBEZRERE (&
The table includes both interest and principal ERENERRESERELRS
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows o H B RERZE S0
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is AT SBEREHARZFIE
derived from interest rate curve at the end of MGt E -

the reporting period.

More than ~ More than

Weighted one year but  two years but Total
average  Within 1 year less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate orondemand  twoyears  fiveyears  cash flows amounts

mE -ERd SR-F SREE 43
THRE  REREE EORRE  EORIE  RERER REE
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tin ThR THR ThR

2022 —8CCE
Trade and other payables FEARFRAMERTE - 40,09 - - 40,09 40,09
Amounts due to non-controllng interests TR B R F0E - 2,745 - - 2,745 2,745
Borrowings EE 1% 37,801 - - 37,801 31,781
Margin loans payables ERRELER 10% 4,768 - - 4,768 4,768
Financial quarantee contracts SBERED - 241 - - 241 141
87,881 - - 87,881 85,531

2001 “Eo-F
Trade and other payables EREARENERE - 4,201 - - 4,201 4,201
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  EFFERRRRERZE - 3,645 - - 3,645 3,645
Borrowings &R 7% 41,058 - - 41,058 41,040
Margin loans payables ERRELER 10% 6,09 - - 6,090 6,090
Leases liabiltes BEaE 1% 527 - - 527 506
Financial quarantee contracts HBERED - 19,672 - - 19,672 12,102
113,193 - - 113,193 105,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. @I A (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEEMREEBZREE(E)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contract are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount
if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of the reporting period, the management
of the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments are subject to change
if changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board is responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation technique and inputs
for fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. For instruments with significant
unobservable inputs under Level 3, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Board works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, €@T A (&)
() Fair value measurements of financial (c) SETEMNAEESE (8)
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) KB [F 1548 o B 2E L )
assets and financial liabilities that FEHNECZECHEERS
are measured at fair value on a BEELFE
recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets REENSDEHEENR
and financial liabilities are measured at SRHBEINERERLS
fair value at the end of each reporting REIRAFETE T X
period. The following table gives BENMEBETEBEZESS
information about how the fair values of BEEZAYE (BRI
these financial assets are determined (in PT{E A 2 HER G KE A
particular, the valuation technique(s) and BE) 7 BE -
inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy NG JE 4
Level 1 Level 3 Total
-8 B/ @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“®--f -—Z--% ZB-ZE —E--F CZB--E —Z-—f%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T THR T THR TBT
Financial assets ~ SREE
Financial assets at AT EFA
FVTPL BRmdR
gE 3,375 8,780 - - 3375 8,780
Fquity instruments  EAFERFA
at FvToC A2 ERE
MERTA - - 2,865 7,261 2,865 7,261
3,375 8,780 2,865 7,261 6,240 16,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-_E - —F+_A=+—ALEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

()

270

42.

BT A (%)
© SBMIANDFENE(H)

Fair value of the Group’s financial () FEFHZEEZMBELR
assets and financial liabilities that FEAEZZHBEERZ
are measured at fair value on a A ELFE (E)
recurring basis (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEER (E)
Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December 2022 Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs
RZB=zF HERNREREA  EXTABEGA
tREE TZA=t-HZATH ATERR g e
Hold for trading non-derivative financial assets ~ HK3,375,000 (2021: HK$8,780,000)  Level 1 Quoted closing pricesin~ N/A
an active market
RERGEITEEHAE 337500057 -8 FEMENATRE  TER
(ZZ3Z—F:4,780000%7)
Private equity investments at FVTOCI HK2,865,000 (2021: HK$7,261,000)  Level 3 Market approach - Price to-book value
multiple (Note)
BATESAEMRENGR LERTRE 286500087 £=R R -REEY (i)
(ZFZ-%:761000%7)
- Discount of lack of
marketability (Note)
-RzTERRE
i (M)
Note: An increase in price-to-book value MizE: BREMFERAMMIERX

multiple used in isolation would
result in an increase in fair value
measurement of the unlisted
equity investments at FVTOCI, and
vice versa. For the year ended 31
December 2022, a 10% increase/
decrease in price-to-book value
multiple and holding all other
variables constant would increase/
decrease the carrying amount of
the private equity investments at
FVTOCI HK$287,000/HK$287,000
(2021: HK$726,000/HK$726,000)
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(o) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Note:

(continued)

An increase in discount for lack
of marketability used in isolation
would result in a decrease in fair
value measurement of the private
equity investments at FVTOCI, and
vice versa. For the year ended 31
December 2022, a 1% increase/
decrease in discount for lack of
marketability and holding all other
variables constant would decrease/
increase the carrying amount of
the private equity investments at
FVTOCI HK$39,000/HK$39,000
(2021: by HK$116,000/HK$116,000)
respectively.

There were no transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE
SRT A (&)

ERMTANQVETE (&)

() FEEEREZHEELL

FEIBZEZHMEERE

A ELFE (&)

BfaE: (#8)
EREANRZMS
MBMEFRENESE
BRAFERAEM
E2HE RS RA

HEHATETE
W RZINK-E
EZE-_F+=H
=t+—HLEFE &
TS RBLITE L
F/TB1% meE
HmEEnHrE,
BN FEFAELM
2 E R FLE R AR
KEMEmED R
B, 38 5139,00078
7T,/39,000% 7T (=
T~ —4:116,000%8
75,/116,000/ 7T ) °

BHE_Z_—_FR_-F
——F+ZA=+—H1
FE - QAFEEHZ2EIL
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T+ _A=1+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. @I A (&)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial 00 2BMIBENAFEITE(E)
instruments (continued)
(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) F=ZRAFETEZHE
measurements
Assets — Private
equity securities
at FVTOCI
BEE-RAVE
SFAHMEE
Wiz FhE
g 7 3% 5
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2021 E/\f - —F—H—H 7,871
Fair value changes N EZE (812)
Exchange adjustment P& 5 38 B 202
At 31 December 2021 Eé:;:_—¢+ A=+—H 7,261
Fair value changes N EEE (3,935)
Exchange adjustment ME 3, B (461)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—-F+=-A=+—8H 2,865
Included in other comprehensive RABREMRFEELEAR
income is an amount of approximately ZAFEFAEMEEK
HK$3,935,000 (2021: HK$812,000) fair HHRATAZ LERAE
value loss relating to the private equity FAEME Tz AT EERLY
securities classified as equity instruments 3,935,000 T (ZF = —
at FVTOCI held at the end of the current 812,000 T) 5t A E
reporting period and is reported as b 2 U j’z%ih’ﬂ% [1%
changes of “investment revaluation BEMEE] Z2&
reserve”.
The Directors consider that the carrying FEERE NEEVBRETIL
amounts of other financial assets and financial B ADNENEMS R EE
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the FemBENEREREEE
consolidated financial statements approximate B o
their values.
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43,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
6 May 2011 (the “Scheme 2011"). Under the Scheme
2011, the Company may grant share options to the
Directors or any person who is an employee of the
Group, any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests and to reward other selected participants for
their contributions to the Group.

The purpose of the Scheme 2011 is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected employees to
subscribe for shares of the Company as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. The
Board may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or
part-time employees of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive and non-
executive directors of the Company, advisors and
consultants of the Company or any subsidiary of the
Company to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Scheme 2011
was initially 10% of the issued share capital as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme 2011 (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. An option
may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Board to each
participant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
employee should pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The subscription
price for the shares of the Company will be a price to
be determined by the Board and will be the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as
stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of granting of the options; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated on
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
granting of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

43,

REMBRKRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE
BB
AARERZZE——FHARAEKA
— IR R ([Z 2 ——5F5El)) -
BIE—T——F5&8 XRAFIAIMES
R HRAEE  RNEE A EAIRANE
ANEMNERNEENEMALRS
EAE W AHEMEFTL2EERAEE
e B B RN 15 55 -

—TE——FHEEEEARAREA
REARRNRRM 2 BIRE TEEER
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Bk iRB - EE 2R PIBE BB AR AIK
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—— FHEA FRITZROBEN S
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BEZZT——F58 (BEETERH
RITERERE) MO TEITHARQF]
M1 4@ PME121E B B TS B B
KRB TREEEITRNI% - BEARER
REZEEBETINESLEE 2R
MBERF/TE - FE W ER - EB A
MARE X 1.008 Tk A ERBR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—RHIEE

43. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2020,
55,800,000 share options had been granted under the
Scheme 2011. No share options was granted by the
Company during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

43. BRE (&)
BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILHF
E-REBE-FT-——FHERLBERE
55,800,000(p B ZE T -_=—F + =1
=t+—-BARZBE-Z—F+_A=+—
HiEFE AR R I E L E R ER
o

BRENTERAIFEDT

BE-_ZE__FrR=-ZE-—+=A

=t+—HLFE

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price (Note)

R AH BEAE THEEE TREER (M)

HK$

BT

Scheme 2011 711212020 - 71212020 - 6/12/2025 0.5506
“T—fFEtE ZTITFTCALR - “F-TFTCALRE
“ET-RFtT-ARA

The following table discloses the movement of the
Company’'s share options held by a Director and
consultants during the year ended 31 December 2022:

TEEEFEEREMAE 2o
+=B=+—BLFERENEAAT
WA 2 8

Outstanding at Exercised  Adjustment Outstanding at

1 January during  due torights 31 December
Grantees Option grant date 2022 the year issue (Note) 2022
R-B-ZF HRHR R-F-ZF
—A—H M#AZ +=A=t+-8H
ERA BRERLEH HRTHE RERTE (HHat) EXFLd
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T4 T4 a7
Director 7 December 2020 930 - 6 936
£ TR+ ALA
Consultants 7 December 2020 4,650 - 28 4,678
R St 32 s R =
Total 5,580 - 34 5,614
@it
Exercisable at the end of the year 5614
RERATTHR
Weighted average exercise price 05540 N/A RER N/A TEH 0.5506

(HK$ per share) (Note)
MEFHITEE EreR) (M)
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 43.
The following table discloses the movement of the
Company’s share options held by a Director and

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ TS+ _A=1—HIFE
B E (&)
TERBEEESELAEMBE T _—F
TZAZT - HBLEFERFEHNARA

consultants during the year ended 31 December 2021: BEPGHE 2 B E
Adjustment
Outstanding at Exercised due toshare  Outstanding at
1 January during consolidation 31 December
Grantees Option grant date 2021 the year (Note) 2021
R_B_—% MR RZT--F
—A-H aftfma® t-A=+—8°
AEA BikER LA S RATTHE RERTTE (FzE) RIATTE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Tn Tn Tn Tn
Director 7 December 2020 9,300 - (8,370) 930
B “ZCRE+ZALA
Consultants 7 December 2020 46,500 - (41,850 4,650
Gl “TCRETZALRA
Total 55,800 - (50,220) 5,580
st
Exercisable at the end of the year 5,580
RERATE
Weighted average exercise price 0.0554 N/A i A N/A i A 0.5540
(HK$ per share) (Note)
MEFHTRE Bk
(BrzE)
Note: Following the Capital Reorganisation on 22 Mzr: R—ZE=-_—&FE+A=-+-—H®BRAE

October 2021, the exercise price of the outstanding
share options was adjusted from HK$0.0554 to
HK$0.5540. The numbers of outstanding share
options were also adjusted from 55,800,000 share
options to 5,580,000 share options as a result of the
Capital Reorganisation.

Following the rights issue on 19 May 2022, the
exercise price of the outstanding share options
was adjusted from HK$0.5540 to HK$0.5506. The
numbers of outstanding share options were also
adjusted from 5,580,000 share options to 5,614,428
share options as a result of the Rights Issue.

EHE HATEERENITEE
F30.0554/% 7T 3 B £0.5540% 7T ©
RARARAELR M ARITHEBERES
B 71 55,800,000 B i A =
5,580,00017 & e # -

R-E-__FRA+IBHEE:
8 AR 7T B AR B MY 7T {8 F30.5540
75 7T FE 2=0.550678 7T o A A%
i R T B AR #E 2B 7R e 5,580,000
BT EE5,614,42800 B
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HIFE
43. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Share options granted on 7 December 2020

On 7 December 2020, 55,800,000 share options
were granted. The estimated fair value of the
options granted on this grant date is approximately
HK$1,800,000. The fair value was calculated using the
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Weighted average share price NI IR(E
Exercise price 1TfEE

Expected volatility TE AR I8
Expected life T8 HA F Bf
Risk-free rate 3 B ) 2
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR B M sk 2

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 5 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$1,800,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 in relations to share options 